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Corporate Information
EEER
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Tian Shouliang (Chief executive officer)
Guo Zhongshan

Wang Yijun

Wu Qingguo

Wang Lihui (Chief financial officer)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Poon Chiu Kwok

Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Pang Chung Fai, Benny

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Poon Chiu Kwok (Chairman)
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Pang Chung Fai, Benny

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Kang Baohua (Chairman)

Poon Chiu Kwok

Pang Chung Fai, Benny

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (Chairman)

Tian Shouliang

Pang Chung Fai, Benny

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN CHINA

20, Street 13

Shenyang Economic & Technological Development Area
Shenyang 110027

China

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 1101-06, 11/F

Prosperity Millennia Plaza

663 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED EXFEZEREMR AT

EE

HITES
BRE(L/)
M7 R (77848 5)
L

THA

REF
IB(ERHFE)

BYFHTES
AR
BRI
L

BRI (F/E)
LEERES
ZHE

REZEY
BEE (L)
AR

ZihiE

HWEES
R ()
EEd

2R

EER

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

PR ER
H

EG ™

B EERIT MR E
135972055
45110027

EBEENE
aHBitA
HE2IE6635F
PAEEETERES
11181101-06%F



Corporate Information (Continued)
EBEER(E)
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Financial Highlights
IR E

Turnover (RMB million)

Gross profit margin

EBITDA (RMB million)

Profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company (RMB million)

Net cash generated from
operating activities
(RMB million)

Basic and diluted earnings
per share (RMB)

Proposed final dividend per share

(HK cents)

EEH(EBARE)
EFE
EBITDA(BEBARE)
AN BB B A 5 F)
(BEBARE)
KRR EE

ZFRe(ABARYE)

BRERREERN
(AR¥)

e Astie R iliec)
GBIl

11,844.6
16.5%
651.0

438.5

201.6

0.07

4.0

10,797.0
21.4%
1,204.7

850.3

0.16

4.0

Percentage
Change%

)]
B %

9.7%
-4.9%

-46.0%

-48.4%

548.2%

-56.3%

0.0%
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Corporate Culture & Mission

R Rt

OPERATION PHILOSOPHY

Technology leads markets
Services Create Value

ENTERPRISE MOTTO

To do things honestly

To treat people sincerely

To understand causes and results
To unify theory and practice

CORPORATE MISSION

For the country

For the customers
For the employees
For the shareholders

MANAGEMENT CONCEPTS

Sustainable Development
Circular Improvement
Statistics Analysis
Continuous Improvement
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Corporate Culture & Mission (Continued)

EEXe R Eam (&)

PRODUCT CONCEPTS
Service

Quality

Cost

WEALTH CONCEPTS

Wealth means responsibility

TALENT CONCEPTS

Judging people on his performance
Talent comes first

MARKETING CONCEPTS

Identify the needs of the customers
Create value for the customers
Provide best services to the customers

CULTURE CONCEPTS

Respect
Communicate
Understand
Integrate
Pursue

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES

Independent Brand
Independent Intellectual Property
Independent Marketing Network
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Chairman’s Statement

RS

We are committed to:

EMHBOR :

Acting diligently and doing real things

gunER

Thanksgiving and repaying the society

BB

Responding to the energy-saving policies

SRBOBE

Developing green energy-saving new type of curtain wall

TEFLZRERER

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Yuanda China
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group” or “Yuanda China”), | hereby present to you the Group’s annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2012.

In 2012, the global economy continued to suffer from intensifying
European debt crisis, sluggish economic recovery in US and slowdown
of economic growth in emerging economies. The world’s economy grew
in 2012 generally. However, its growth continued to be at low level and
its recovery experienced a significant slowdown. Although the economy
of China demonstrated a healthy steady improvement, it faced risks and
challenges.

Benefited from rapid urbanization and consumption upgrade in China,
the construction industry of curtain walls in China recorded rapid growth.
Under limited negative effect from declining economic sentiment,
the proportion of the production value of the industry in the entire
construction decoration industry increased year by year. The industry
concentration also showed an upward trend. In the long run, the
urbanization of China will still continue to boost a relatively fast growth in
the demand of curtain walls.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED EXFEZEREMR AT
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FREHREE)

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of RMB11,844.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012, representing a growth of 9.7% as compared
to 2011. It had undertaken 217 new projects with a total contract value
of approximately RMB14,580 million, representing a growth of 6.8% as
compared to 2011.

In 2012, leveraging on the leading position in the domestic and overseas
industry and the sustained growth in curtain wall market, the overall
orders maintained a stable growth. The remaining value of backlog
amounted to approximately RMB18,479 million in total, which well-
secured the Group's future income.

During the year under review, the Group focused on implementing the
technical development strategy of “Low carbon, Function, Safety” of
curtain wall products and led the development trend of the industry with
its technological innovations. Among the new undertaken projects in
2012, the aggregate contract value of new types of curtain wall system
(mainly including unit-typed curtain wall, double-decked energy-saving
curtain wall and LED curtain wall) projects amounted to approximately
RMB3,324.2 million.

In 2012, the Group initiated 159 new innovation projects, of which 138
projects have been completed and passed the examination, and have been
applied in construction in succession. During the year under review, the
Group won the “Shenyang Scientific and Technological Progress Prize”,
the “Patent Award in Shenyang”, 7 “Lu Ban Awards”, which is the most
honorable architectural engineering award in China, and 15 “Magnolia
Awards” for architectural engineering in Shanghai. Meanwhile, the
Group was nominated as an “Excellent Enterprise of Photovoltaic Building
Application of China 2009-2011" by Photovoltaic Building Application
Committee of China Construction Metal Structure Association and its
innovated products were awarded as “Specialized, Delicate, Unique,
Innovative” products.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Actively creating new curtain walls by promoting
R&D and innovation

As for domestic market, the report of 18th Party Congress of CPC in
November 2012 for the first time advocated the idea of “Beautiful
China”. It highlighted the importance of ecological civilization
construction, set a goal to construct “Beautiful China” and realized the
sustainable development of Chinese nation. The report of 18th Party
Congress expressed strong concerns of Chinese central government
and environmental bureau over environmental protection, recycling of
resources, energy saving and emission reduction. In December 2012, the
Central Economic Working Conference also suggested a comprehensive
application of ecological civilization concept and principles in the new
urbanization, marking a new mode of urbanization which is intensive,
intelligent, environmental and low-carbon.

)

HE2012F12A318 L2 FE - AEEEEEER
AARME11,8446 B BT B2011FERIT% &
EEFEETE27E - BEHEEHARE 14,580
BEIT B011FERN68% -

20124F + REIRFE A HERA R GINITTEEE ML
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R¥18,479B & T + AEBEARWARE TRIFHK

2= o
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FREREE)

Capitalising on the positive market sentiment arising from the
implementation of the national strategy of “Beautiful China” and “new
urbanization”, in 2013, the Group will continue to enlarge its investment
in R&D. The investment will be applied in design of new curtain walls
and environmental-friendly curtain walls, innovation of existing products,
research and development of new technologies and products. In addition
to the existing products of the Group, such as double-skin curtain walls,
photovoltaic curtain walls, ecologically friendly curtain walls, video curtain
walls and membrane structure curtain walls, the Group will continue
to make the endeavor in developing epoch-making products and
technologies to lead the future development of curtain wall industry and
consolidate technological advantages and industrial position of the Group.

Developing major overseas market with devised

strategies

As for overseas market, the world’s economy still faces challenges in
2013. The continuously weak economic recovery in Europe and America
brings a certain extent of influence on the overseas business of the Group.
The Group will evaluate the current market condition, strictly control cost
budget for projects, actively expand the strategies for overseas markets,
and focus on overseas markets, such as Australia, Far East and America.
It will increase the market expansion in these regions and lift the overseas
revenue gradually. The Group adheres to its internationalized strategy as a
part of its long-term development strategies.

Looking forward into 2013, confronting everlasting complicated domestic
and international economic situation, the Board will make efforts in the
following three areas: firstly, planning and establishing mid-long term
development strategies and goals for the Group; secondly, grasping the
opportunities of PRC market and major overseas markets to ensure the
new undertaken contracts are duly signed; thirdly, strengthening the
assessment and monitoring of management performance, emphasizing
on the product principle of “service, quality and cost”, ensuring the time
limit and quality of projects, controlling the cost budget of projects and
striving to realize capital return and planned profit target of construction
projects.

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby expressed my heartfelt
thanks to all shareholders and partners who care and support Yuanda
China and all employees of the Group who make great efforts and
contribution. The Group will continue to implement the operational
philosophy of “Technology leads the market, Services create value” and
upholds the corporate spirit of “To do things honestly, To treat people
sincerely, To understand causes and results, To unify theory and practice”.
With these in mind, the Group will turn its workforce into modernized
talent who will act responsibly and in good faith and repay the society.
Based on this, the Group will prudently operate, pioneer and innovate so
as to bring sound results for seniors and friends who have been giving
selfless support to Yuanda and best investment returns for shareholders as
a whole.

Kang Baohua
Chairman

27 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEERN A

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a provider of one-stop integrated curtain wall solutions
covering the design of curtain wall systems, procurement of materials,
fabrication and assembly of curtain wall products, performance testing,
installation of products at construction sites, and after-sales services. End
customers to our curtain wall solutions mainly concentrate in domestic
and overseas non-residential and infrastructure development areas, such
as office buildings of government authorities or headquarters of leading
companies from various industries, hotels, shopping centers, convention,
cultural, sports and art centers, exhibition halls, airports, train stations,
hospitals and universities. We believe we are a leading curtain wall
provider with a comprehensive product portfolio. We integrated elements
of new materials, new technology, new energy, environmental protection
and energy-saving into curtain wall products through more complex
research and development (“R&D"), design, production and installation
lines. We have further developed curtain wall products and are committed
to realizing the idea of “Low carbon, Function, Safety” in curtain wall
products. Such products include double-skin curtain walls, photovoltaic
curtain walls, ecologically friendly curtain walls, video curtain walls and
membrane structure curtain walls. We also provide ancillary products
related to curtain wall systems, including skylights, metal roofs, canopy
systems, shading systems, balustrade and breast board systems, fire door,
roll-up door and energy-saving aluminum alloy doors and windows.

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company decreased
by approximately 48.4% from the previous corresponding period to about
RMB438.5 million in 2012. Such decrease in profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was mainly due to:

(i) the continuous impact throughout the whole year of 2012 of

(@  a slowdown in domestic project developments and a delay
on the confirmation of the supplementary payment of certain
completed projects by contractees due to the tightening
of the domestic credit market, even though the domestic
economy was experiencing a tepid recovery in the second
half of 2012,

(b) an increase in installation and on-site costs due to the
slowdown in progress of certain overseas projects, and

(i) lower margins for certain previously awarded overseas orders, the
profits of which were recognized in 2012.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Z&ARHEZERERA A
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

IR Ewtwm R ()

Newly-awarded Projects

HEETE

2012 2011

201245 20114
Number of RMB Number of RMB
projects (million) projects (million)
HEYE NG HEHE AR
(A&x) (BBx)
PRC Al 165 10,706 178 10,272
Overseas RSN 52 3,874 48 3,380
Total =i 217 14,580 226 13,652

In 2012, the Group undertook 217 new projects with an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB14,580 million, representing an increase
of approximately 6.8% as compared to 2011. In 2012, leveraging on the
Group's leading position in the domestic and overseas industry and the
sustained growth in curtain wall market, the overall orders maintained

a stable growth. Certain landmark projects were obtained in 2012,  #5:

including:

Overseas Projects:

Project name

HEEH

Barangaroo C3, C4 and C5 building in Australia
SEMEAINECS - C4 - C5AME

Children Hospital of Perth in Australia
SEUMN I Hr 52 2 B8 B

New Royal Adelaide Hospital
MEFRMEAEERIAR

Mexican BBVA Bank Building
LPNEIBBVAIRT T AME

President Service Center in Moscow
SR ARG O

Lakeside apartment P27 in Toronto
ZREPTHAE

BHNER

Nature of the project

HEME

Example of energy-saving construction

FREETRE LD

Medical institutions

BEHRE

Medical institutions

BERE

Headquarters building of bank
IRTTHEEARIE

Government office building

oGS AN

High-end residence
SIEET

20126 » AEEFEZETR217(E  BEHARE
14,580 B &L * h2011F K T 496.8% © 20124 -
NEEBREEEERRN LGNNI TERBEM AR
HRBERENRIETS - BETEKEDRESET
R - WH2012FXINES T —LIZFHEEE - &

Contract amount

BR%HE

Approximately RMB915 million
PHARKENSHET

Approximately RMB432 million
PMARKEAREET

Approximately RMB385 million
MAR¥3SSHET

Approximately RMB212 million
HWARB2128 8T

Approximately RMB183 million
HAR¥183EET

Approximately RMB56 million
HAREESCAETT
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

IR Ewtwm ko ()

PRC Projects:

Project name

HE&HE

Ping An Finance Centre in Shenzhen

RINTF 2z R L

Hang Lung Plaza in Dalian

RNEEBERES

Dazhongli in Shanghai

FERHE

Hang Lung Building of City Square in Shenyang
G BIE BIS I8

Shenyang Arts Center
RIS BT

Raffles in Hangzhou

MREL

China Bohai Bank in Tianjin

REFBIRTT

New City of Eastern Fuzhou

TR IN

Harbin Theatre
IS 7R KB

Chuangyuan Center in Chengdu
BXEBEIIRAR O

National Games Science Museum
2ESRE

Gezhouba Tower in Beijing

EREMBERE

FEIEE :

Nature of the project

HEME

Highest building in the PRC
hEE—SE

Integrated shopping center

=l
REE%

High-end fashion landmark
in Shanghai
TR A A

LED curtain wall shopping center
LEDEE IS

Cultural centre

B a2l

Construction of new town
iR

Local commercial bank
T B RTT
Construction of new town
Foh R

Cultural centre

et

Integrated shopping center

=l
RARS

National Games Auditorium
IEGHE

State-owned office building

Bk AN -

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Z&ARHEZERERA A

Contract amount

BR%HE

Approximately RMB402 million
HARKEA02EETT

Approximately RMB283 million
MARM283EETT

Approximately RMB195 million
HARBI195HET
Approximately RMB185 million
HARKE18SEHET

Approximately RMB163 million
MAR¥163EET

Approximately RMB163 million
HMARKE163BET

Approximately RMB162 million
WAR¥162BET

Approximately RMB141 million
HWARBI1MBEET

Approximately RMB133 million
MAR¥133EET

Approximately RMB124 million
HWARB12488 T

Approximately RMB120 million
MAR¥12088T

Approximately RMB116 million
PMAREN6EET



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

IR Ewtwm R ()

Backlog ATEIEE
As at 31 December 2012 As at 31 December 2011
#1£2012512A31H #H1E2011F128318
Remaining value of contracts = Remaining value of contracts
ERRIRER A RFISRERE
Number RMB (million) Number RMB (million)
BE ARM(FEET) ZE ARE(HET)
PRC A 376 12,964 391 10,539
Overseas RSN 926 5,515 99 6,647
Total = 472 18,479 490 17,186

As at 31 December 2012, the remaining value of backlog amounted to
approximately RMB 18,479 million in total, which well-secured the Group's
future income.

New technological achievement and awards

The Group focused on implementing the technical development strategy
of “Low carbon, Function, Safety” of curtain wall products and led the
development trend of the industry with its technological innovations. In
2012, the Group initiated 159 new innovation projects, covering research
in low-carbon and energy-saving, shielding sun and heat installation,
structural safety, fire-proof and shock resistant and architectural
aesthetics areas, of which 138 projects have been completed and passed
the examination, and have been applied in construction in succession,
such as, energy-saving large-span double deck unit-typed curtain wall
of Leadenhall Building (F&&## A K##), Britain, safe shock-resistant
unit-typed curtain wall of Kanda Surugadai (f#HE&/A &) in Japan
and intelligent ice-melting skylights of Huaxin Industrial Park in Dalian

(RiEE(EEZXER), PRC.

HE2012F12A310  ARITARMERNBTE
BEFTHOARKE18,479BE T + HEBANRMBALR
HTRITEORE -

FERMRRMBIL EI1E

AEESHEHRSIEESDEHK - et - 22 [FKiirs
REH - ERFAIFSIETEREBY - 201242
FOYSOTHAIFREEITIIE - RS KARETEE -
BiRE - EELE - BHAME  EEREEBZSHENN
7T o ER138THE A KBBAE W EEE TIRP R
- a0 MERERHAKEHMNENBAKEEERE
BREE  AAMEBTAIRNZARNEELE
- AEREEEEXEENEREARKSELIE

o

i
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

IR Ewtwm ko ()

The Group applied for 330 patents and obtained 560 patents
authorization (including those applied in 2011) in 2012. The accumulated
number of patents authorization of the Group was 730 as at 31
December 2012. In 2012, the Group won the “Shenyang Scientific and
Technological Progress Prize”, the “Patent Award in Shenyang”, 7 “Lu
Ban Awards”, which is the most honorable architectural engineering
award in China, and 15 “Magnolia Awards” for architectural engineering
in Shanghai. Meanwhile, the Group was nominated as an “Excellent
Enterprise of Photovoltaic Building Application of China 2009-2011"
by Photovoltaic Building Application Committee of China Construction
Metal Structure Association and its innovated products were awarded as
“Specialized, Delicate, Unique, Innovative” products.

Certain newly undertaken projects in 2012 with an aggregate contract
amount of approximately RMB3,324.2 million were using new types of
curtain wall systems, mainly including, double-skin energy-saving curtain
wall, photovoltaic curtain wall, intelligent curtain wall, environmental-
friendly curtain wall and LED curtain wall. We would keep developing
brand new and innovative curtain wall products and techniques to apply
them in curtain wall projects and strengthening our leading position in
techniques.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Further strengthening R&D and innovation

As a leading enterprise in curtain wall industry in the world, we understand
the R&D ability is a motivator of the development of enterprises. By
upholding its corporate operation principle of “technology leads
markets and services create values”, the Group continued to enlarge the
investment in R&D. The total investment in R&D in 2012 was RMB373.0
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 49.8% as compared to
2011. The investment capital in R&D was mainly used in the design of
new curtain wall and environmental-friendly curtain wall, the modification
of existing products and the innovation of new techniques and products,
including low-carbon and energy-saving construction wall, intelligent
environmental-friendly ventilated products, modularized construction
wall techniques and Internet of Things application technology research.
Currently, the products of the Group have covered environmental-friendly
curtain wall, energy-saving curtain wall, photovoltaic curtain wall and
intelligent curtain wall. The Group will continue to develop epoch-making
products and techniques with an aim to shape the future development of
the curtain wall industry and consolidate its technological advantages and
leading position in the industry.
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Closely following the national strategic realignment
in PRC market

With the implementation of the national strategy of “new urbanization”
and “Beautiful China” and leveraging on its leading advantages in
technology, the Group proactively promotes the transformation of
traditional curtain wall products to high-end energy-saving products.

A series of real estate control measures in China caused real estate
investment to switch from the saturating residential market to commercial
real estate market, which is an effective driving force to the development
of the domestic curtain wall industry.

Benefiting from the 12th Five Year Plan of the Country and the industrial
supporting policies for the cultural industry, local financial industry and
the progress of urbanization, the prospect of curtain wall industry is
optimistic. The Company undertook the project of Harbin theatre, China
Bohai Bank in Tianjin and New City of Eastern Fuzhou in 2012.

The Group will continue to focus on the domestic curtain wall market in
2013.

Developing major overseas market with devised
strategies

For overseas market, the sluggishness of the economic recovery in Europe
and America in 2012 affected the overseas business of the Group to a
certain extent. The Group will evaluate the current market condition,
strictly control cost budget for projects, actively expand the strategies for
overseas markets, focus on overseas markets, such as Australia, Far East
and America and will increase the market expansion in these regions to
achieve growth of revenue generated from overseas market gradually.

The Group will continue to adhere to its internationalized strategy,
however, for 2013, the Company will be more discreet in the
development of overseas market.

In 2013, confronting adversity and challenges, the Board, on one hand,
plans to establish the strategies and targets for the mid-long term
development of the Group; on the other hand, will take advantages of the
opportunities of PRC market and major overseas markets to ensure newly
undertaken contracts to be duly signed; strengthen the assessment and
monitoring of management performance, emphasize on the product idea
of “service, quality and cost”, ensure the time limit and quality of projects,
control the cost budget of projects and strive to realize capital return and
planned profit target of construction projects. The Board is confident
about the long-term development potential of the Group in China and the
Group will continue to make its efforts to create more values and returns
for its shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s turnover increased by
approximately RMB1,047.6 million, or 9.7%, from RMB10,797.0 million
in 2011 to RMB11,844.6 million. The increase in turnover was primarily

due to the following reasons:

(i)

(i)

The revenue generated from PRC projects increased by
approximately RMB847.3 million, or 11.8%, from RMB7,177.1
million in 2011 to RMB8,024.4 million, contributing to 67.7%
of the revenue of the Group. The revenue of Northeast China,
Southern China and Northern China regions increased significantly
as compared to the corresponding period of last year and the
region of Eastern China kept steady, which was partially offset the
adverse effect from decrease in revenue of Western China region.
Northeast region benefited from the Shenyang projects of National
Games. Southern China and Northern China regions benefited from
the faster progress in new large projects.

The overall revenue generated from overseas projects increased
slightly as compared to the corresponding period of last year, by
approximately RMB200.3 million, or 5.5%, from RMB3,619.9
million in 2011 to RMB3,820.2 million, contributing to 32.3% of
the revenue of the Group. The increase was mainly due to a sharp
increase in Far East and America market despite the significant drop
in revenue in Middle East, Australia and other regions. The revenue
from our Europe market remained constant.

Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the cost of sales of the Group
increased by approximately RMB1,395.8 million, or 16.4%, from
RMB8,491.0 million in 2011 to RMB9,886.8 million. The year-on-year
increase in cost of sales is larger than that of year-on-year revenue. The

increase in cost of sales was primarily due to the following reasons:

(@)

Affected by economic slowdown in overseas market and tightening
policy in credit market in PRC, the actual construction period is
longer than contract period, leading to a significant increase in
installation cost and on-site cost by 35.9% and 35.0% respectively;

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED &K EZBRERA A

Bt %% B B8

EEWA

RAHERE  AEENEERABRHARE
1,047.6 AEILE9.7% * H2011FR AR 10,797.0
BEL BEARK118446E8TL WABREETE
ZEILAT RE S

() FERBENKRAEEOARYSI7IEETLR
11.8% * H2011FMARKEIN77IBE T -
EARBLN44BET HEBEBKARN
67.7% o Hrh - BibiE - ErgleiE MELE
5 - WAL EFRBAERRIER - ERIbE
WA RERRIFIRE - M2 BRI AR
Do FHSEET EmEGHRAERNZE R
EFEXENESDESIER - ERHLE
tHEEBZENTFATINARTREET 2 #
EEIR o

(iy BHMNEERERBWRAMLEFRAKELRK
H201TFMARKE3 61998 L BEEAR
#3,82028 8T - (hEEIKAR323% @ HBK
TARM20038ETH55% c FERALH
REREREM@IEWAKEIE N - BHE B
M~ RE MM WA BRI A - BUM R A
BEARmEL -

SHERA

HZE2012F12A31BILFE - AEERNHEERLS A
AR#9,886 8AE T * 2011 ARKES491.088
TC 0 EANARE1,395.8F 8Tk 16.4% © SHEKAE
FE 38 IR E RB iR EH S R A R LI IR E - $HE A AN
MEZRER

iy XEINEERERBANEEMSERTE
BEBEERIHEREGHNIH  EHLE
AN~ BRGBKIE EF - RS R T 35.9%H
35.0% :



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENwmEAIT(E)

(i)  As the Group enhanced the development of new energy and
technology of architectural energy-saving, the investment in R&D
increased. R&D expenditure increased significantly as compared to
the corresponding period of last year. The R&D expenditure of 2012
increased by approximately 49.8% from 2011.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit decreased by RMB348.2 million, or 15.1%, from
RMB2,306.0 million in 2011 to RMB1,957.8 million in 2012. Our gross
profit margin dropped to 16.5% in 2012 from 21.4% in 2011. Of which:

The domestic gross profit margin dropped by approximately 3.8% to
18.9%. Due to the tightening of the domestic credit market, certain
contractees delayed the confirmation of the supplementary payment
of certain completed projects. The profit margin generally dropped for
regions in China in which the Group had business, especially the gross
profit margin of Western China and Southern China being the lowest.
The construction of West China region fell behind developed region as its
economic development started late; gross profit margin of Western China
and Southern China was lower due to the lower market shares of the
Group and competitive local markets of Southern China for curtain wall
enterprises.

The overseas profit margin fell by approximately 7.3% to 11.5%. Affected
by the consistent global economic slowdown and European debt crisis,
the actual progress of some overseas construction projects was slower
than the contracted term, triggering the upsurge in installation cost
and cost of construction sites. Besides, the profit of newly undertaken
construction previously accepted by the Group is not high. The overseas
profit margin of the Group in 2012 declined sharply. The profit margin
of Europe, Far East and America regions recorded the biggest decrease,
mainly due to the fact that delay in projects in Europe led to an increase in
installation cost and cost of construction sites, and the curtain wall market
in Far East and America became increasingly competitive. Therefore, the
profit margin of the projects in such regions undertaken by the Group fell
accordingly.

Other revenue

Other revenue decreased by RMB7.4 million from RMB23.4 million in
2011 to approximately RMB16.0 million in 2012. This was mainly due to
decrease in one-off government corporate subsidy of RMB6.5 million.
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Other net income

Other net income primarily comprises net gain from the sale of raw
materials and gain on disposal of land, property, plant, equipment and
land use rights. Other net income decreased from RMB119.1 million
in 2011 to RMB5.6 million in 2012. After excluding the effect of the
proceeds arising from one-off disposal of fixed assets and land by the
Company in 2011(as our new plant located in Shenyang was completed
and commenced operation at the end of 2007, the old plant and land
were resumed by the local government and cash compensation was
granted which brought about net income of RMB114.2 million after
deducting the costs incurred), other net income in 2012 was at the similar
level in 2011.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses increased by RMB30.3 million, or 13.4%, from RMB226.1
million in 2011 to RMB256.4 million in 2012. Selling expenses in 2012
accounted for 2.2% of the revenue, which was similar to that of 2011
(2.1%).

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses in 2012 were approximately
RMB1,162.0 million as compared with RMB1,026.5 million in 2011,
representing an increase of RMB135.5 million or 13.2%. Despite a
decrease in professional service fees (the professional service fees were
higher as a result of the listing of the shares of the Company in the
Stock Exchange in 2011) of the Group in 2012, the overall administrative
expenses still increased in 2012. Such increase was primarily due to:

(i) that salary increased as a result of business expansion and an
increase in turnover, which caused an increase of RMB103.8 million
in staff salaries and benefits.

(i) that the Group adheres to a principle of prudent operation as a
result of the tightening credit policy in China, and hence provision
of impairment losses on trade and other receivables increased by
RMB22.1 million from RMB63.0 million in 2011 to RMB85.1 million
in 2012.

(i) a payment of river transportation tax in accordance with new
regulations starting from 2012. The Group did not pay any related

tax before.

Administrative expenses accounted for 9.8% of the revenue (2011: 9.5%).
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Finance costs
Finance costs decreased by RMB25.3 million or 16.1% from RMB156.8
million in 2011 to RMB131.5 million in 2012. This was primarily due to:

i) that bank charges decreased by RMB12.2 million in 2012 because
guarantee charges decreased and the Group has repaid the bridge
loan of HKD820.0 million during the first half of 2011 granted by
Standard Chartered Bank for the listing and reorganization of the
Group and charges of the loan incurred during the period was
RMB6.9 million.

ii) and net foreign exchange gain (including gain from forward foreign
exchange contracts) was recorded at a level of net foreign exchange
gain of RMB7.1 million in 2012 and net foreign exchange loss of
RMB17.4 million in 2011. In 2012, the Company recorded a net
gain for its transactions in Australian dollars, Canadian dollars, Euro,
Swiss Francs and GBP, whereas recorded a net loss for transactions
in USD, JPY and SGD.

iii)  the above decrease in finance costs was partially compensated by
the increase of RMB14.4 million of interest expenses.

Income tax

Income tax decreased by RMB162.0 million or 75.9%, from RMB213.5
million in 2011 to RMB51.5 million in 2012. Our effective tax rate
decreased from 20.5% in 2011 to 12.0% in 2012. In October 2011,
Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Shenyang
Yuanda”), a subsidiary of the Group, was certified as a high-tech
enterprise of national grade and Shenyang Yuanda was subject to
preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax Rate of 15% for 2012 and 2013,
and subject to renewal after 2013.

Profit attributable to our equity shareholders

For the year ended 31 December 2012, profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was approximately RMB438.5 million (2011:
RMB850.3 million), representing a decrease of approximately 48.4% as
compared with the same period in 2011. Basic and diluted earnings per
share were RMB0.07 (2011: RMBO.16), representing a decrease of 56.3%
in2011.
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Net current assets and financial resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's net current assets was RMB2,765.1
million (net current assets on 31 December 2011: RMB2,817.2 million).
The Group funds its working capital requirements through its global
offering in 2011 and through cash inflow from its operations to maintain
a stable financial position. As at 31 December 2012, the Group's cash and
cash equivalents amounted to RMB2,132.3 million (31 December 2011:
RMB1,944.5 million).

Bank loans and gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s total bank borrowings amounted
to RMB1,952.0 million (31 December 2011: RMB1,507.5 million). The
Group's gearing ratio (total loans divided by total equity) was 46.5% (31
December 2011: 37.5%). The increase was due to an increase in new
bank borrowings of the Group in 2012.

Turnover days of receivables/trade and bills payables
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1* The calculation of the receivables turnover days is based on the average
amount of trade and bills receivables after net of provision and net contract
work receivables (gross amount due from customers for contract work less
gross amount due to customers for contract work) after net of provision as
at the beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by total turnover
of the corresponding period and multiplied by 365 days of the financial year.

2% The calculation of turnover days of trade and bills payables is based on the
average amount of trade and bills payables as at the beginning and ending
of the relevant period divided by cost of raw materials and installation cost
and multiplied by 365 days.

3* The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the average amount

of inventory as at the beginning and ending of the relevant period (net of
provision) divided by cost of raw materials and multiplied by 365 days.
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The balance of the receivables of the Company was RMB6,358.6
million as at 31 December 2012, representing an increase of 1,575.0
million, or 32.9% from the corresponding period of 2011, and the
receivables turnover days in 2012 increased by 40 days over 2011. The
increase was mainly due to the fact that amidst tightening domestic
credit market and fiscal crunch, the developers were cautious in project
investment or delayed in construction progress payment or examination
of completed projects, or reduced or delayed the payment of the contract
work. However, according to the contract or the developers’ payment
undertaking, the Group should meet the requirements of progress in the
projects. This resulted in more working capital advanced by the Group
and a longer settlement period from the customers. The management
paid much attention to managing settlement period of receivables and
there was a slight improvement compared with the first half of 2012 (184
days).

In addition, as at 31 December 2012, the balance of the payables of
the Company was RMB3,896.9 million, representing an increase of
RMB1,225.8 million, or 45.9% in the corresponding period of 2011.
The difference between the receivables turnover days and the payables
turnover days for this period was 9 days, basically reaching the level of
2011. As we are in good and long-term relationship with suppliers, the
payables turnover days would increase accordingly following the increase
in the receivables turnover days.

In 2012, the Group also successfully raised the net operating cash flow
from RMB(1,122.2) million for the six months ended 30 June 2012 to
RMB201.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Inventories and inventory turnover days

Our inventories primarily consist of materials used in fabrication of curtain
wall products, including aluminum extrusions, glass, steel and sealant. The
Group’s inventory balance as at 31 December 2012 was approximately
RMB485.3 million (31 December 2011: RMB457.2 million). For the
year ended 31 December 2012, inventory turnover days was 37 days,
representing an increase of 4 days as compared with 33 days in 2011.
The inventory balance and the inventory turnover days basically remained
at the same level as compared with that of the corresponding period last
year.
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Capital expenditure

In 2012, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to RMB193.5 million,
which was mainly related to the expenses incurred on acquiring land,
construction of plant and purchase of equipment. With respect to our
production capacity expansion, save for part of our plant in Anshan
and the new plant area in Chengdu which are under construction,
the expansion of the production capacity in plant areas in Shanghai
and Foshan have being carried out successively. The original plan of
establishment of new plant areas in Tianjin and Middle East have not yet
been implemented due to a cautious sentiment arising from the macro-
restraining policies in China and the slowdown of overseas economies and
sufficient existing production capacity. The new plant area in Chengdu
(a site area of 100,000 sgm., a construction area of 73,500 sgm. and the
project budget cost RMB133.8 million) had an accumulated investment of
RMB113.7 million as at 31 December 2012 and such project is expected
to be completed in 2013.

Foreign exchange risk

The overseas projects of the Group were mainly dominated in USD,
EURO, AUD and GBP. To manage our foreign exchange risks, we have
started hedging the risk of appreciation of the Renminbi against foreign
currencies through entering into forward foreign exchange contracts

with reputable banks.

Charge on assets
Details of the Group’s charge on assets as at 31 December 2012 are set
out in Note 24 to the Financial Statements.

Contingent liabilities

The Group's contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2012 are set out in
Note 32 to the Financial Statements.
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Directors and Senior Management
EFNEREEAR

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua (&%), aged 59, is the founder and chairman of
our Group, and was appointed as our executive Director on February
26, 2010. Mr. Kang is the vice president of the Liaoning Chamber of
Commerce (EEE ). Graduated from Liaoning University (GEE X
&) with a diploma in politics in 1984, Mr. Kang has over 20 years of
experience in the curtain wall industry and has been responsible for
the overall management and strategic development of our Group since
1992. Prior to founding our Group, Mr. Kang was an executive director
of Shenyang Strong Wind Group Company (&F[558 R 5@ A 7). Since
our establishment, Mr. Kang has been involved in the management of
our Company, including business development, finance and corporate
strategy formulation. Mr. Kang is also a director of numerous subsidiaries
of the Group.

Mr. Tian Shouliang (H=SFR). aged 49, is our chief executive officer
and was appointed as our executive Director on December 18, 2010.
Mr. Tian joined our Group in 1994 and has over 17 years of experience
in the curtain wall industry. From 1995 to 1997, Mr. Tian was the
vice general manager in production of Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. (EB5ir KR T2 AR A R]) (“Shenyang
Yuanda”), where he was involved in curtain wall product design and
managed curtain wall production systems. From 1997 to 2008, he was
the vice chairman of Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry Group Ltd.
(B IE AIREEE AR AR (“Yuanda Group”) where he was in charge
of operations, finance and human resources management activities.
Since 2008, Mr. Tian has been the president and a director of Shenyang
Yuanda, leading its business expansions and product development plans.
Mr. Tian graduated from Harbin Industrial University (Y &8 T K22) in
1986 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering specializing in the study of
heat turbines.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
BENEREBEAB(E)

Mr. Guo Zhongshan (B 1L), aged 48, was appointed as our executive
Director on December 18, 2010. Mr. Guo joined our Group in 1994 and
has over 17 years of experience in the curtain wall industry. From 1994 to
1996, Mr. Guo was the chief engineer of Shenyang Yuanda, responsible
for engineering design works related to curtain wall products. From 1996
to 1997, Mr. Guo has been the vice president of Shenyang Yuanda,
responsible for market development in the PRC. Since 1997, Mr. Guo has
been the vice president of Shenyang Yuanda. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Guo was the technical director of Shenyang Strong Wind Company
(&EFF58E A F]) from 1992 to 1993. Mr. Guo graduated from Shenyang
Aviation Industrial College (Z[5fn%E T % & Ft) with a bachelor’s degree
in mechanical engineering in 1986 and from Dalian Polytechnic University
(R:E38 T KE) with a master’'s degree in mechanical engineering in
1992.

Mr. Wang Yijun (E& %), aged 44, is the vice president of our Group,
managing director of our international operations and was appointed as
our executive Director on December 18, 2010. Mr. Wang has joined our
Group since 1993 and has more than 18 years of experience in the curtain
wall industry. From 1993 to 1998, Mr. Wang held various managerial
positions in Shenyang Yuanda where he managed engineering design and
technology works. In 1999, Mr. Wang was the technical manager of the
Shanghai branch of Shenyang Yuanda. Since 2000, Mr. Wang has been
the general manager of the international operations of Shenyang Yuanda,
responsible for its business in overseas markets. Mr. Wang graduated
from Shenyang Aviation Industrial College (EZfTZE T 3 E67) with a
bachelor’'s degree in mechanical engineering and design in 1992. Mr.
Wang is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wu Qingguo (:REE), aged 43, was appointed as our executive
director on 18 December 2010. Mr. Wu joined the Group in 1997 and
has more than 14 years of experience in the curtain wall industry. He has
been involved in the development and sales activities of our operations in
Northeastern China since he joined us. From 1997 to 2000, Mr. Wu led
the sales activities of the operations of Shenyang Yuanda in Northeastern
China. From 2001 to 2008, Mr. Wu was the general manager of
the Northeastern China Branch of Shenyang Yuanda in charge of its
operations in Northeastern China, responsible for managing its sales,
production, operations and marketing activities. He was appointed the
president of the Northeastern China Branch of Shenyang Yuanda in June
2008 and was appointed as a director of Shenyang Yuanda and the
president of the Group’s Northeastern China operations in 2010. Mr. Wu
graduated from Shenyang University (&[5 A 22) with a bachelor’s degree
in industrial engineering management in 1992.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
BENEREBRAB(E)

Mr. Wang Lihui (£ 3Z#&), aged 43, was appointed as our Company’s
chief financial officer on 20 June 2012 and was appointed as our executive
Director on December 18, 2010. Mr. Wang joined our Group in 1996
and has more than 19 years of experience in accounting and finance. Mr.
Wang has experience in dealing with internal control, risk management,
corporate finance and taxation matters and is responsible for the overall
management of our Group'’s financial operations. He has been involved in
formulating the Group’s budgets, remuneration and incentive schemes.
Prior to joining us, Mr. Wang was an accountant in Northeast (No. 6)
Pharmaceutical Manufacturer (821t 7S£ %4/H) from 1992 to 1994 and
the finance director of Shenyang Wumei Shopping Centre (&[5
%) from 1995 to 1996. From 1996 to 2004, Mr. Wang was the financial
manager of Shenyang Yuanda. Since 2004, Mr. Wang has been the chief
accountant of Yuanda Group. Mr. Wang graduated from Anhui Trade and
Finance College (ZZ#181 & £p5) with a bachelor’s degree in accounting in
1992. Mr. Wang is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (ERAE]), aged 50, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr. Poon obtained
a Master’s degree in international accounting, a Bachelor’s degree in
laws and a Bachelor's degree in business studies. He was awarded a
postgraduate diploma in laws by the University of London. He is a member
and an associate instructor of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute, an fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He now
serves as an executive director, vice-president and company secretary
of Huabao International Holdings Limited. Mr. Poon has over 20 years
of experience in regulatory affairs and investment banking. Mr. Poon
worked in the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange. He subsequently has
been an executive director and managing director of several investment
banks. Currently, he is also an Independent Non-executive Director of the
following companies: Ningbo Port Company Limited, Guangzhou Shipyard
International Company Limited, Sunac China Holdings Limited and
Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.. He retired from his position
as an Independent Non-executive Director in Tsingtao Brewery Company
Limited and China Tianrui Group Cement Company Limited due to the
expiry of his term of office in June 2011 and December 2012 respectively.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
BENEREBEAB(E)

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (#Z#f), aged 43, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on April 12, 2011. Mr. Woo is
an executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary of
IRC Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1029). Mr. Woo has over 19 years
of experience in the accounting and financial services industry. He began
his career as a certified accountant at Arthur Andersen & Co where
he qualified. Subsequently, he was employed in senior positions as an
investment banker at ING, CITIC Securities and Credit Suisse. Mr. Woo
holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree. He is a member of both the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Benny Chung Fai Pang (" &), aged 40, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on April 12, 2011. Mr. Pang is the
managing partner of Salans Hong Kong, an international law firm with
offices in 22 cities. He is also the principal of Pang & Co, a local law firm
in association with Salans Hong Kong. Between 1997 and 2009, Mr. Pang
practiced as a lawyer with several international law firms in Hong Kong
and Sydney. Mr. Pang received his bachelor’s degree in laws from Bond
University, Australia in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Pang obtained his Graduate
Diploma in Legal Practice and master’s degree in laws from The College of
Law, UK and the University of New South Wales, Australia respectively. He
was admitted as a legal practitioner of the Supreme Court of New South
Wales, Australia in 1997 and as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong in 2009. He is a member of both the Law Society of New South
Wales, Australia and the Law Society of Hong Kong. All directors are not
involved in any matters concerning Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing
Rules.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
BENEREBRAB(E)

Senior Management

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip, aged 35, was appointed as our Company
secretary and authorized representative on 20 June 2012 and has over
10 years of experience in corporate services field. He was an auditor of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 2000 to 2001. Since 2001, Mr. Yu has
been the director of the Corporate and China Services Division of Fung,
Yu & Co. CPA Limited. Mr. Yu has also been the company secretary of
China National Materials Co. Ltd. (stock code: 01893), Beijing Media
Corporation Ltd. (stock code: 01000) and Vale S.A. (stock code: 06210,
06230), all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong, since 2009, 2010
and 2010, respectively. Mr. Yu graduated from the University of Toronto
with a bachelor’s degree in commerce in 2000 and from the University of
London with a bachelor’s degree in law in 2005. He is a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Certified Practicing
Accountants of Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

Mr. Xie Haizhuang (#3#8R), aged 45, is the chief engineer of Shenyang
Yuanda. Mr. Xie joined our Group in 1995. From 1995 to 2002, Mr. Xie
held positions including technical designer and technical manager, dealing
with the technical aspects of curtain wall projects. He has worked on the
technical design of proposals for bidding major projects. Since 2002, Mr.
Xie was involved in our corporate technical development management.
Graduating from Huadong Industrial College (2% T &%) in 1990, Mr.
Xie holds a bachelor’s degree in mechanical construction design.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEREAWS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s Annual Report for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate governance
to enhance shareholder value and safeguard shareholder interests. The
Group's corporate governance principles emphasize the importance of a
quality Board, effective internal controls and accountability to shareholders
of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

For the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012, the Company
has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Old Code”) formerly set out in the then
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and for the period from 1 April 2012 to
31 December 2012, the Company has adopted the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “New Code”, together with
the Old Code, the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices, save
for the deviations from code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the New Code,
which are explained as follows:

o Code Provision A.6.7 provides that independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors of the Company should attend
general meetings of the Company. Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond,
an independent non-executive director of the Company, has not
attended the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24
May 2012 due to a conflict with his business schedule.

o Code Provision E.1.2 provides that the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting of the Company. Mr.
Kaug Baohua, the chairman of the board, has not attended the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 May 2012 due
to illness.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices regularly to
ensure compliance with the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE(E)

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance
with the objective of enhancing shareholders’ value including setting
and approving the Company’s strategic implementation, considering
substantial investments, reviewing the Group's financial performance
and developing and reviewing the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance. The Board has delegated to the chief executive
officer, of which the directors also undertake, and through him, to the
senior management the authority and responsibility for the day-to-
day management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board
has established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

All directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of
the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, membership of the Board is made up of nine
members in total, with six executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors. The composition of the Board is set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Kang Bachua
Mr. Tian Shouliang
Mr. Guo Zhongshan
Mr. Wang Yijun

Mr. Wu Qingguo
Mr. Wang Lihui

Chairman
Chief executive officer

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time. The independent non-executive directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERREE)

BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

The biographical details of the members of the Board are disclosed under
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this report.
None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one independent
non-executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. From 30
November 2012 and up to the date of this report, the independent non-
executive directors represented one-third of the Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of rule 3.13 of Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive directors are invited to serve on the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company are carried out by different individuals and have been clearly
defined in writing.

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Kang Baohua, and the chief executive
officer is Mr. Tian Shouliang. The positions of chairman and chief
executive officer are held by separate persons in order to preserve
independence and a balance of views and judgement. With the support of
the senior management, the chairman is responsible for ensuring that the
directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.
The chief executive officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. The chief executive
officer is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations. The chief executive officer is also responsible for developing
strategic plans and formulating the organizational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for the Board'’s approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE(E)

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive directors of the Company is engaged on a
service contract for a term of three years, and the appointment may be
terminated by not less than one month’s written notice. Each of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company has been appointed
for a term of one year and the appointment may be terminated by not
less than three months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all directors
of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and any new director appointed by the Board to fill a causal
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee established on 12 April 2011 is to be responsible
for reviewing the Board composition, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning of directors and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least 14 days
before the meeting. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director also
have separate and independent access to the senior management where
necessary.

Our senior management, including chief executive officer, chief financial
officer and company secretary, attend all reqular Board meetings and
where necessary, other Board and committee meetings, to advise on
business developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory and
regulatory compliance, corporate governance and other major aspects of
the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE(E)

BOARD MEETINGS (continued)

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings (continued)
The company secretary of our Company is responsible for taking and
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and final versions are open for
directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Directors’ Attendance Records

During the year ended 31 December 2012, nine regular Board meetings
were held for reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies and
policies of the Company.

The attendance records of each director at the Board meetings during the

year ended 31 December 2012 and the annual general meeting for the
year of 2012 (the “2012 AGM") are set out below:

Name of Director

EEpE

Mr. Kang Baohua REZERE
Mr. Tian Shouliang HFREE
Mr. Guo Zhongshan AL AEE
Mr. Wang Yijun ITEELRSE
Mr. Wu Qingguo REBSA
Mr. Wang Lihui EShvA -
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok IR A
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond HARREE
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny THREE L

BEEE2EE0)
EEEERERNESE)
AATMATREEEFAEEEREREERS
25 WRGAMRE  SRABTEERRERE
SRt —BAEBERN  —ReRESENeS
BB EERN  MERSTHESan -

22
X
=
=]

”

i

AABNEGERARE AR ERESTRERME
BEENEMRENBBATRETFHEEEARRNR
SZMARNERELRERE - RIS AEEAR -

EEHESECHE
HZE2012F12831HILFE - F2EERTINTEH
& BERMENBREBREARZERIER
DA ERIEME

HE202FNANBLEFE  SEELFEEEe S
FUREE2012FFERERAF AL ([2012F KK
RBERE |)EEREHINT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BRHREREBITRE
2012 AGM
Board Meeting 2012 BER
Exge= BEXE
5/9 01
9/9 11
9/9 11
8/9 1/1
8/9 11
7/9 11
9/9 11
9/9 01
9/9 1/1

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman of the Board also held
a meeting solely with the independent non-executive directors on 7
December 2012.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities and are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company would
provide to each newly appointed director or alternative director an
induction package covering the summary of the responsibilities and
liabilities of a director of a Hong Kong listed company, the Group’s
businesses and the statutory regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company as well as the Company’s constitutional documents to ensure
that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The Group
also provided briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
directors’ knowledge and skills from time to time. Further, the Company
continuously updates directors on the latest developments regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there was one in-house
seminar conducted covering the topics of directors’ duties, corporate
governance practices and disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules and SFO. In addition, some of the directors also attended external
seminars and/or conferences organized during the year under review.

Details regarding the trainings attended by the Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2012 are as follow:

Directors

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Kang Baohua FREZE S A
Mr. Tian Shouliang H=FR%EE
Mr. Guo Zhongshan R4
Mr. Wang Yijun FRELE
Mr. Wu Qingguo RERLE
Mr. Wang Lihui FBEAE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok BB R S
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond AR
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny THRIBAAE

B
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Types of training
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External
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and/or
conferences
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In-house
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERREE)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Appendix 10”) and devised its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the
“Company Code”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code and the
Company Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major Company
matters, including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are
followed. Each director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the chief executive officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers. The Board
also has the full support of the chief executive officer and the senior
management for the discharge of its responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE(E)

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for
formulating policies on remuneration of senior management of the Group.
Details of the remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in Note 8 to the Financial
Statements.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the Board
has established three committees, namely, the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company'’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference which are available
to shareholders on the Company’s website. Each of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Kang
Baohua (chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny,
the majority of which are independent non-executive directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of directors, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Nomination Committee:

o reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and made
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o made recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least one-third of
the Board;

o assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE(E)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

o made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
Directors.

The Nomination Committee will meet at least once per year according to

its terms of reference. Four Nomination Committee meetings were held
during the year under review, details of attendance are set out below:

Nomination Committee Members

Mr. Kang Baohua REERE

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok PR A
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny THEBEE

BEEZFES )
RELZES &)
. BEISHEANESSRLRE-

T%%?E BIREELERESESFELORIT—RE
cREIFEFE RBZESRTTHORERE 6
Hj}_‘_aﬂﬁ%(ﬁ”ﬁﬂ?-

mﬂ}

v
s

Attendance/
Number of Meeting

ERHE
RE/ BITRE

4/4
4/4
a/4

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (chairman), Mr. Tian Shouliang and Mr. Pang
Chung Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the directors’ remuneration and other benefits. The remuneration of all
directors is subject to regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee
to ensure that level of their remuneration and compensation are
reasonable. Their written terms of reference are in line with the provisions
of the CG Code. Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the
Remuneration Committee would make available its terms of reference,
explaining its role and the authority delegated to it by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE(E)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Remuneration Committee:

o made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

o reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

o reviewed and approved the disclosure details of any remuneration
payable to members of senior management by band in the annual
reports; and

o conducted regular evaluations of the Board on its performance as it
may consider appropriate.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERRE(E)
BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) BEEZE® )
Remuneration Committee (continued) FNEES @)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the New code, the remuneration of  IRIE#<FRI 2 SFRIESCEB. 151 - SREEEKRER
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 & Z2012F12 A31H IFFE 2GS E S 70T -
December 2012 is set out below:

Number of

individuals
In the band of B E AB

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 L% 1,000,000/ 7T 14

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended ~ ¥MZE@REE2012F12 431 B IEFEEITT2R
31 December 2012 and the details of attendance are set out below: % BEALFEFBEERIAT

Attendance/
Number of Meeting

ERHE

Remuneration Committee Members KRB BITIRE

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond HARR L& 2/2

Mr. Tian Shouliang HFREE 2/2

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny THES A 2/2
Audit Committee BEREES

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Poon Chiu ~ BZZEEH=RAKEHEK - DRI /EREBELE(E
Kwok (chairman), Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond and Mr. Pang Chung Fai, &) * BIRREERZF R L - 2EHBRBIUIFH
Benny, all of which are independent non-executive directors. TE=E -

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise ~ =1%% B &8 = BRH Sfast RERV B RRIZF &
the financial reporting process and internal control system and to provide ~ WEPEEHEHIE - MRAEFERHEELRER
advice and comments to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee: HE2012F12A31ALFE - EZZEE -

e make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, *  FIMNEEBEINER(T - ENZERERAES
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and approved GIRE R © HU/E NS BAT &Y B BN R B R
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor; b4
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE(B)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2011 and the interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2012 as well as significant issues on financial control, internal
control and risk management systems;

discussed the internal control system with management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to have an effective
internal control system. This discussion included the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions; and

developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EERHE(E)
BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) E=EZ8gw)
Audit Committee (continued) EVEESH)
The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 & ZE2012F12A31B 1L FE » EXEE € YEIT2X
December 2012 and the details of attendance are set out below: @ REFNHEDSIYET
Attendance/
Number of Meeting
gEHE
Audit Committee Members RERE R
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok BIBE L 2/2
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond b e 2/2
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny THRIBAEAE 2/2

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors of the Company  BZZE@IMENITEFHRF 2B R TEAQFIND

twice without the presence of the executive directors. BT NS o
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EEABAE

During the period under review, the Board is responsible for determining R EIEHRN - EF B EEFT AR AINBEE AR
the policy for the corporate governance of the Company performing the % * LABfTREBBBEAT ¢
corporate governance duties as below:

e todevelop and review the Group's policies and practiceson ¢  HlEREHAEENGEECHERTER - I
corporate governance and make recommendations; EH R

e toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional ¢ MBI REREZREHREBEONFIIRSES
development of the directors and senior management; FERE

. to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practiceson  ® & RERAREEETHAERMRERE (W0
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where TR EBER B
applicable);

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and ¢ #lF BRI RERAEERE RESHEANT
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors of BTRIRERESI(WE) : &k
the Group; and

e toreview the Group's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure ¢ Bal AN EEEFREE ST REEE RS
requirements in the Corporate Governance Report. FRE B E MBS o
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE(B)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
Respect of Financial Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, announcements
of inside information and other disclosures required under the Listing
Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Company including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets and
with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of
such system on an annual basis.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate effective
and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to identify and manage
potential risks and to safeguard assets of the Group. The internal auditor
and senior management reviews and evaluates the control process,
monitors any risk factors on a regular basis, and reports to the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE(E)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai of Yu & Co. CPA Limited, the external company
secretary service provider of the Company, has been engaged by the
Company as its company secretary since 30 June 2012. The primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Jason Li, the vice president of
the Finance and Securities Department of the Company.

The company secretary’s biography is set out in the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” on pages 25 to 29 of this report.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the company secretary
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update his skills and
knowledge.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
"Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 68.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in respect
of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to
RMB6.5 million. The external auditors of the Company did not provide
any non-audit services to the Company for the year ended 31 December
2012.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an

extraordinary general meeting (including making

proposals/moving a resolution at the extraordinary
general meeting)

o Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition, including
making proposals or moving a resolution at an extraordinary general
meeting.

o Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for the purpose of making proposals or moving
a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting must deposit
a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1101-06,11/F, Prosperity Millennia
Plaza, 663 King’'s Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for the attention
of the Company Secretary.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE(B)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an

extraordinary general meeting (including making

proposals/moving a resolution at the extraordinary
general meeting) (continued)

o The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an extraordinary general
meeting, the agenda proposed to be included the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted in the extraordinary general
meeting, signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

o If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board has
not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any outcome to the contrary
and fails to proceed to convene an extraordinary general meeting,
the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/themselves may do so
in accordance with the memorandum and articles of associations,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned by the Company.

Disclaimer

The contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for
reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The information does
not represent and should not be regarded as legal or other professional
advice from the Company to the shareholders. Shareholders should seek
their own independent legal or other professional advice as to their rights
as shareholders of the Company. The Company disclaims all liabilities and
losses incurred by its shareholders in reliance on any contents of this sub-
section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”..

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong by post through the following means:

Telephone number: (86) 24 25273288

By post: 20, Street 13 Shenyang Economic & Technological
Development Area, Shenyang, 110027, China

Attention: Investor Relations Department

By email: investors@yuandacn.com
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEEARE(E)

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Amendments to the Articles of Association of the
Company

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to
its articles of association. An up-to-date version of the Company’s articles
of association is also available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

Investors Communication Policy

The Company regards the communication with institutional investors
as important means to enhance the transparency of the Company and
collect views and feedbacks from institutional investors. To promote
effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
www.yuandacn.com, where up-to-date information and updates on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted are
available for public access. During the year under review, the directors and
senior management of the Company participated in numerous road shows
and investment conferences. In addition, the Company also maintains
regular communication with the media through press conferences, news
releases to the media and on the Company’s website, and answering
enquiries from the media.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Board and the shareholders face-to-face dialogue with the
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee
or, in their absence, other members of the respective committees and,
where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board committee, are
available to answer questions at shareholder meetings.

The annual general meeting regarding the financial results for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (“AGM") will be held on 29 May 2013. The
notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM.
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Report of the Board of Directors
FERHE

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 of the
Group.

MAJOR BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of one-stop
integrated curtain wall solutions for its customers to meet the technical
specifications and performance requirements of their projects. The
analysis of the revenue of the Group for the year is set out in Note 4 to
the Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012, and
financial condition of the Company and the Group as at that date are set
out in the Financial Statements on pages 70 to 187.

SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in the share capital of Company during the year are set out
in Note 27(c) to the Financial Statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

At the Board meeting held on 27 March 2013 (Wednesday), it was
proposed that a final dividend of HK$0.04 per share be paid on or around
18 June 2013 (Tuesday). The proposed final dividend is subject to approval
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on 29 May 2013 (Wednesday).

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has waived
or agreed to waive any dividends.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
24 May 2013 (Friday) to 29 May 2013 (Wednesday), both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all
transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrars in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, located at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 May
2013 (Thursday).

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 4 June 2013
(Tuesday) to 6 June 2013 (Thursday), both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrars in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, located at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 3 June 2013 (Monday).
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
EEeRE(E)

RESERVE

Details of movements in reserve of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity of the Financial Statements. Details of movements in the reserves
of the Company during the year are set out in Note 27(a) to the Financial
Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of
the Company is available for distribution of dividends to the shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Associations, and
with the sanction of an ordinary resolution, dividend may be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorised for this propose. Details of distributable reserves of the
Company are set out in Note 27(e) to the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

The changes in property, plant and equipments of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in Note 13 to the Financial
Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of purchases attributable
to the Group's largest suppliers and the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 5.3% and 18.2% of the Group's
total purchase, respectively. The percentage of turnover attributable to
the Group's largest customers and the Group's five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 2.5% and 7.0% of the Group’s
total turnover, respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, so far as is known to the Directors, none of the
Directors or his/her associates and none of the shareholders possessing
over 5% of the interest in the capital of the Company possessed any
interest in the abovementioned suppliers and customers.

DONATION

During the year, the charitable contributions and other donations made
by the Group in Hong Kong and China totalled RMB3.8 million.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
EEeRE(E)

DIRECTORS

The directors in office during the year and as of the date of this report are
as follows:

Executive Directors

Kang Baohua (Chairman)

Tian Shouliang (Chief Executive Officer)

Guo Zhongshan

Si Zuobao (resigned on 30 November 2012)
Wang Yijun

Wu Qingguo

Wang Lihui (Chief Financial Officer)

Wang Degiang (resigned on 30 November 2012)

Independent non-executive Directors
Poon Chiu Kwok

Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Pang Chung Fai, Benny

Biographical details of the directors and senior management are set forth
in the section “Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of service contracts for our executive Directors and non-executive
Directors are set out under the section headed “Appointment and Re-
election of Directors” of the Corporate Governance Report. There was
no service contract entered by the Company and any Directors to be
re-elected in the coming annual general meeting stipulating that the
Company may not terminate the appointment within one year without
compensation payment (other than the statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in Note 29 to the Financial
Statements and in the section “Connected transactions” below, there
was no other significant contract with any member of the Group as the
contracting party and in which the Directors of the Company possessed
direct or indirect substantial interests, and which was still valid on the year
end date or any time during the year and related to the business of the
Group.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
EEeRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE
BUSINESS

Our Chairman, Mr. Kang Baohua, owns and through Best Outlook
Limited (“Best Outlook”) and Neo Pioneer Limited (“Neo Pioneer”)
owns in aggregate approximately 53.94% of the issued share capital
in the Company as at the date of this report of the Board. Mr. Kang
Baohua, Best Outlook and Neo Pioneer are the controlling shareholders
of the Company. Mr. Kang Baohua also owns 100% interest in
Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“Yuanda
Singapore”) through Shenyang Yuanda Aluminum Industry Group
Ltd. ("Yuanda Group”), which is owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Yuanda
Singapore is primarily engaged in curtain wall works and trading as well
as investment holding. Although the Company has established a wholly
owned subsidiary in Singapore to carry out curtain wall contracting
projects, the ability to contract for large-scale public curtain wall projects
in Singapore is dependent on local contracting experience. Given the lack
of direct local contracting experience, the Group has been cooperating
with Yuanda Singapore on the contracting of large scale public curtain
wall projects in Singapore during the last five years and will continue to
supply curtain wall products to Yuanda Singapore until the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiary will be able to undertake such projects in
Singapore on its own. Please see the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011 (the
"Prospectus”) for details. For the aforesaid purpose, Yuanda Singapore
has been excluded from the deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-
competition”) provided by the controlling shareholders to the Company
on 21 April 2011.

We have received an annual written confirmation from each of the
Company’s controlling shareholders in respect of the compliance by
them and their associates with the Deed of Non-competition. Each of the
controlling shareholders of the Company has also confirmed that all of
them has abided by the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended
31 December 2012.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of Non-
competition and whether the controlling shareholders have abided by the
non-competition undertaking under the Deed of Non-competition. The
independent non-executive Directors confirmed that they had determined
that the controlling shareholders have not been in breach of the Deed of
Non-competition during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Save as disclosed, no Directors nor their respective connected persons

possessed any interests in any business that competed or might compete
with the business that the Group conducted.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
EEeRE(E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 12 April 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) whereby the Board of Directors can grant options for
the subscription of our shares to the employees, managerial staff and
senior employees and those other persons that the Board of Directors
considers that they will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
"Participants”) as described in the Share Option Scheme in order to serve
as compliment and to reciprocate their contribution to the Group. The
maximum number of shares that can be issued according to the Share
Option Scheme was 600,000,000 shares which is equivalent to 10%
of the issued capital of the Company after completion of the Global
Offering (as defined in the Prospectus). The number of options that may
be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued shares immediately after the completion of the
Global Offering. Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted
to the Participants under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 1%
within any 12-month period (other than those granted to the substantial
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)), or the total number of
shares that may be granted under the options to the independent non-
executive Directors or any of their respective connected persons shall not
exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of the Company from time to time.
There is no minimum period that the options must be held before they
become exercisable, and the options granted shall be exercised within the
period decided by the Board of Directors, and however no options shall be
exercised 10 years after they have been granted. The exercise price of the
option shall be the higher of

(@)  the closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

(0 nominal value of the Share. Each grantee shall pay a consideration
of HK$1.00 at the time the option is granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date it is adopted and
shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from that date.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have been
granted.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
EEeRE(E)

DEBENTURE

At any time during the year under review, the Company, its holding
company or its subsidiaries were not the contracting parties of any
arrangements from which the Directors could make a profit by purchasing
the shares or debentures of the Company or any other companies.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at the date of 31 December 2012, the interest or short position of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which would be
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which would be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, are as follows:

(i) Interestin the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest
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Approximate
Percentage of

Number of Shares Shareholding

EEMA fEmtyE gvig E] RESOE D
Kang Baohua Beneficial owner 56,126,000(L) 0.90%
RE=E BB A
Interest of controlled corporation 3,390,379,626(L) 54.61%
SR EE RS
Notes: it -

(1) Of the shares held by Mr. Kang Baohua, 2,579,971,923 Shares were
held by Best Outlook Limited and 754,281,703 Shares were held by
Neo Pioneer Limited, both companies of which are wholly-owned by
Mr. Kang Baohua.

2) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
EEeRE(E)

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

DIRECTORS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES OR DEBENTURES (continued)
(ii) Interest in associated corporations

Name of Director

ESHR HBEE &

Name of Associated Corporation

EENKRG AERORESFNER
)587°9-X¢ 9,

(i) RAEBEERED

Approximate

Percentage of

Number of Shares Shareholding
R EE REMA T DL

Kang Baohua

FEE

Kang Baohua

FEE

Tian Shouliang
AR

Guo Zhongshan
AL

Wang Yijun
a1

Wu Qingguo
REH

Wang Lihui
EEvA-

Best Outlook Limited
FIRBR AT

Neo Pioneer Limited

#EIARAA

Long Thrive Limited
REARAT

Long Thrive Limited
REARAT

Long Thrive Limited
REARAT

Long Thrive Limited
REARAT

Long Thrive Limited
REARAT

(L) 100%

(L 100%
1,500(L) 11.32%
1,500(L) 11.32%
1,500(L) 11.32%
1,200(L) 9.06%
850(L) 6.41%

Note: The letter “L" denotes long position in such securities.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
EEeRE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at the date 31 December 2012, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or deemed or taken
to have an interest and/or short position in the Shares or the underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of SFO, or who was directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company:
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Approximate
Percentage of

Capacity Number of Shares Shareholding

ROEE REBNBE DL

Best Outlook Limited (7) Beneficial owner 2,579,971,923(L) 41.55%
ERARAF(T) EmfEB A

Neo Pioneer Limited (7) Beneficial owner 754,281,703(L) 12.15%
EIRRARN() BB A

Long Thrive Limited (2) Beneficial owner 561,555,356(L) 9.04%
REARAFR) EmfEA A

Notes: st -

(1) Best Outlook Limited and Neo Pioneer Limited are companies incorporated in
the BVI and are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang Baohua.

2) Long Thrive Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI and is owned by 6
Directors and 5 employees of the Company

3) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December 2012
are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2012 are as follows:

Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirement
but are Subject to the Reporting and Announcement
Requirements

Acquisition of Assets from Brilliant Elevator

On 21 February 2012, Shenyang Yuanda Metal Coating Co., Ltd. (&
G AeBEZAR AT, “Yuanda Metal Coating”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an acquisition agreement (the
“Acquisition Agreement”) with Shenyang Brilliant Elevator Co., Ltd. (&
SIEMESERROBR AR,
Brilliant Elevators agreed to sell a spray-painting and coating production
equipment, compressors, elevators, transportation equipment, computers

“Brilliant Elevator”), pursuant to which

and testing equipment for processing metal products (the “Sale Assets”)
to Yuanda Metal Coating for an aggregate consideration of RMB23.9
million. The consideration was determined with reference to the fair
value of the Sale Assets as at 31 December 2011 as determined by an
independent third party valuer, and has been satisfied by the internal
resources of the Group within 30 days from the execution of the
Acquisition Agreement. The Company considers that it would be able
to better control the spray-painting and processing work directly and
improve the quality of the Company’s products by directly engaging in
such manufacturing processes after purchase of the Sale Assets.

Brilliant Elevator is ultimately controlled by Mr. Kang Baohua, an executive
director and the controlling shareholder of the Company, the transactions
contemplated under the Acquisition Agreement constitutes a connected
transaction for the Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21 February 2012 for
further details.
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Supply and Installation of External Facade of Plants for Brilliant
Elevator

On 22 October 2012, Shenyang Yuanda, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and its respective branches entered into the following
agreements with Brilliant Elevator and its subsidiary respectively:

(i) Shenyang Yuanda and Brilliant Elevator entered into an agreement
(the “First Agreement”) pursuant to which Shenyang Yuanda will
supply and install the external facade of Blocks A, B and C of the
Scientific Research and Experimental Centre of Brilliant Elevator for
an aggregate consideration of approximately RMB19.0 million;

(i)  the Southwest Branch of Shenyang Yuanda and Chongqging
Brilliant Elevator Co., Ltd. (EEEMEFELAR QA “Chongging
Brilliant Elevator”), a subsidiary of Brilliant Elevator, entered into
an agreement (the “Second Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Southwest Branch of Shenyang Yuanda will supply and install the
external facade of the plant of Chongging Brilliant Elevator for an
aggregate consideration of approximately RMB13.6 million; and

(i)  the Northeast Branch of Shenyang Yuanda and Brilliant Elevator
entered into an agreement (the “Third Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Northeast Branch of Shenyang Yuanda will supply and
install the external facade of C2 Testing Workshop of Brilliant
Elevator for an aggregate consideration of approximately RMB1.97
million.

The work to be carried out by the Group under the First Agreement, the
Second Agreement and the Third Agreement is in the ordinary course
of business of the Group. The consideration for each of the above
transactions was determined after arm’s length negotiations between the
parties with reference to the prevailing market rate for work of similar
nature and will be paid in stages in accordance with the payment schedule
set out in the relevant agreement. For the year ended 31 December
2012, the supply and installation of curtain wall products under the First
Agreement, the Second Agreement and the Third Agreement actually
incurred by the Group amounted to RMB8.9 million, RMB8.5 million and
RMB1.5 million, respectively.
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Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt

from the Independent Shareholders’ Approval
Requirement But are Subject to the Reporting and
Announcement Requirements

Purchase of Raw Materials from Shenyang Yuancheng

Prior to the Listing of the Shares of the Company on 17 May 2011 (the
“Listing Date"”), the Group purchased glass from Shenyang Yuancheng
Insulating Glass Co., Ltd. (E[FERFREHEHBR A F]) (“Shenyang
Yuancheng”), a company which is owned as to 80% by Ms. Kang
Fengxian (FZ[Bl{l) and as to 20% by her husband, Zhang Dianhai (58 B/&).
As Ms. Kang Fengxian is the sister of Mr. Kang Baohua, our chairman and
controlling shareholder, transactions between Shenyang Yuancheng and
the Group constitute continuing connected transactions for the Group
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The glass supplied by Shenyang
Yuancheng are used primarily for the construction of the Group’s
manufacturing facilities and are not used in the Group's projects.

On 12 April 2011, the Company entered into a master purchase
agreement with Shenyang Yuancheng pursuant to which we agreed
to purchase glass from Shenyang Yuancheng for a term of three years
subject to an annual cap not exceeding RMB8.0 million and RMB4.5
million and RMB4.1 million for the two years ended 31 December 2011
and 2012 and the year ending 31 December 2013, respectively.

The annual caps of the purchases of glass from Shenyang Yuancheng
were calculated based on the projected demand of glass that we would
purchase from Shenyang Yuancheng with reference to the market prices
for glass of similar specifications.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total purchase from Shenyang
Yuancheng by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to RMB4.5 million.

Supply of Curtain Wall Products to Yuanda Singapore

Prior to the Listing Date, Yuanda Singapore contracted for curtain wall
projects in Singapore for which the Group supplied the curtain wall
products. As Yuanda Singapore is a wholly owned subsidiary of Yuanda
Group, which is owned by Mr. Kang, our chairman and Controlling
Shareholder, the supply of such curtain wall products by the Group to
Yuanda Singapore constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Company has established a wholly owned subsidiary in Singapore to
carry out curtain wall contracting projects. However, the ability to contract
for large-scale public curtain wall projects in Singapore is dependent on
local contracting experience, and given the lack of direct local contracting
experience, the Group has been cooperating with Yuanda Singapore on
the contracting of large-scale public curtain wall projects in Singapore
during the last five years and will continue to supply curtain wall products
to Yuanda Singapore until the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary will be
able to undertake such projects in Singapore on its own.

On April 12, 2011, we entered into a master supply agreement with
Yuanda Singapore (“Yuanda Singapore Supply Agreement”) pursuant to
which it is agreed that we will continue to supply curtain wall products to
Yuanda Singapore for a term of three years. On 15 November 2012, we
entered into a supplemental agreement to the Yuanda Singapore Supply
Agreement with Yuanda Singapore (“Yuanda Singapore Supplemental
Agreement”), pursuant to which the annual cap for each of the year
ended 31 December 2012 and the year ending 31 December 2013 has
been increased to RMB208.0 million and RMB156.0 million, respectively.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15 November
2012 for further details.

The supply of curtain wall products under the Yuanda Singapore Supply
Agreement and Yuanda Singapore Supplemental Agreement were being
provided based on prevailing market prices.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the supply of curtain wall
products to Yuanda Singapore actually incurred by the Group amounted
to RMB183.0 million.

Purchase of Raw Materials from Shenyang Xinwan Fulong

Prior to the Listing Date, the Group purchased building materials and
hardware tools from Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Commerce Co., Ltd. (&EF5
REEERE B AR A=) (“Shenyang Xinwan Fulong”), a company which is
wholly owned by Ms. Kang Fengxian (BEBlL). As Ms. Kang is the sister of
Mr. Kang Baohua, our chairman and controlling shareholder, transactions
between Shenyang Xinwan Fulong and the Group constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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On 12 April 2011, the Company entered into a master purchase
agreement with Shenyang Xinwan Fulong pursuant to which we agreed
to purchase building materials and hardware tools from Shenyang Xinwan
Fulong for a term of three years subject to an annual cap not exceeding
RMB17.0 million, RMB18.5 million and RMB20.0 million for the two years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 and the year ending 31 December
2013, respectively.

The annual caps of the purchases of raw materials were based on the
projected demand for building materials and hardware tools that we
would purchase from Shenyang Xinwan Fulong with reference to the
market prices for such materials.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total purchases from
Shenyang Xinwan Fulong by the Group amounted to RMB4.1 million.

Glass Processing and Assembly Services provided by Shanghai Jianxing
Prior to the Listing Date, Shanghai Jianxing Insulating Glass Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (EBEEHFEEHEEHFR A A]) (“Shanghai Jianxing”)
provided glass processing and assembly services to the Group. Shanghai
Jianxing is a company which is owned as to 30% by Ms. Kang Fengxian
(EEBLIL) and as to 70% by her husband, Zhang Dianhai (3R&/&). As
Ms. Kang Fengxian is the sister of Mr. Kang Baohua, our chairman and
controlling shareholder, transactions between Shanghai Jianxing and the
Group constitute continuing connected transactions for the Group under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 12 April 2011, the Company entered into a master services agreement
with Shanghai Jianxing pursuant to which we agreed to procure glass
processing and assembly services from Shanghai Jianxing for a term
of three years subject to an annual cap not exceeding RMB7.0 million,
RMB8.5 million and RMB10.0 million for the two years ended 31
December 2011 and 2012 and the year ending 31 December 2013,
respectively.

The annual caps of the glass processing and assembly services were based
on the expected growth in demand for insular glass in the market and our
projected demand for such services with reference to the market prices
for the provision of services of a similar nature.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the service fees paid by the Group
to Shanghai Jianxing amounted to RMB5.1 million.
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Continuing Connected Transactions which are
Subject to the Reporting, Announcement and
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
Processing Services and Raw Materials provided by Brilliant Elevator
MSP Branch

Prior to the Listing Date, Brilliant Elevator MSP Branch provided spray
painting, related processing and assembly services, as well as raw
materials, to the Group. As Brilliant Elevator is ultimately controlled by Mr.
Kang Baohua, an executive director and the controlling shareholder of the
Company, the processing services and raw materials provided by Brilliant
Elevator MSP Branch to the Group constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 12 April 2011, the Company entered into a master processing and
raw materials services agreement with Brilliant Elevator MSP Branch
pursuant to which it agreed to provide processing services and supply
raw material to us for a term of three years subject to an annual cap not
exceeding RMB300.0 million, RMB330.0 million and RMB365.0 million for
the two years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 and the year ending
31 December 2013, respectively.

The annual caps were based on the historical transactional amount and
the projected demand for processing services and raw materials by the
Group with reference to the market rates for processing services of a
similar nature and market prices for raw materials.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the processing services and
raw materials provided by Brilliant Elevator MSP Branch to the Group
amounted to RMB33.8 million.

Pursuant to rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, all independent non-
executive directors of the Company have reviewed the above continuous
connected transaction, and confirmed that the transactions were entered
into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. under normal commercial terms or not less favourable terms that
the Group receives or provides services from an independent third
party or obtains from an independent third party; and

3. in accordance with the agreements related to the above continuous

connected transaction, the terms of which are fair and reasonable
and for the overall benefit of the shareholders of the Company.
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The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on the work
performed, the auditors of the Company confirmed to the Board that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

1. have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company;
2. arein accordance with the pricing policy of the Group;

3. have been entered into under the terms of the related agreements
governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the relevant cap allowed by the Stock Exchange
in the previous waiver.

Pursuant to rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing their conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 57 to 60 of this
report. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of 31 December 2012 the Group had an aggregate of 12,532 full-time
employees (2011: 13,009). The Group has sound policies of management
incentives and competitive remuneration, which aligns the interests of
management, employees and shareholders’ alike. The Group sets its
remuneration policy by reference to the prevailing market conditions and
the performance of the individuals concerned, subject to review from
time to time. The components of the remuneration package consist of
basic salary, allowances, fringe benefits including medical insurance and
contributions to pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary
bonus and participation in share options. Details of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 12 April 2011 are set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this section.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT STATUS

The Company received the letters of confirmation of independence issued
by all the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board of Directors was satisfied with the
independent status of all the independent non-executive Directors.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering through which
1,708,734,000 new ordinary shares were offered at a price of HK$1.50
per share. Net proceeds raised by the Company were approximately
HK$2,402,947,000. The ordinary shares of the Company were listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 17 May 2011.

As stated in the Company’s Prospectus dated 20 April 2011 and
supplementary Prospectus dated 5 May 2011, the Company intended to
use the proceeds for expansion of its production capacity, repayment of its
existing debts, investment in research and development, expansion of its
sales and marketing network. As at 31 December 2012, an accumulated
amount of approximately HK$1,702 million of proceeds from the global
offering (of which expansion of production capacity: HK$259 million;
repayment of its existing debts (mainly comprised of the bridge loan of
Standard Chartered Bank): HK$962million; investment in research and
development: HK$261 million; and expansion of its sales and marketing
network: HK$220 million) was utilized. The remaining proceeds will be
used as stated in the Prospectus and the supplementary Prospectus of the
Company.

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS

The Group owns only 49% of the equity interests of our operating
companies, Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting for Buildings Underes
("Yuanda Kuwait”) and Yuanda Qatar Aluminium Industry Engineering
Co., W.L.L. ("Yuanda Qatar”), in Kuwait and Qatar respectively, as both
Kuwait and Qatar laws do not allow foreign companies to own a majority
interest in a local operating company. We had no operation in Qatar prior
to the establishment of Yuanda Qatar and prior to the establishment of
Yuanda Kuwait, we supplied products to a local company for projects it
undertook in Kuwait.

Yuanda Kuwait

Under Kuwait law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority interest in
the local operating company. In order to enable us to govern and control
the financial and operation of Yuanda Kuwait and capture its entire
economic interest from its operations, we entered into an agreement
on 30 March 2009 (the “Kuwait Incorporation Agreement”) with Mr.
Mohamed Tareq Al Essa (the “Kuwait Local Partner”), an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Kuwait Local Partner agreed to be
the facilitator of the Group in relation to the conduct of our business in
Kuwait. Pursuant to the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, the Kuwait
Local Partner has declared that:

o all the capital and assets belong to Shenyang Yuanda;

o he has no share (and hence no voting rights) or the right to get any
share in Yuanda Kuwait or any entitlement to the profit of Yuanda
Kuwait;
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o he is not involved in the day-to-day operation of Yuanda Kuwait,
save for assisting Yuanda Kuwait with coordination with the local
government authorities;

o all works in relation to tendering execution of contracts and
collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Kuwait under the
management of Shenyang Yuanda;

o he would not be held liable for any losses; and

o the above terms in the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is
irrevocable for three years effective from the date of signing and
will be automatically renewed for a similar period unless and until
terminated by both parties with a notice at least 90 days in advance.

Through the above arrangement, the Group is able to control the
operation of Yuanda Kuwait. As advised by our legal advisors as to Kuwait
law, the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is legal, valid and binding to its
parties and constitutes legally binding and enforceable obligations against
the Kuwait Local Partner under Kuwait law and is in compliance with the
laws and regulations of Kuwait. Based on the above, and in accordance
with relevant accounting standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda
Kuwait into its consolidated financial statements as a wholly owned
subsidiary.

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011
and the annual report of the Company in respect of the year ended 31
December 2011, notwithstanding that we consider that we are able to
effectively operate and conduct the business of Yuanda Kuwait under the
present arrangement, we have undertaken that in order to protect the
interests of the Company, we will introduce further measures, including
using our best efforts to amend the terms of the Kuwait Incorporation
Agreement, by entering into supplemental agreements that would
include, among others, provisions that the Kuwait Local Partner will not
transfer any of its shares in Yuanda Kuwait without our prior written
consent, it will vote for any resolutions of Yuanda Kuwait in accordance
with our instruction, and if there shall be any change to the Kuwait laws
or regulations and/or policies such that a foreign entity becomes legally
entitled to hold a majority interest in Yuanda Kuwait, it will promptly
transfer its relevant interest in Yuanda Kuwait to the extent permitted by
the then applicable laws or regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to enable us
to become the majority shareholder in Yuanda Kuwait.

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there will not
be any legal consequences to the Company arising solely as a result of
our failure to enter into the supplemental agreements to implement these
additional measures. However, in order to better protect our interests, we
will search for a replacement for our existing local partner who is willing
to enter into a cooperation agreement with us that will contain the terms
of the abovementioned additional measures which are in line with the
requirements of the Stock Exchange.
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As of the date of this annual report, we are still negotiation with the
Kuwait Local Partner on the implementation of the above additional
measures and we will disclose any measures implemented and/or
replacement of our existing local partner in our future annual reports.

Yuanda Qatar

Under Qatar law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority interest
in the local operating company. In order to enable us to govern and
control the financial and operation of Yuanda Qatar and capture its
entire economic interest from its operations, we have entered into the
memorandum of association of Yuanda Qatar dated 20 January 2008
(the “Qatar Articles”) with Mr. Ahmed Omar Bbhaa Ahmed (the “Qatar
Local Partner”), an independent third party, and an agreement dated
September 16, 2007 (the “Qatar Incorporation Agreement”) entered into
between Shenyang Yuanda and Actrade for Trading & Contracting, a
company of which the Qatar Local Partner was the authorized signatory
with respect to the governing of the operation of Yuanda Qatar.

Pursuant to the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation Agreement,
Yuanda Qatar was established and held as to 51% by the Qatar Local
Partner and as to 49% by Shenyang Yuanda. Pursuant to the Qatar
Articles:

o representatives of Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for managing
the company during the entire term of its existence;

o profits of the company will be distributed as to 95% to Shenyang
Yuanda and as to 5% to the Qatar Local Partner;

The Qatar Articles were supplemented by the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement pursuant to which it was agreed that:

o the Qatar Local Partner will facilitate Shenyang Yuanda to conduct
business in Qatar;

o instead of receiving dividends from Yuanda Qatar, the Qatar Local
Partner will be paid an annual service fee of US$40,000 plus a
scalable commission calculated based on 1% to 5% of the contract
value of projects Yuanda Qatar won with the assistance of the
Qatar Local Partner;

o the dividends declared by Yuanda Qatar may be used to offset and
settle any service fees due or payable to the Qatar Local Partner;

o save for assisting Yuanda Qatar with coordination with the local
government authorities, the Qatar Local Partner is not involved in
the day-to-day operations of Yuanda Qatar;

. all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and

collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Qatar under the
management of Shenyang Yuanda.
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As advised by our legal advisors as to Qatar law, subject to the Qatar
Articles, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is legal, valid, binding and
enforceable under Qatar law, and as the Qatar Incorporation Agreement
and the Qatar Articles are related to the same subject matter, the Qatar
Incorporation Agreement is considered to be an explanatory to the Qatar
Articles under Qatar law. Our legal advisors as to Qatar law has further
advised that the Qatar Articles is a validly binding and legally enforceable
document and constitutes legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligations
of the parties thereto with respect to the governance of the affairs of
Yuanda Qatar and is in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
of Qatar and the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is enforceable against
the Qatar Local Partner.

We entered into this arrangement in Qatar in order to enable us to control
and operate Yuanda Qatar and capture the economic interest from its
operations, and these are supported by the following terms in the Qatar
Articles and the Qatar Incorporation Agreement:

o the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are entitled to similar
responsibilities and authorities in Yuanda Qatar as board members
in other subsidiaries of Shenyang Yuanda;

o the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for
managing Yuanda Qatar during the entire term of its existence and
they may not be removed without the approval from Shenyang
Yuanda;

o resolutions of the shareholders of Yuanda Qatar will only be valid
by approval from a majority of the shareholders holding 75% of the
shares in Yuanda Qatar;

o Yuanda Qatar is managed exclusively by Shenyang Yuanda and its
representatives for the period of its existence. Shenyang Yuanda
and its representatives shall have full and absolute authority and
exclusive right to manage and operate the business of Yuanda
Qatar. Such powers are irrevocable and the Qatar Local Partner may
not intervene in managing the company or bind or commit Yuanda
Qatar in any way whatsoever except with prior written consent
from Shenyang Yuanda;

o Pursuant to the Qatar Articles, the profits of Yuanda Qatar will be
distributed as to 95% to Shenyang Yuanda and as to 5% the Qatar
Local Partner, while the dividends declared by Shenyang Yuanda
may be used to offset and settle any service fees due or payable
under the management of Shenyang Yuanda under the Qatar
Incorporation Agreement.

Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant accounting
standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Qatar into its consolidated
financial statement as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.
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As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011
and the annual report of the Company in respect of the year ended 31
December 2011, notwithstanding that we consider that we are able to
effectively operate and conduct the business of Yuanda Qatar under the
present arrangement, we have undertaken that in order to protect the
interests of the Company, we will introduce further measures, including
using our best efforts to amend the terms of the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement, by entering into supplemental agreements that would
include, among others, provisions that the Qatar Local Partner will not
transfer any of its shares in Yuanda Qatar without our prior written
consent, it will vote for any resolutions of Yuanda Qatar in accordance
with our instruction, and if there shall be any change to the Qatar laws
or regulations and/or policies such that a foreign entity becomes legally
entitled to hold a majority interest in Yuanda Qatar, it will promptly
transfer its relevant interest in Yuanda Qatar to the extent permitted by
the then applicable laws or regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to enable us
to become the majority shareholder in Yuanda Qatar.

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there will not
be any legal consequences to the Company arising solely as a result of
our failure to enter into the supplemental agreements to implement these
additional measures. However, in order to better protect our interests, we
will search for a replacement for our existing local partner who is willing
to enter into a cooperation agreement with us that will contain the terms
of the abovementioned additional measures which are in line with the
requirements of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, we are still negotiation with the Qatar
Local Partner on the implementation of the above additional measures
and we will disclose any measures implemented and/or replacement of
our existing local partner in our future annual reports.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report in this report.

PURCHASE, SALE AND RE-PURCHASE OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2012.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules regarding
the provision of advances by the Company to an entity.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after the reporting period of the Group are set
out in Note 33 to the Financial Statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group in the past
five years is set out on page 188 of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the Articles of
Association of the Company or the ordinance of Cayman Islands,
stipulating that any new shares shall be offered according to the
respective shareholding of the existing shareholders of the Company
when new shares are issued by the Company.

ADEQUATE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of our Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed minimum percentage of public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

AUDITOR
The Company appointed KPMG as the Auditor of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2012. The Company will submit a resolution in
the coming annual general meeting to re-appoint KPMG as the Auditor of
the Company.

By order of the Board
Kang Baohua
Chairman

27 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
JE N 1% BN EM R

KkPMG!

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuanda China
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
"Group”) set out on pages 70 to 187, which comprise the consolidated
and the Company’s statements of financial position as at 31 December
2012, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZEE RS (8)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (conminuep)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2013
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70

Consolidated Income Statement

CRak G Es

For the year ended 31 December 2012
EHE2012612A318LFE
(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”"))
(UARE([ARYE]) BELR)

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net income
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Earnings per share
— Basic and diluted (RMB)

RS
SHERA

EF
HAKA
HARFRA
HEEM
TTHFAX

Rl EIbE
BUERA

BiATFIHE
FiSHt

FERFE

BUF AL FEAG
AAEREER
Eealiiyi

FRFE

BRER
—EAREEARE)

2012 2011
20124 20114F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREETTT

4 11,844,578 10,797,007

(9,886,757) (8,490,988)

1,957,821 2,306,019

5 16,031 23,362

5 5,576 119,119

(256,445) (226,092)

(1,161,984) (1,026,545)

560,999 1,195,863

6(a) (131,543) (156,779)
4(b), 6 429,456 1,039,084
7 (51,546) (213,482)

377,910 825,602

438,491 850,324

(60,581) (24,722)

377,910 825,602

12 0.07 0.16

The notes on pages 79 to 187 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note 27(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
EXEAIl s

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE2012612A3181LFE
(Expressed in RMB)

(UARHE B ENT)

2012 AONN
20125 20114
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥T T AREETTT
Profit for the year FRFHE 377,910 825,602
Other comprehensive income FAHMEZERE
for the year (after tax and (RBREH D ERER)
reclassification adjustments) 11
Exchange differences on translation into BREREINEBHIEN =58
presentation currency (1,883) (8,561)
Cash flow hedge: REMELENF
net movement in the hedging reserve Eapal=A g bt 1,040 (9,918)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZ2HEURFEHELE 377,067 807,123
Attributable to: BN AT HEf
Equity shareholders of the Company /NG &S 439,302 828,890
Non-controlling interests eI AR M AR (62,235) (21,767)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZHEUKEEEE 377,067 807,123
The notes on pages 79 to 187 form part of these financial statements. F7IEEE187E 2T AL FEHBEHREK 2 —HH o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B ISR
At 31 December 2012
F2012F12A31AIEFE

(Expressed in RMB)
(UARE B EL)

2012 PAONN
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETTT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R KM 13 842,930 729,697
Lease prepayments ERES 14 602,914 591,532
Deferred tax assets RIETIBEE 25(c) 214,930 156,931
1,660,774 1,478,160
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =g 16 485,297 457,198
Gross amount due from customers for g FEARIIZARE
contract work 17 4,954,134 3,843,624
Trade and bills receivables B 5 RUGR K R E IR 18 2,494,479 1,817,267
Deposits, prepayments and e - BN REAERK
other receivables 19(a) 493,134 537,773
Cash and cash equivalents R RIREEEY 20() 2,132,343 1,944,470
10,559,387 8,600,332
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and bills payables B I RN ENEE 21 3,896,868 2,671,133
Gross amount due to customers ENEEA&RILI2HEE
for contract work 17 1,090,045 877,246
Receipts in advance TEUERIR 22 136,536 99,734
Accrued expenses and other payables FERTFISZ R E b RE 3R 23(a) 641,669 584,341
Bank and other loans RITREMERR 24(a) 1,801,990 1,312,462
Income tax payable FERTRR1SHR 25@) 190,373 210,450
Provision for warranties RIEBHE 26 36,856 27,739
7,794,337 5,783,105
Net current assets REBEERE 2,765,050 2,817,227
Total assets less current liabilities WEERABAR 4,425,824 4,295,387
The notes on pages 79 to 187 form part of these financial statements. F7IEEF187E 2R FUBHREK 2 —HH -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

BHMBRRRGE)

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank loans RITER
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEAE
Provision for warranties RIS

NET ASSETS FREE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRR G
Share capital &N
Reserves it

Total equity attributable to equity A B RRELAER
shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests RS

TOTAL EQUITY HRERS

2012 2011
20124 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

24(b) 150,000 195,000
25(c) 1,461 1,021
26 79,151 79,319
230,612 275,340
4,195,212 4,020,047

27
519,723 519,723
3,790,962 3,553,562
4,310,685 4,073,285
(115,473) (53,238)
4,195,212 4,020,047

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March
2013.

Kang Baohua
REE

Director (Chairman)

EEXE)

The notes on pages 79 to 187 form part of these financial statements.

BEEE@H2013F3H27 BHEME RIREZ -

Tian Shouliang
HFR
Director

EF

FI9REF18TE MR EMERER 2 —&7 -
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Statement of Financial Position

BT IEAR IR

At 31 December 2012
7201246 12A318
(Expressed in RMB)
(UARE B EL)

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary

Current assets
Prepayments and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Accrued expenses and other payables

Net current assets

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
RtE AR ZRE
REBEE
BT R B LA R
RekReEEY
REBAE

FE &R ST R ELAR 5K
RBEEFE
FEE
BEXREE

A

it

BiEm

15

19(b)
20(b)

23(b)

27

2012
2012

2011
20114
RMB’000
AREETTT

RMB’000
AR®TR

1 1
2,084,585 2,085,482
50,546 256,880
2,135,131 2,342,362
138 194
2,134,993 2,342,168
2,134,994 2,342,169
519,723 519,723
1,615,271 1,822,446
2,134,994 2,342,169

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March

2013.

Kang Baohua

EEE

Director (Chairman)

EBEEXE)

The notes on pages 79 to 187 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
eSS B

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HZE201261283181LFE
(Expressed in RMB)
(UAREBEL)

Attributable to equ\ty shareholders of the Company

Non-
statutory controlling
Share Share  Capital Other  reseves  Exchange  Hedging  Retained interests Total

s

capital  premium reserve ' reserve reserve i ‘ equity

e B AAEE HtEE i EXRE  WhRE  RENE it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’OOO RMB'000 1 RMB'000
ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETT A

Note Note Note Note Note Note

27(0) 27(d)() i )i [ 20 27w

270

Balance at 1 January 2011~ H2011E1A16 248 1 - 30541 190263 210,630 (1749) 14026 460437 898,149  (31471) 866,678

Changes in equity for 2011 201142 BHEH :

Profit/loss) for the year EWFE/ (BR) = - - - - - - 850324 85034 (472) 825602
Other comprehensive income 2z - - - - - (115180 (9918) - 43 2955 (18479)
Total comprehensive income 2 E4TE 258 - - - - - (11,516) (9918) 850324 828890  (21,767) 807,123

Comversion of redeemable  BRTEDABAELR

convertible preference shares 1 332600  (30541) - - - - - 302,060 - 302,060
Capitalsation issue BRfE 376739 (376,739) - - - - - = = = =
Issuance of shares by initial ~~ EERARRERITER

public offering and exercise of  BRRRER( TR

over-allotment option 142,982 2,001,750 - - - - - - 2144732 - 2144732
Share issuance expenses ERhRT - (100,546) - - - - - - (100,546) - (100,546)
Appropriation to reserves PRZRE - - - - 80078 = - (80078 = = =

519722 1,857,065 (30,541) - 80,078 - - (80,078) 2,346,246 - 2,346,246
Balance at 31 December 2011 W201112831R 248 519723 1,857,065 - 190263 290,708  (19,265) 4108 1230683 4073285  (53,238) 4,020,047
The notes on pages 79 to 187 form part of these financial statements. F7OEEE187TE 2 WHRLENBEIRE 2 —HBH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
S REREHRE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

76

FARRRELRS
PRC Non-
statutory controlling
Share Share Other  reserves Exchange Hedging  Retained interests Total
capital premium  reserve  HEEE  reserve  reserve  profits Total  FER  equity
hx  RGEE HiRk R EXRE WEE RENR & s 4Bk
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETZ ARMTn ARETr ARMTR ARETR
Note Note Note Note Note Note
() 2(d)i) (i) 27(d)iv)  27(d)v)  27(d)(vi)
6 ) 7)) i) 2d)y) 2
Balance at 1 January 2012 R012F1B1AZER B ?179,777237 7 1857065 N 17970,727637 N 290708 N !179,72957)7 o 4108 7 1230683 7 4073285 N §573,72§87)7 4(22901{77 )
Changes in equity for 2012: WIE2REET:
Profitoss) for the year EniE/ (58) - - - - - - 438491 438491 (60581) 377910
Other comprehensive income Hih2ENE - - - - (229) 1,040 - 811 (1,654) (843)
Total comprehensive income 2ThEEE - - - - (9 1040 438491 439302 (62235) 377,067
Dividends approved inrespect of the 3t F—FEHEZ &
previous year (Note 27(b)i) (WE27)i) - (0133) - - - - - (0133) - (20133)
Effect on equity arising from the WEX AREH F B R
acquisition of a businss under common 7 /2 #278)
control (Note 28) - - (565) - - - - (565) - (565)
Appropriation to reserves ARERE - - - 5367 - - (5367) - - -
,,,,,, Dl e sae - o b3 s - s
Balance at 31 December 2012 RO12E12A31R 28 519723 1,655728 189,698 296,075  (19,494) 5148 1663807 4310685  (115473) 4195212

The notes on pages 79 to 187 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
eFHEAEE/REXR

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HZE201261283181LFE
(Expressed in RMB)
(UAAREBEN)

2012 2011
20124 20114
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
biaE AR¥T T AREETTT
Operating activities KT
Profit before taxation SR lbE 429,456 1,039,084
Adjustments for: FEIEE
Depreciation and amortisation PrE R 6(c) 67,363 89,873
Interest income ) EUA 6(a) (11,983) (9,027)
Interest expenses and other borrowing costs #8515z & E b EER A 6(a) 150,624 148,435
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME - HEKEEUA R
plant and equipment and land use rights T AR F R 5 (585) (113,619)
Changes in working capital: LEESEE)
Increase in inventories FEHEM (28,099) (90,415)
Increase in gross amount due from RN R F & R T2 4ERaE
customers for contract work (1,110,510) (1,158,709)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 PR I FE U= IR AN (682,231) (577,833)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments and e BERR
other receivables H A FOR > 15,815 25,620
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 R R B ARG AN 1,225,735 878,337
Increase/(decrease) in gross amount due to  JENEF AR L2485 M0,/
customers for contract work CR) 212,799 (6,233)
Increase/(decrease) in receipts in advance JEUk kg, CFid) 36,802 (65,958)
Increase in accrued expenses and FERTR ST I Eo At {5 FRAE 0
other payables 17,150 74,063
Increase/(decrease) in provision for REEEE M, )
warranties 26 8,949 (511)
Cash generated from operations KRERBESE 331,285 233,107
Income tax paid BEFEE 25(a) (129,710) (201,987)
Net cash generated from operating KETETSHRSFE
activities 201,575 31,120
Investing activities REEE
Payments for purchase of property, BEWE - BEREENR
plant and equipment (106,605) (79,866)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BENREFEAR
plant and equipment and land use rights T (e FRE 2 FT1S 5RIR 7,912 173,227
Payments for land use right premiums T35 A FE B TR - (209,963)
Payment for the acquisition of a business U B8 57 4K [B) 428 1) B ZEFS A 3R
under common control 28 (23,877) -
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits EHFEIORAD, (3 ) 20(a) 200,132 (200,132)
Interest received B U F B 12,901 8,025
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEERE(FiA)
investing activities HE R 90,463 (308,709)
The notes on pages 79 to 187 form part of these financial statements. F7IEEE187TEZ T R FHKEIREF 2 —H5H -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

AHRERERCE)

2012 2011
20124 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from new bank and other loans FGIRTT R E A EFRPTIS IR 2,324,420 1,967,462
Repayment of bank and other loans EERITRAMER (1,879,892) (2,283,386)
Proceeds from issuance of shares by initial & X AFARE RITERREL

public offering and exercise of MRAEEATR D 2 PTG RIE

over-allotment option - 2,144,732
Payments for share issuance expenses ST RS - (107,232)
Net increase in advances granted to the FER AR R AR R &

controlling equity shareholder of the HE B AR EFUFIE M

Company and his affiliates 29(a)(ii) (485) (510)
Dividends paid to an affiliate of the controlling & 15 2/ 7452 A% A% B B4 B8 /A 7]

equity shareholder of the Company HIR% B, - (79,302)
Dividends paid to the equity shareholders BERARBREARE

of the Company (201,337) -
Other finance costs paid HEtETrERA (149,875) (137,453)
Net cash generated from RMEFHELERESEHE

financing activities 92,831 1,504,311
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R& &8 &S @Y NS5 384,869 1,226,722
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January A1B1BNBEEREASEEY 20(a) 1,744,338 533,723
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JMEE RS BN, 3,136 (16,107)
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31MENRERESEEY

at 31 December 20(a) 2,132,343 1,744,338

The notes on pages 79 to 187 form part of these financial statements. F7IEEF1GTAZMARILFNBIRE 2 —& 5 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B H5 R R B

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B EHIERI AN BEL)

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 26 February 2010 as an exempted

company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter

22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 17
May 2011. The consolidated financial statements of the Company
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as

the “Group”). The principal activities of the Group are the design,

procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain wall
systems.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and related
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB"”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

AEER

BRAFBEIERAER AR ARR])R2010F2
A26ARERESHERARIEFE2E(1961FF
ZIED - RERE KB RS BES MK
REREER AT - AREIRMHN2011F5A4
17TEBEERBBAER AR AR([BRAT]) L
e RARMEHMBHREESAA R REM
BAR(HEAEE]DMNER - AEEHEE
¥BAR BB 4£E - HERTEERR

e

BEAREFTEER

(a) &REH
It SRR TR IR P A @ A m B PR B 7S
WEEA (TR MBI ELER]) - HES
BEREERE gt ElEEe ((HEgs
AR = |) MR AP A i A (R 51 B B B
BiEER - BRe el ([BEReE
Al ) RAB BRI LA BB R ENEBI R 3 55
REMARR o W EMBIRER TS B PA
BA AR EARE G (T LMW
A1) o REBEFIERMAERG T EERH
e

Bt ERIE RS RMmE T LK
ERTR BRI S R 2R - tE F AR
AEBRARRE RO HAREERER
R RPN - ERAEARFEANERE
B BIPR A T SR R R A S B B S UB
FET R SRR KRNI FH
B8 - BRAEREIRHE20
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments which are stated at their fair
values (see Note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note
3.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED &K EZBRERA A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©)

(d)

Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASB has issued several amendments to IFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Of these, the following development is
relevant to the Group'’s financial statements:

. Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

The amendments to IFRS 7 require certain disclosures to be
included in the financial statements in respect of transferred
financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety
and for any continuing involvement in transferred assets that
are derecognised in their entirety, irrespective of when the
related transfer transaction occurred. However, an entity need
not provide the disclosures for the comparative period in the
first year of adoption. The Group did not have any significant
transfers of financial assets in previous periods or the current
period which require disclosure in the current accounting
period under the amendments.

Business Combinations for Entities Under
Common Control

Business combinations for entities that are under the control
of the ultimate equity shareholder of the Group, Mr Kang
Baohua (the “Controlling Shareholder”), are accounted for as
acquisitions under common control. The assets and liabilities
acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts recognised
previously from the Controlling Shareholder’s perspective, any
difference between the Group's interest in the carrying value
of the assets and liabilities acquired and the cost of transfer
of equity interests in the entity is recognised directly in equity.

2

BEASHEE®

(@

(d)

SR BERNEE

B ERE = RIS IRN IR
BRMELRER] - WEEFTRAEE R
ARBWAGTHHRRMERER - - T
5|28 JH AR SR B A B R

. R S ERIETIRAERT
TR KE-BELHEE

7R 52 [0 488 PR A (AT A AN At AR 1 R AR
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BB TS RS R B TR ERT R E R
BRERGAERBEEZRNCEBRERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Subsidiaries and Non-Controlling Interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those equity interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those equity interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from the equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Subsidiaries and Non-Controlling Interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative equity
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire equity interests in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in the income statement. Any equity interests retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss (see Note 2(k)(i)), unless the investment is classified as
held-for-sale.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in the income statement, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting,
in which case recognition of any resultant gain or loss is in
accordance with Note 2(g).

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Hedging

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on remeasurement of
the derivative financial instrument to fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of
any gain or loss is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity
to be included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of
the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to the
income statement in the same period or periods during which
the asset acquired or liability assumed affects the income
statement (such as when interest income or expense is
recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to the income statement in the
same period or periods during which the hedged forecast
transaction affects the income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from equity
to the income statement immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Note 2(k)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see Note 2(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the
income statement on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated

useful lives

Plant and buildings 30 years
Machinery and equipment 15 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the estimated useful life of
an asset and its residual value are reviewed annually. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress
until it is completed and ready for its intended use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

()

Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research and development activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Leased Assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.

0] Classification of Assets Leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

(i) Operating Lease Charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to the income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
income statement as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to the income statement in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Payment made on the acquisition of land held under
an operating lease is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 2(k)(ii)).
Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of Assets

() Impairment of Investments in Equity Securities and

Receivables

Investments in equity securities and receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on

the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below

its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with Note 2(k)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance

with Note 2(k)(ii).

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of Assets (continued)
() Impairment of Investments in Equity Securities and
Receivables (continued)

For receivables carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the receivable’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the receivable’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
receivables), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these receivables share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for receivables which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for receivables with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the receivable’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of Assets (continued)

(k)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of Investments in Equity Securities and
Receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of receivables whose
recoveries are considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
the receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in the
income statement.

Impairment of Other Assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of Assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of Other Assets (continued)

Calculation of Recoverable Amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of Impairment Losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of Impairment Losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the income statement in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

(1)

(m)

Impairment of Assets (continued)

(ii)  Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see Note 2(k)(i) and Note
2(k)(ii)).

Inventories

Inventories record the cost of fixed price construction
contracts as well as the cost of raw materials waiting to be
assigned to specific construction contracts. Inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost
is calculated at acquisition or direct production cost. The cost
of inventories includes design costs, raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and production overheads. The net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated cost of completion.

When inventories are assigned to specific construction
contracts, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the year in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the year the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the year in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see Note 2(k)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Construction Contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated
with a customer for the construction of an asset or a group
of assets, where the customer is able to specify the major
structural elements of the design. The accounting policy
for contract revenue is set out in Note 2(v)(i). When the
outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract at the end of the
reporting period. When it is probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. When the outcome of
a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the reporting
period are recorded in the statement of financial position at
the net amount of costs incurred plus recognised profit less
recognised losses and progress billings, and are presented in
the statement of financial position as the “Gross amount due
from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the “Gross
amount due to customers for contract work” (as a liability), as
applicable. Progress billings not yet paid by the customer are
included in the statement of financial position under “Trade
receivables for contract work”. Amounts received before the
related work is performed are included in the statement of
financial position, as a liability, as “Receipts in advance for
contract work”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

Interest-Bearing Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in the income statement over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Convertible Preference Share Capital

Convertible preference share capital is classified as equity if
it is non-redeemable, or redeemable or convertible only at
the Company’s option, and any dividends are discretionary.
Dividends on preference share capital classified as equity are
recognised as distributions within equity.

Convertible preference share capital that can be converted to
ordinary share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued on conversion and
the value of the consideration that would be received at that
time do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and an
equity component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible preference share capital is measured at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction costs that
relate to the issue of a compound financial instrument are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in the income statement
on the liability component is calculated using the effective
interest method. The equity component is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the convertible preference share
capital is converted or redeemed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Convertible Preference Share Capital (continued)

(r)

(s)

If the convertible preference share capital is converted, the
capital reserve, together with the carrying amount of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the convertible preference share capital is
redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to retained
profits.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value,
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Employee Benefits

() Short-Term Employee Benefits and Contributions to
Defined Contribution Retirement Plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

The Group's contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are charged to the income statement
when incurred, except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as
an expense.

(i) Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the income statement except to the extent that
they relate to business combinations, or items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

TSR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Income Tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination) and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Income Tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in the income statement as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

TSR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Revenue Recognition (continued)
(i) Contract Revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract
is recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the percentage
of contract costs incurred to date to estimated total

contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will

be recoverable.

(i) Sale of Raw Materials

Other income is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the raw materials
have been transferred to the customers. Other
income excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts. No
other income is recognised if there are significant
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration
due, the possible return of raw materials, or continuing
management involvement with the raw materials.

(i) Rental Income From Operating Leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in the income statement in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(iv)  Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Revenue Recognition (continued)

(v)  Government Grants
Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in the income
statement on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in the income
statement over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

(w) Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
into the functional currency of the entity to which they relate
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
into the functional currency of the entity to which they relate
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

TSR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Translation of Foreign Currencies (continued)

(x)

(y)

The results of operations which have a functional currency
other than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.

Related Parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Related Parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

TSR M ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(z) Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Note 30 contains information about the assumptions and the risk
factors relating to fair value of financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Construction Contracts

As explained in the accounting policies set out in Notes 2(o)
and 2(v)(i), revenue and profit recognition on an uncompleted
project is dependent on estimating the total outcome of
the construction contract, as well as the work done to date.
Based on the Group’s recent experience and the nature of
the activity undertaken by the Group, the Group makes
estimates of the point at which it considers the work is
sufficiently advanced such that the costs to complete and
revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result, until this point
is reached the gross amount due from customers for contract
work as disclosed in Note 17 will not include profit which the
Group may eventually realise from the work done to date. In
addition, actual outcomes in terms of total cost or revenue
may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future years as an adjustment to the amounts
recorded to date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI ()

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(b)

(0

Provision for Warranties

As explained in Note 26, the Group makes provisions under
the warranties it gives on construction of curtain wall
systems contracts, taking into account the Group's recent
claim experience. As the curtain wall systems required by
the customers become more complex, it is probable that
the recent claim experience is not indicative of future claims
that the Group will receive in respect of past construction of
curtain wall systems. Any increase or decrease in the provision
would affect the income statement in future years.

Impairment of Receivables

The management maintains an allowance for doubtful
accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability
of the debtors to make the required payments. The
management bases the estimates on the assessment of
recoverability of individual debtor balance, debtor credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the financial
condition of the debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs
would be higher than estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

TSR M ()

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
long-lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with accounting policy for
impairment of long-lived assets as described in Note 2(k)
(ii). The carrying amounts of long-lived assets are reviewed

be considered

periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever the events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net
selling price and the value in use. In determining the value in
use, expected future cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to the level of revenue and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of the level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or reversal of impairment in
future years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after
taking into account the estimated residual values, if any. The
management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual
values, if any, of the assets regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The determination of the useful lives and
residual values, if any, are based on the historical experience
with similar assets and taking into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

(b)

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain wall
systems.

Turnover represents contract revenue derived from the
design, procurement, production, sale and installation of
curtain wall systems.

The Group's customer base is diversified. There was no
customer with transactions that exceeded 10% of the
Group's turnover for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from the
Group's largest customers are set out in Note 30(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed below.

Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by geographical locations
of the construction contracts. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group's most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following six reportable segments:
Northeast China, North China, East China, West China, South
China and Overseas. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

° Northeast China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the northeastern region of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), which includes
Liaoning, Jilin, Heilongjiang, Shandong, Henan and
Inner Mongolia provinces and autonomous region.

o North China: comprises construction contracts carried
out in the northern region of the PRC, which includes
Hebei and Shanxi provinces, Beijing and Tianjin.

o East China: comprises construction contracts carried
out in the eastern region of the PRC, which includes
Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Anhui and Jiangxi provinces, and
Shanghai.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

TSR M ()

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

(i)

West China: comprises construction contracts carried
out in the western and northwestern regions of
the PRC, which include Sichuan, Yunnan, Guizhou,
Hubei, Shaanxi, Ningxia, Gansu, Qinghai and Xinjiang
provinces and autonomous regions, and Chongging.

South China: comprises construction contracts carried
out in the southern region of the PRC, which includes
Guangdong, Hunan, Fujian, Hainan and Guangxi
provinces and autonomous region.

Overseas: comprises construction contracts carried out
outside of the PRC.

Segment Results, Assets and Liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all assets with the exception
of certain property, plant and equipment and lease
prepayments, deferred tax assets and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include trade and bills
payables, gross amount due to customers for contract
work, receipts in advance, accrued expenses and other
payables and provision for warranties managed directly
by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments. However, assistance provided by one
segment to another, including sharing of assets and
technical know-how, is not measured.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED &K EZBRERA A

BRDEHmE =)

DEBERE ()

o  H: mETEABRALDHE
EITHREARAR - 21Em)
% EEG - BMNE WS B
L EEEREARE - HEY
B4 FERETHELNE  UR
EE -

o EE: mETEEDHLEETHRE
HARMRK  BIEERS  HE
% BERY - SEAREALKE
B o

o ESN: mEREEINEITHRES
RI4ER, -

()  FERE BERAE

SEHE D HERB LD B D BRENE
BRME  ARERRTHRERAR
AT B X A D ARG
MRS BEREBE:

BETYE  BERREARIERN
He BEEHBEERHEMBAT
BEHN  DHEEBEMBEE -
DHBERREZENRMENE
B ENEPARIIZARE - AU
IR~ BT S R E A A FRIA K
ZEDRERERNIRIERE -

WAKRFXTIZE R RBDFPESE
AR EEERNFX M R EZ
FE08 - AT A—ED RS —
BEn BN EN(BEDHEE
K QIR FEtE -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment Results, Assets and Liabilities (continued)
The measure used for reporting segment result is
“adjusted EBITDA" i.e. "adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where
“interest” is regarded as including interest income and
finance costs, and “depreciation and amortisation” is
regarded as including impairment losses on non-current
assets. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s
earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’
remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management is provided
with segment information concerning revenue, interest
income and finance costs related to each segment,
and depreciation, amortisation, impairment losses,
and additions to non-current segment assets used by
the segments in their operations. No significant inter-
segment sales have occurred for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011.

EBERHRE )
DERRE (&)
() PEEE EEREEE)

ARBESHEENFEAIRE
[ 4 FEEBITDA ] - BI[#IBRFIE. »
M- EREBHEINKCHER
Pl EAPIFE IR ABIERNR
WA RBVERRA - Ml e K#E ]
WRABREERDEENRER
18 o BEF|4CTZEEBITDA « NEE
B & F T EE I R 38 FE BB B 5
E’JIEE{’EHHE—*/FEH%% © InE HE
© REMABEB A FIITHBUKA °

PRIE1S B A4S FEEEBITDARY 73 5B 3
BN BERENVERENEHESS
EEURA ~ F @Mﬁz)\&vaﬂaﬁﬁﬁzzs .
DESREZERFEARNIERS
BEMITE - #iE - m@%ﬁu&
NERER - B Z=2012F X201
F12A31HLEFE  BEEREX
D EBEHE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR M ()

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

()  Segment Results, Assets and Liabilities (continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 is set out below.

Northeast

China
R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AE®TT AR¥TR ARETR

4 BEERIBHRSED

(b) DEBHRE (&)

(1)

North East
China China
37 ER

SEEE  BERBEE)
HZE2012F 22011F12 83181t
FE BERHRTAEESZSTR
BERABUDEERETHHEFE
IR 7N & B 0] BB ¥R o B0 A R DI a0
_]? °

2012

20126

West South

China China  Overseas Total

Ef E2 o st
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TT AE¥Tn ARETR ARET:R

Revenue from external ~ REIMBEFHRAR
customers and reportable WA HUA

segment revenue 2,074,135 1,

704,902 1,972,077

1,039,655 1,233,640 3,820,169 11,844,578

Reportable segment profit/ 7§75 78/ (&ig)

(loss) (adjusted EBITDA)  (£X35ZEBITDA) 239,939 192,681 205,693 34,149 82,621  (104,041) 651,042
Interest income H8HA 44 356 534 83 137 5812 7,346
Finance costs AR 1,910 1478 2,439 1,658 606 14,841 22,932
Depreciation and amortisation #7% 244 4,673 9,486 10,844 3,447 4,025 22,273 54,748
Reportable segment assets A/ERHLHEE 2,208,695 1,182,254 2,353,332 1,226,702 1,036,671 3,162,227 11,209,881

Additions to non-current  ERFEIERD
segment assets PEEE
during the year 33,168

169 5,266

115,498 1,155 20,09 175352

Reportable segment TREIHEE
liabilities 1,119,160

776,268 1,276,001

665997 757,762 1,533,933 6,129,121
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI ()

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

() Segment Results, Assets and Liabilities (continued)

Revenue from external  REMBEFMRA
customers and reportable R ATERA B

segment revenue

Reportable segment profit ] B {2 5778

(adjusted EBITDA) ({SAZEBITDA)
Interest income FEMA
Finance costs BERK

Depreciation and amortisation #7% 4

Reportable segment assets JF {2 HEE

Additions to non-current  FERREIERE
seqment assets PIPEE
during the year

Reportable segment TREIHEE
liabilities

Northeast
China

2
RMB'000
AREFL

4

North
China

£
RMB'000
ARETTL

EEBNIHERE#)

(b) DEBHRE (&)
DEEE  EERREE)

(1)

East

China

2R
RMB'000
AREFT

2011
201E
West
China
i
RMB'000
ARETT

South

China  Overseas
£ 8
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTE ARETT ARBTI

1,645,103 1,509,177 191329 1,162,253 947,268 3,619910 10,797,007
222,115 263802 348159 121,897 91,951 156,734 1,204,658
242 577 715 108 350 3,763 5755
2,774 2,425 3,623 1,597 1,749 41,709 53,877
1114 12,229 13,661 4197 5,085 30,644 72,930
1,540,075 1,000975 1729465 929487 663,045 2713819 8576866
49,208 304 5868 1,936 900 24,860 83,076
743550 548416 822,685 547,231 470572 1,291,345 4,423,799
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B RS sRR I 5E (8D
4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 EBEERDIIBHER
(continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (continued) (b) DEIRE(H) N
(i) Reconciliations of Reportable Segment Revenue, (i) A[EHIHESEA - FE - BERE
Profit, Assets and Liabilities I={:0E: )i

2012
20124
RMB’'000
AR¥T T
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue and A ER IR EBUA K
consolidated turnover EOFEERE 11,844,578 10,797,007
Profit F3
Reportable segment profit AJER R EFE 651,042 1,204,658
Depreciation and amortisation TE L EY (67,363) (89,873)
Finance costs BhE KA (131,543) (156,779)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant HENEARSIRAE
and equipment and land use rights BENME - BERZE
classified as unallocated corporate assets LA Rz = Hb {57 FR R S Wt - 117,190
Unallocated head office and ROBEILRATIFRZ
corporate expenses (22,680) (36,112)
Consolidated profit before taxation AR BT 429,456 1,039,084
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR D HPEE 11,209,881 8,576,866
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB REE 156,540 146,196
Lease prepayments FEfSHEE 233,572 238,514
Deferred tax assets RERRIBEE 214,930 156,931
Unallocated head office and ROELRABEE
corporate assets 799,916 1,171,957
Elimination of receivables between 3 BB Ko 57 B B 48 B
segments, and segments and JE W R £H
head office (394,678) (211,972)
Consolidated total assets aftRAEE 12,220,161 10,078,492
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities RAIERROHEE 6,129,121 4,423,799
Bank and other loans RITREME K 1,951,990 1,507,462
Income tax payable FERTPTSRR 190,373 210,450
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 1,461 1,021
Unallocated head office and RoERLRARAE
corporate liabilities 146,682 127,685
Elimination of payables between segments, 43 B & 53 B £ 48 B
and segments and head office FET R 88 (394,678) (211,972)
Consolidated total liabilities At atE 8,024,949 6,058,445
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

WIS mE T (E)
4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 BEIENDIPHRE®)
(continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (continued) (b) DEBEE (&)
(i) Geographic Information (i) HIFEEF]

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s (i) revenue
from external customers and (ii) property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments (the “specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the
construction contracts are carried out. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on
the segment to which they are allocated.

(i)  The Group's revenue from external customers:

The PRC (excluding Hong Kong and Bl (NBEEE MEFT)

Macau) (Place of domicile) (FrEss)
Australia SRR FI TR
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia A L B A= E e
(“Saudi Arabia”) ([ tparnzia )
United Kingdom (“UK") TR ([ 3HE )
United Arab Emirates BTy A& 2 R B
Japan =N
Republic of Singapore (“Singapore”) A0k F£AE ([0 1)
Hong Kong B
Republic of Azerbaijan (”Azerbaijan”) [ ZEFEE HF1E
([P2EFEE |)
Russian Federation (“Russia”) RARHTHEFB ([ AR 72 AT )
Canada mex
Kingdom of Jordan #E FE
Kingdom of Cambodia (“Cambodia”) 3% T B ([ 5458 |)
France EE
Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”)  ENfEfEFaap £ AE
(TENFED)
United States of America (“USA") ERRERE([ER])
Socialist Republic of Vietnam MR AR 2 R AN E
(“Vietnam") ([#m])
Others Hh

TREIBBARE)KEINEE
FH AR (i) 3 ~ B Mk
REMAE((EEFRRBEE])H
IR ERER - KPR E
TR ETEEARMNBEED o
EEEMBE ER IR E RIRE
HATED B D B &0 o

()  AEEREIMEEFHUKA

2012 2011
20124 20114

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

8,024,409 7,177,097
997,844 1,012,933
399,940 82,865
392,459 179,210
365,940 1,041,142
190,501 30,427
190,227 28,395
187,770 96,866
138,242 98,561
118,289 194,141
104,156 14,726

95,610 96,574
93,401 21,340
89,970 58,426
89,639 13,360
79,406 23,670
62,382 64,275
224,393 562,999
3,820,169 3,619,910
11,844,578 10,797,007
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

AR R M e (48)
4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 BEERIBHRSED
(continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (continued) (b) DEEHEE)
(i) Geographic Information (continued) (iii)  HIEEF (E)
(i)  The Group’s specified non-current assets: (iy AEENETIHFRBDEE :

2012 2011
20125 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT

Northeast China =§id 104,958 78,747
North China b 47,419 55,509
East China FEH 139,622 145,302
West China E=cia) 125,891 13,961
South China =R 46,394 49,264
Overseas RN 591,448 593,736
Head office and corporate assets 1w NN R BE 390,112 384,710

1,445,844 1,321,229

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 5 Ht AREAMFRA

2012 2011
20125 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Other revenue HAtr A
Government grants B G 14,323 20,841
Rental income from operating leases LEHERS WA 1,708 2,521
16,031 23,362
Other net income Hit BB A
Net gain from sale of raw materials SHEE RMRHEY F U E 4,991 5,500
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME - BB RREAR
plant and equipment and land use rights T (s AR F U 585 113,619
5,576 119,119
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@) Finance Costs:

Interest on bank advances and
other borrowings wholly repayable
within five years

Bank charges and other finance costs

Total borrowing costs
Interest income
Net foreign exchange loss
Forward foreign exchange contracts:
cash flow hedges, reclassified from
equity (Note 11(b))

6 FAIRE
BRTRIB GG, (FFA) U TR IBEEY -

(a) BB :

ARAFALEEENRTR
R EABEEROF S

RITWE R EAOBE KA

BIEERA
FBUA
SN E5 85 ER
RHEANESR
ReRBEF - BRI
DEE(HET 1)

2012
20124

RMB’000
AR®TR

2011
20114F
RMB’000
ARETT

118,199 103,796
32,425 44,639
150,624 148,435
(11,983) (9,027)
7,664 56,873
(14,762) (39,502)
131,543 156,779

No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the year ended

31 December 2012 (2011: RMBNil).

REZE2012F12 A3 B It FETEEE

AR ERL (20114 « ARBEZT) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR M ()

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)
(b) Staff Costs*:

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans (Note (i)

(B7aE())

6

e IERHMETR
R T HFGR R BIE R

BAIRE 2
(b)

BT
2012 2011
20125 20114F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
1,231,553 1,156,894
95,643 80,615
1,327,196 1,237,509

Note:

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes managed by the local government authorities,
whereby these subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
schemes at rates ranging from 11% to 22% of the employees’
basic salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are entitled to
retirement benefits, calculated based on a percentage of the
average salaries level in the PRC, from the above mentioned
retirement schemes at their normal retirement age.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group established
outside of the PRC participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes managed by the respective
local government authorities, whereby these subsidiaries
are required to contribute to the respective schemes at
rates stipulated by the relevant rules and regulations of the
respective jurisdictions.

The Group does not have any further material obligations
for payments of other retirement benefits beyond the above
annual contributions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI R ()
6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 FARE=
(c) Other Items: (0 H#ER :

2012 2011
20125 20114F

RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT

Depreciation and amortisation® e R s
(Notes 13 and 14) (K1at13K14) 67,363 89,873
Impairment losses on trade and other Z 5 Rk E M EWFORERE
receivables (Notes 18(b) and 19(a)) (Mt 18(b) % 19(a)) 85,118 62,979
Operating lease charges in respect of land,  BREILHL - B MIEF -
plant and buildings, motor vehicles and A R H MR
other equipment# B HER 70,635 63,725
Auditors’ remuneration — audit services ZEEN NS — 2 H RS 7,688 7,534
Research and development costs* R B Ak A 372,967 248,930
Increase in provision for warranties* (Note 26) {R{& &3 hn+(#t5226) 53,287 49,200
Cost of inventories* (Note 16(b)) TFERA(fiat16(b) 9,886,757 8,490,988
# Cost of inventories includes RMB739.4 million for the year # HE2012F12A31B LFEFERA
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB652.9 million), relating BIEEINAE  TE REEMAY - K
to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses, HEMRX « HEREARRIEBEEFRAN
operating lease charges, research and development costs and ARAREET394BE (201145 « AR
provision for warranties, which amount is also included in the ¥652.98B&7T) - M D& FEIRET ALE
respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in Note Exsikizeb) s AEBENSERSA
6(b) for each of these types of expenses. o
7 INCOME TAX 7 FiE%
(@) Income Tax in the Consolidated Income (a) EftREERANFIEHIE

Statement Represents:

2012 2011
20124 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Current taxation (Note 25(a)); BNERFRIE (H75#25(a))
— PRC income tax — R BIATISH 103,486 238,766
— Overseas income tax —BINTEEL 6,147 33,449
109,633 272,215
Deferred taxation (Note 25(b)): RIEFRIB(HT5E250))
— Origination and reversal of temporary — B EREAE S R EE
differences (58,087) (63,587)
— Effect on deferred tax balances resulting — RSB RIE T T A R
from a change in tax rate (Note 7(b)(vi)) SE(MaE7(b)vi) - 4,854
(58,087) (58,733)
51,546 213,482

Iff
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR M ()

7 INCOME TAX (continued) 7 B
(b) Reconciliation Between Tax Expense and (b) FiIERY R EIRE AR R ENEA
Accounting Profit at Applicable Tax Rates: TAREER -

2012 2011
20124 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT

Profit before taxation i AIAE 429,456 1,039,084
Expected tax on profit before taxation, AR AR TR E AT X

calculated at the rates applicable to FrE /B AR EEETIA

profits in the jurisdictions concerned (B1EEG) ~ (i) ~ (i) (iv))

(Notes (i), (i), (iii) and (iv)) 101,686 263,057
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR OS2

(Note (v)) (B1aE (W) 25,178 19,002
Tax effect of unused tax losses REERARB AT IEEE

not recognised T2 22,169 17,268
Tax concessions (Note (vi)) FRIER S (05t (vi) (97,487) (90,699)
Effect on deferred tax balances resulting T R B B) ¥ IR AE R TE 45 2R HY

from a change in tax rate (Note (vi)) (W) - 4,854
Income tax FRS®t 51,546 213,482

Notes: Mzt

(i) No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made, as (i) BERARRRAEBERE BT
the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group incorporated KT E AR REZ=2012F12 318 &
in Hong Kong did not have assessable profits subject to Hong FEMBEASABTENESHOERD
Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: FE - M EREENESHARBE
RMBNil). (20114 « ARBZT) -

(i) The Company and a subsidiary of the Group incorporated in (ii) REESEFMARZBIRARRRE
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, respectively, B ORIRFENEREBEXEST
are not subject to any income tax pursuant to the rules and MR AR RAEE KK B AR
regulations of their respective countries of incorporation. BEBNERFER -

@iy~ The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are (i) AEENTFRHMNBRARREZE2012F
subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% for the year 12 A3V B IEFERE25% (20114 :
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: 25%). 25% ) BV R BN Bl EFTIS Y
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

7

INCOME TAX (continued)
(b) Reconciliation Between Tax Expense and
Accounting Profit at Applicable Tax Rates:

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in countries other
than the PRC (including Hong Kong), the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, are subject to income tax rates
ranging from 8.5% to 34% for the year ended 31 December
2012 pursuant to the rules and regulations of their respective
countries of incorporation (2011: 8.5% to 35%).

The amounts mainly comprised non-deductible entertainment
and other expenses in excess of the tax deductibility allowances
under the PRC tax laws and regulations.

One of the subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC is
registered as a foreign investment enterprise, and according to
the relevant income tax rules and regulations, this subsidiary
is entitled to a 100% relief from PRC Corporate Income Tax in
the first and second years and 50% relief for the third to fifth
years, commencing from the year ended 31 December 2007,
and on the portion of profits this subsidiary earned in relation
to the re-investment it had made in 2007 as a percentage of
this subsidiary’s total paid-in capital.

This subsidiary has obtained approval from the tax bureau to
be taxed as an enterprise with advanced and new technologies
for the calendar years from 2012 to 2013 and therefore
enjoys a preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of
15%. Accordingly, certain deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities had been remeasured using the preferential
PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 15%. In addition to the
preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate, this subsidiary
entitles an additional tax deductible allowance amounted to
50% of the qualified research and development costs incurred
in the PRC by this subsidiary.

7

8% #)
(b) FiER B AR ENE R
TIRLIER © (&)

Hrat - (&)

(iv)

(vi)

BHEES MK ERREDRE
B AEERPE(BEES)  HAEH
SRHEBE RS AINER MK A
MEAREREZE20129F12A3181
FEI8.5% E34% N EM TS K&
MFTSHE (20114 : 8.5%Z£E35%) °

ZELHIZREBRBTEDENER
AT AT HITR R B A N RN AR SE S EL At
F3 o

RNE@MEF—KPBEH BB M AN
i MBEABBASHRBRE
1 ZMB AR BRER2007FH#ITHEIR
ARTHE D R B E Z2007F 12 A
JNALFER  REFLE -FR4F
BIM¥MEH  YNFE=ZEFRFER¥
BN B EMRSH - (EAZMB AR
HNEHRAEEE S -

ZHB AR ESHRERILES201265E
2013F IEWBEFRRIEAR TR EM
WMEIE - BEB15% PR ERSH
EBEBE Al BETECHREEEK
BEEHBAEBECUTECEMSHESR
TEIS%EFHNE - BT ZAPEBE
FISHERRERUIIN ZHBRRIEER
RE 2P BEL NS BRI AT
50% INEHNk &8 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR M ()

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out below:

Executive directors HITES

Mr Kang Baohua REERE

Mr Tian Shouliang HFREE

Mr Guo Zhongshan BARILEE

Mr Wang Yijun FTERELE

Mr Wu Qingguo REBSE

Mr Wang Lihui Eahve - biotas

Mr Si Zuobao (resigned on BB LE(R2012F
30 November 2012) 114308 BT)

Mr Wang Degjiang (resigned on F{&38 5t A4 (7320124
30 November 2012) 11 A308 &)

Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors

Mr Poon Chiu Kwok BB A

Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond AR5t %5 &

Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny THBELE

Directors’
fees
-tk
RMB’000
ARBTT

8 EEM<
ERWSHERIIMT

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

e
EER
BYER
RMB’000
ARBT T

Discretionary

bonuses
BfsTEAL
RMB'000
AR%T R

Retirement
scheme
contributions
BIREHEI

%
RMB’000
ARBTT

Total

@gt
RMB'000
AR%T R

- 273 - 24 297
- 359 - 26 385
- 353 - 26 379
- 335 - 26 361
- 346 - 26 372
- 336 - 26 362
- 258 - 29 287
- 259 - 24 283
163 - - - 163
163 - - - 163
163 - - - 163
489 2,519 - 207 3,215
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SR M ()

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

8 EXMen

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

Retirement

scheme

Directors’ < + Discretionary contributions
fees ERA & bonuses  R{REHE Total
EEme BURMN  BIBEA R #Et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTFIT ARBTFT ARBTT ARETFT ARETT
Executive directors BITESE
Mr Kang Baohua REZELE - - 1,900 - 1,900
Mr Tian Shouliang HFRCE = 150 1,900 24 2,074
Mr Guo Zhongshan AL AL - 156 1,900 24 2,080
Mr Wang Yijun FEFERE - 156 1,800 24 1,980
Mr Si Zuobao BIEERLE - 167 2,402 30 2,599
Mr Wu Qingguo REHLE - 165 1,938 24 2,127
Mr Wang Lihui FIEEAE - 46 1,250 5 1,301
Mr Wang Degiang FiEoa At - 150 500 23 673
Independent non-executive B FEHITES
directors
Mr Poon Chiu Kwok ERBE S (FA20114E
(appointed on AB12BEZRT)
12 April 2011) 124 - - - 124
Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond  #AZ#R 24 (7420114
(appointed on AB12BEZRT)
12 April 2011) 124 - - - 124
Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny A4 A (720114
(appointed on AF12REZE)
12 April 2011) 124 - - - 124
372 990 13,590 154 15,106

There were no amounts paid during the year to the directors in
connection with their retirement from employment or compensation
for loss of office with the Group, or inducement to join. There was
no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year.

AEBERFABERE SRR KERRERM
B E SN ER A R M SRR BE - R
BEERENELRBNEEMME L -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR M ()

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none (2011:
four) is director whose emolument is disclosed in Note 8. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the five individuals (2011:
one) who are not directors are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUREWEH
Discretionary bonuses BYIBIEAL
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R

BEHMAL
hEZEFMALTH - BEEEM AL (2011
F:NB)AES  BENHFHDRKF8E
B WIEEEMZABAT(Q011F : —8)W
RN T

2012 2011
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
6,180 148
3,401 1,894

505 30
10,086 2,072

The emoluments of the employees who are not directors and who
are amongst the five highest paid individuals of the Group are
within the following bands:

(In Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"))
2,000,001 - 2,500,000
2,500,001 - 3,000,000

(B(MET)))
2,000,001—2,500,000
2,500,001 3,000,000

FEBRAZSH BN IEEE 2 A T80 H M
T FATEE :

2012 2011
20125 20114F
2 1
3 —

No emoluments were paid or payable to these employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the year.

10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 10
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of RMB5.9 million (2011: a loss
of RMB35.4 million) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (see Note 27(a)).

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED EXFEZEREMR AT

FRAENZERE N HEMEAMEIES
MBS MMBAAREER BB R RRERIDN
fHiE -

2R B IR PB4 R

AARBREEEAHFED N EEEIBARE
598820114 : BEARKE3IS4EERL)
BIIRAA R B @& (RHEE27@))



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI e ()
11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11 HivZ2mEKE
(a) Tax Effects Relating to Each Component of (a) EREMEERESAERITDORGE
Other Comprehensive Income 7

2012 2011
20124 20114

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Exchange differences on translation into BREREINEBHIEN =58
presentation currency (before and after tax)  (BipI&Fi®) (883 (8,561)
Cash flow hedge: REeREBER -
net movement in the hedging reserve A e e FEE
— Before tax amount I 1,568 (12,311)
— Tax (expense)/benefit —FRIAEFX),Fz (528) 2,393
— Net of tax amount —FHiEE %040 (9.918)
Other comprehensive income Hith 2wk (843) (18,479)
(b) Components of Other Comprehensive Income, (b) BEBEEMEEKSART?  SRE
Including Reclassification Adjustments oA

2011
20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Cash flow hedges: e MELNH
Effective portion of changes in fair value of — FAFAFERAEH T A

hedging instruments recognised during AREBEZHNEIHD

the year 16,330 27,191
Reclassification adjustments for amounts HEFESHRaREEN

transferred to the consolidated B D ERE (M F6(a)

income statement (Note 6(a)) (14,762) (39,502)
Net deferred tax (charged)/credited to REfFEEmRER (G0,

the consolidated statement of ST ABRIET IH S5

comprehensive income (Note 25(b)) (H15E25(b)) (528) 2,393
Net movement in the hedging reserve during A& 2 HENRRIEZHFEA

the year recognised in the consolidated R ESEFRE

statement of comprehensive income 1,040 (9,918)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR M ()

12 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic Earnings Per Share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2012 is calculated based on the profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of RMB438.5 million
(2011: RMB850.3 million) and the weighted average of
6,208,734,000 ordinary shares (2011: 5,455,985,000

ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the outstanding ordinary shares during the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

12 BEREARAREBERR

(a) BREXEF

HE202F12A31BIEEERER
BRIREAQRERGEFBARE
4385 B BT (20115« AR #8503
BEL) RRAFED BT MNETY
#6,208,734,000 A% & i@ % (2011 £ -

5,455,985,000/% & @A) 5HE -

REZE2012F %2011 E12 831 ILFE
BTSN LB E I

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January
Effect of capitalisation issue on 17 May 2011

Effect of conversion of redeemable
convertible preference shares and
the related capitalisation issue on
17 May 2011

Effect of shares issued by initial public
offering on 17 May 2011

Effect of shares issued by exercise of
over-allotment option on 1 June 2011

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at 31 December

M1ATHEBETHE R

R20115E5 817 B#ETERNL
BITHRE

201145517 BE R ATE T
AIEEIRB SRR KRR E AN b
BT E

EEXAMAZEER20114F
S5A17BETRDAIZE
E1T{E B AR AERR 20114
681 BEITRHNTE

RK12 831 B8y NEF L@k
B

6,208,734

10

4,211,501

180,997

941,096

122,381

6,208,734

5,455,985

(b) Diluted Earnings Per Share

There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding during
the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED EXFEZEREMR AT

(b) EREERF

REZE2012F %2011 E12 A31H IEEE

B LB SRR (D BATESD -



Cost:

At 1 January 2011
Additions
Transfer in/(out)
Disposals

At 31 December 2011

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2011
Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2011

Net book value:
At 31 December 2011

Cost:
At 1 January 2012
Additions

Additions through acquisition of
a business under common

control (Note 28)
Transfer in/(out)
Disposals

At 31 December 2012

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2012

Additions through acquisition of
a business under common

control (Note 28)
Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2012

Net book value:

At 31 December 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B
2011E1818
NE

A/ (1)

HE

M2011F12H318

BEHTE !
R2011E181H
FRNITE
HERD

M20119F12A31H

IRERE -
#2011F12H318

2%
M201281 818
NG

BBYES HREHIR

BB (Hi228)

#A/(1H)
HE

M2012912H31H

ZEHTE
201261818

BB S HREHIR

EBRE (Hi228)

FAFE
HERE

20129F12A31H

IREFE
201212 A318H

13 % BERRE

The Group
r5E
Motor
vehicles
Machinery  and other
Plant and and equipment Construction
buildings  equipment JSER  in progress Total
BERET BERRE Hitk EEIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARBTET ARBTT ARETT ARET:R
589,993 310,634 158,833 27,077 1,086,537
53 9,422 28,745 35,784 74,004
7,140 1,979 2,045 (11,164) —
(83,515) (966) (3,826) - (88,307)
513,671 321,069 185,797 51,697 1,072,234
(106,413) (118,017) (87,152) - (311,582)
(26,257) (26,827) (23,762) = (76,846)
42,346 676 2,869 - 45,891
(90,324) (144,168) (108,045) - (342,537)
423,347 176,901 77,752 51,697 729,697
513,671 321,069 185,797 51,697 1,072,234
1,567 11,334 21,766 111,367 146,034
- 30,552 2,958 - 33,510
2,047 4,142 - (6,189) -
(1,094) (1,183) (5,304) - (7,581)
516,191 365,914 205,217 156,875 1,244,197
(90,324) (144,168) (108,045) - (342,537)
- (7,980) (2,218) - (10,198)
(13,497) (17,184) (23,864) - (54,545)
256 1,075 4,682 - 6,013
(103,565) (168,257) (129,445) - (401,267)
412,626 197,657 75,772 156,875 842,930
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

€))

(b)

Change in Estimated Useful Lives

In 2012, the management of the Group reviewed the
estimated useful lives of all of its property, plant and
equipment and concluded that due to the periodic
maintenances carried out by the Group, most of these assets
are in good conditions, and are expected to be utilised
beyond their original estimated useful lives. As a result, the
Group has revised the estimated useful lives of its plant and
buildings from 20 to 30 years and machinery and equipment
from 10 to 15 years.

The change in accounting estimates is accounted for
prospectively from 1 January 2012. The effect of this change
in estimated useful lives is estimated to have decreased
depreciation expenses by approximately RMB22.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

Title Ownership

At 31 December 2012, property certificates of certain
properties with an aggregate net book value of RMB85.8
million (31 December 2011: RMB84.6 million) are yet to be
obtained. Of these properties, the Controlling Shareholder has
undertaken to procure the obtaining of the title documents
of RMB81.2 million (31 December 2011: RMB83.9 million).
If the title documents could not be obtained, the Controlling
Shareholder agreed to indemnify the Group for all the losses
and damages arising therefrom.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED &K EZBRERA A

13 Y% BEERRXE®

(a)

(b)

FERT A Ay

0NRFE - AEEEREEERNEMAY
¥ BERRENEEATE - WR
REARAEECDHZEEEET TS
18 MRBAZFEEMRRL - BFEE
FEABABEERE A AT -
It AEEBBETHRE REFHER ]
EAFEIBR205F I ME30F - Mmikss &
HERIR10FEINE 155 ©

SEHESEE2012F1 A1 HEARE
HE2012F12831BIEFE » B0
BFEHRESNTEBHROMERTHOA
RE23(87T -

e

2012912 A318 » BT REMFEES
ARE858HEIL(2011F 128318 + A
R¥84.6 B E L) MY M RIS EE
ZoHe  IRREDAHREEEAR
81 2ABL(20114F12A31H + AR
83.9B E L) MBS ERE XM - ik
PRSI A R RAEE
WEREMEENMEEEREX -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

14 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

14 FEFHEE

The Group
REE
RMB’'000
ARET T
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2011 AR2011FE1 818 640,274
Additions INE 12,838
Disposals k= (26,699)
At 31 December 2011 720114128318 626,413
Accumulated amortisation: R -
At 1 January 2011 201141818 (25,602)
Charge for the year F N (13,027)
Written back on disposals & B 3,748
At 31 December 2011 20114128318 (34,881)
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 December 2011 72011F12A318 591,532
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2012 201241918 626,413
Additions B 24,200
At 31 December 2012 MR2012F12A31H 650,613
Accumulated amortisation: FEties
At 1 January 2012 20121 A1H (34,881)
Charge for the year FAE (12,818)
At 31 December 2012 12012128318 (47,699)
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 December 2012 72012412 831H 602,914
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI s (48)

14 LEASE PREPAYMENTS (continued) 14 FANSHEE®
Lease prepayments represented land use right premiums paid by TE T @ I AR R B RLALA A B # - #h FT ST - Y
the Group for land situated in the PRC. At 31 December 2012, land THEAELES - R20126F128318 + MK
use right certificates of certain land use rights with an aggregate BEHEEEAARKA2 4B E (2011412
carrying value of RMB42.4 million (31 December 2011: RMB32.2 A318 : ARM3225E ) MG T HifE A
million) are yet to be obtained. Of these land use rights, the BT R RERE - MRS HMFERAEES - &
Controlling Shareholder has undertaken to procure the obtaining IR R B AR FESEEARBISSEET
of the title documents of RMB18.5 million (31 December 2011: RERHF(2011F12A831H : ARYE322E
RMB32.2 million). If the title documents could not be obtained, the EIT) o WARBEEUSEREXT - BERIRERFER
Controlling Shareholder agreed to indemnify the Group for all the NEBEBERYMEENMBEEREBXL -

losses and damages arising therefrom.

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY 15 RHBEARNIRE

The Company
AT
2012 2011

20125 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARMET T

Unlisted shares, at cost LMD R 1 1
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which TREFNHEREENEE  EEXEERE
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. TEZMBRBER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Particulars of
Place and date  registered/
of establishment/ issued and
incorporation paid-up capital
B/ &/ ERTR
RY$HhRAH  BMEREFE

Name of subsidiary

WEAR R

Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium The PRC Registered and

Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. 17 April 1993 paid-up capital of
("Shenyang Yuanda") I United States Dollar
BEEAEETIRERAR 1993547178 ("USD")323,298,200
(IERBEK]) T R AR R
323,298,200% 0
(EZA))
Shanghai Yuanda Aluminium The PRC Registered and
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. 24 March 1998 paid-up capital of
TEERRETRARAR> & RMB15,000,000
1998530248 HMRARKA
AR15,000,0007
Shenyang Haihui Technology The PRC Registered and
Investment Co., Ltd. 20 April 2000 paid-up capital of
BEAEREREERAR HE RMBS5,000,000
2000648208  EMREREA
AR¥S5,000,0007
Yuanda (UK) Co., Ltd. UK Issued and paid-up
BARRBRAR* 30 April 2002 capital of British
HE Pound Sterling
200264 A308 ("GBP")500,000
BETRERRA
500,000%4%
(E:3:1))
Shenyang Yuanda Metal Coating  The PRC Registered and
Co., Ltd. ("Yuanda Metal ") 19 March 2003 paid-up capital of
BHEARETBEZERAT i RMB7,000,000
(TEREE])* 2003F3R198  AMRARERA
AK%7,000,0007

15 REBARINKRE ®)

Proportion of ownership interest

REERLH

The
Group's Held
effective by the
interest Company
B HALFE
BM R 2]

100% =

100% =

100% =

60% =

100% =

Held by
subsidiaries
HKEAT Principal activities

BE TEXE

100% Design, procurement,

production, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

Bt N AEBE
REEBREAG

100% Design, procurement,

production, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems
i
RERERRGR

100% Purchase of materials for

group companies

BEMATEERIE

100% Design, procurement,

assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

REt o REAKBE
RERERRSR

100% Plating and

coating of metals

cBEEREZ
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BT R R ()
15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 15 RAHEBARNRE#)
Proportion of ownership interest
BRERLA
Particulars of The
Place and date  registered/ Group's Held
of establishment/ issued and effective by the Held by
incorporation paid-up capital interest Company subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary B/ s 2R/ ERTR £8z mAAT  HMEAF Principal activities
WEA = EH BY$hRAH  BEREFE BiRER o] B TEEH
Shenyang Yuanhai Trading The PRC Registered and 100% - 100% Trading of sealant
Co., Ltd. 9 January 2004 paid-up capital of HHBES
RHEEEHERAR i RMB1,000,000

200441798 At kAR BA
AR1,000,0007T

Foshan Yuanda Aluminium Industry The PRC Registered and 100% - 100% Purchase of materials for
Engineering Co., Ltd. 9 March 2005 paid-up capital of and provision of services
BILERARETRERAR o RMB20,000,000 to group companies
20053 A9H i R RA REERFBERMHR
ARH20,000,0007 A R RS
LLC Yuanda Curtain Wall Russia Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
BAEBARAR* 23 November 2005 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
ER Russian Ruble installation of curtain
20054 11H23H 280,000 wall systems
BEIRERBA T B AR HE
280,000 & &rEH REFRIERE
Yuanda Aluminium Industry Macau Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
Engineering (Macao), Ltd. 22 June 2006 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
EREFIRORM)BRAR** R Macao Pataca installation of curtain
2006F6A22H 8,028,000 wall systems
BEETRARRA Ret AR HE
8,028,000 REEFRES
Yuanda Australia Pty Ltd. Australia Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
BRBAFTBB RGN ** 5 September 2006 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
BAFT Australian Dollar installation of curtain
200649 H5H ("AUD")1,069,291 wall systems
BERETRARRA REr R ARk HE
1,069,29127T REERRES
(TRl
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SR M ()

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 15 RHBEARINKRE®)

Proportion of ownership interest

BRRERLA
Particulars of The
Placeand date  registered/ Group's Held
of establishment/ issued and effective by the Held by
incorporation paid-up capital interest Company subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary B/ ft/ ERTR 5Bz HAAE  HKEAR Principal activities
WEA = EH RY$HhRAH  BEREFE BiRER o] B FEER
Yuanda USA Corporation USA Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
BAZRBARAR 16 May 2007 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
%E UsD1,000,000 installation of curtain
2007558168  BEIRARRA wall systems
1,000,000%7T Rt R AR HE
REERRES
Yuanda Qatar Aluminium Industry ~ State of Qatar Issued and 100%* - 100% Design, procurement,
Engineering Co., W.LL 11 February 2008 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
BARE (F2F) IR @ Qatar Riyal 200,000 installation of curtain
200826118 BEARMREA wall systems
200,000 FEREER Rt KB AR HE
((FERERA)) REEREZESR
Yuanda Canada Enterprises Ltd. ~ Canada Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
BAMERGRAR 15 April 2008 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
nex USD500,000 installation of curtain
2008F4A15H  BEIRARRA wall systems
500,000%7T Rt R Ak HE
REERRESR
Yuanda Aluminium Industry Germany ssued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
Engineering (Germany) 28 April 2008 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
GmbH (“Yuanda Germany”) =6 Euro100,000 installation of curtain
RARETR(ER)ARRA 2008F4A28F  BEIREYRKA wall systems
(FEAEE]) 100,008 Fet o RE AR BE
REEREES
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SR M (E)

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAR M

Yuanda Aluminium Engineering
(India) Private Limited
("Yuanda India")

ERRETR(AE)BA
BRAR(TEAHRE [)**=

Yuanda Europe Ltd.
BABMER AR

Yuanda Curtain Wall (Hong Kong)
Company Limited
EABIE (BE) BRAR

Yuanda Kuwait General
Contracting for
Buildings Underes

BAMBERAREAR
BREFAR*

Place and date

of establishment/
incorporation
Bt 5 R A

Republic of
India (“India")
28 July 2008

ENRE AR ([EDE )

20087H28H

Switzerland

29 July 2008
It
200847H29H

Hong Kong

14 May 2009
BB
2009454148

State of Kuwait
17 May 2009
R
200954178

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
2/ BRIR
BRRAFHE

Issued and
paid-up capital of
Indian Rupee
("INR")1,476,200
BERETRARRA
1,476, 200E0E &}
(TENEEL])

Issued and
paid-up capital of
Swiss Franc
("CHF")1,000,000
BEIRERRA
1,000,00057 1A
( [mTEs] )

Issued and
paid-up capital of
HK$2,000,000
BEETRARRA
2,000,000/ 7T

Issued and
paid-up capital of
Kuwaiti Dinar
("KWD")1,000,000
BEIRERBRA
1,000,000RtEI5 2 A
(IRBEERRE])

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED EXFEZREMRA T

15 RBLARINKRE ®)

Proportion of ownership interest
BRERLA

The
Group's
effective
interest
£Ez
B gD

Held

by the
Company
HAAR
]

HIHE

Held by
subsidiaries

A

]

100% = 100%

60% =

100% = 1

100%* =

60%

00%

100%

Principal activities

FEXH

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

&Er AR HE
REERRES

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

Ret o EAEBE
REEERZR

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

Rit- R K UE
REERRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

REt o REAKBE
REFRIERL
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SR M ()

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 15 RHBEARINKRE®)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place and date
of establishment/ issued and
incorporation

R/

Held by
subsidiaries
mKEAT Principal activities

Name of subsidiary

WEAR R

Yuanda Curtain Wall (Vietnam)
Co., Ltd.
AR (W) EREL AR

Yuanda Korea Co., Ltd.
BABBEBRAR*

Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., BR
BREAEETIRERAT

BER

Well Galaxy Limited
RERRAF

R3t7 % B A

Vietnam

29 July 2009
il
2009%7A29H

Republic of Korea
9 November 2009
AERE
2009411798

Saudi Arabia

21 November 2009
DR
2009118218

The British

Virgin Islands
25 February 2010
EBRAHS
2010%2 7258

2 Al
Particulars of The
registered/ Group's Held
effective by the
paid-up capital interest Company
2/ BRIR 582 HAAH
BRREFHE BREL "R
ssued and 100% -
paid-up capital of
UsD100,000
BETRARRA
100,000%7T
ssued and 100% -
paid-up capital of
South Korean Won
966,965,000
BEIRARRE
966,965,0007 2
Issued and 100% -
paid-up capital of
Saudi Arabian Riyal
500,000
BETRERRA
500,000 5 1A
23R
Issued and 100% 100%

paid-up capital of
UsD1

BETRBRRA
(E

BE TEXE

100% Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

- S 8
REEBBRL

100% Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

Ret o RE AR BE
REERBESR

100% Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

A R AR HE
REERRES

- Investment holding

RARK
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SR M (E)

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 15 RHBEARINKRE®

Proportion of ownership interest

REERLH

Particulars of The
Place and date  registered/ Group's Held

of establishment/ issued and effective by the Held by

incorporation paid-up capital interest Company subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary B/ s =M/ ERTR £8z mAAT  HMEAF Principal activities
WEA = EH BY$hRAH  BEREFE BiRER o] B TEEH

Eurl Yuanda France France Issued and paid-up capital 60% - 100% Design, procurement,
BAARAR AT+ 18 March 2010 of Euro20,000 assembly, sale and
5 BERTRERRA installation of curtain
2010637188 20,000B07T wall systems
&er R A BE
REEBREAG
Yuanda (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Issued and 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited 23 March 2010 paid-up capital of RERR
BA (BR) ERBRAR B HK$ 1
2010838238 BETRERRA
187
Endai Japan Co., Ltd. Japan Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
EABAGFA G+ 28 April 2010 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
B Japanese Yen installation of curtain
2010644280 ("JPY")354,000,000 wall systems
BETRBRRA Fet W A% BE
354,000,008 7 REEFBER
(rexl)
PT. Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium  Indonesia Issued and 99% = 99% Design, procurement,
Industry Engineering 9 June 2010 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
EAEEIRIERAS ffe UsD150,000 installation of curtain
BRAR*** 2010F6A9H BEIRERBRA wall systems
150,000%7¢ Rat o R MK HE
REERRES
Yuanda Azerbaijan Limited Azerbaijan Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
Liability Company 17 December 2010 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
BEANMEEBEREMCAF WEER Azerbaijani Manat installation of curtain
2010%12R17H 400 wall systems
BEARSRRA Fet R AKBE
400 EFES N REERRER
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SR M ()

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 15 RHBEARINKRE®)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERLA
Particulars of The
Place and date  registered/ Group's Held
of establishment/ issued and effective by the Held by
incorporation paid-up capital interest Company subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary KL/ = i/ ERTR 582 HAAR  @KEAF Principal activities
WEARER RIBERAH  ARREHE BiRER 2] BE IEEHR
Yuanda Curtain Wall Singapore Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 27 December 2010 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and

installation of curtain

EARE ) BRAR = HIK

Singapore Dollar

2010612 A27H (“SGD")1,950,000 wall systems
BEETRARRA Fit o AR HE
1,950,000 138 70 REERRESR
iy o)
Yuanda Mexico S.A. de C.V. Mexico Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
BEABEANEERGRAR * 29 April 2011 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
=P Mexican Peso installation of curtain
201164H29H 1,000,000 wall systems
BEITRERBRA Ret o REAKHE
1,000,000BFEF L3 REERBES
Haihui Curtain Wall (Cambodia) ~ Cambodia Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
Co., Ltd. 3 May 2011 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
BERE(REE) REE Cambodian Riel installation of curtain
BRETDR 201145A83A 4,000,000 wall systems
BRI RARRA Jit o AR BHE
4,000,000R HEER REERRES
Yuanda Brazil Aluminium Industry ~ Federative Republic Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,

Engineering and Trading Import ~ of Brazil paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
and Export Co., Ltd. 7 July 2011 Brazilian Real installation of curtain
RABREETIRES#LO SR F 4t AN R 637,000 wall systems
BRAF* 2011€7R7H BETRERRA Fet R AR HE
637,000EEZ 6 REERERG
Yuanda International Aluminium ~ India Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
Engineering India Private Limited 7 July 2011 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
BREREETREEMA 0E USD540,000 installation of curtain
BRAR 2011%7A78 BREIRARRA wall systems
540,000% 7T Rt R AR HE
REEFBES
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ISR M ()

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 15 RHBARINKRE®

Name of subsidiary

WEAR M

Place and date

of establishment/
incorporation
Bt 5 R A

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
2/ BRIR
BRREFHE

Proportion of ownership interest

The
Group's
effective
interest
£Ez
B gD

REERLH)

Held

by the
Company
HAAT
]

Held by
subsidiaries
B AR
&5

Principal activities

FEXH

Yuanda Italy S.R.L. Italy Issued and 60% - 100% Design, procurement,
BAEANBREMAT** 14 September 2011 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
EAA Euro20,000 installation of curtain
01598148 BEIRARRA wall systems
20,00087T Ret R A% BE
REEBREAG
Shenyang Yuanda Investment The PRC Registered and 100% - 100% Investment holding
Co., Ltd. 23 September 2011 paid-up capital of RERR
BHEARERR AR i RMB10,000,000
011498238 ARERRE
AR#10,000,0007
Shenyang Yuanda Commercial The PRC Registered and 100% - 100% Provision of travel services
Services Co., Ltd. 18 November 2011 paid-up capital of to group companies
ECEARBREARAT >  hE RMB1,500,000 MEEARRERERS
011FENABE  FHMREREAR
AR®1,500,0007T
Yuanda Queensland Pty Ltd. Australia Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
BEARTHARAR 25 November 2011 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
SAAH S AUD800,000 installation of curtain
011E11A258  EETRERBA wall systems
800,00027C Rt R AR HE
REEREES
Shenyang Yuanda Building The PRC Registered and 100% - 100% Production and sale of
Materials Co., Ltd. 14 December 2011 paid-up capital of building materials
RHEREH BB AR i RMB10,000,000 S ERHERM
01MF128148  EMRERREARE
10,000,0007T
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BTSRRI ()

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Particulars of

Place and date  registered/

of establishment/ issued and
incorporation paid-up capital
Name of subsidiary B/ =/ ERTR
WEA " EH RY$HARAH  BEREFE
Shenyang Yuanda Ocean The PRC Registered and
International Logistics Co., Ltd. 30 January 2012 paid-up capital of
RHERNRTERNRERAR > HE RMBS5,000,000
012918308 #fiRARER
AR 5,000,000
Jilin'Yuanda Aluminium Industry ~ The PRC Registered and
Engineering Co., Ltd. 2 July 2012 paid-up capital of
EMBEABRETRERAF > & RMB2,000,000
20126 7R28 A R R A AR
2,000,0007T

**

This company is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the
mainland China.

These companies are limited liability companies established in the
mainland China.

These companies are limited liability companies incorporated outside
of the mainland China.

The Group, through Shenyang Yuanda, owns 49% equity interests in
these companies, where the remaining 51% equity interests are held
on trust for Shenyang Yuanda by individuals resided in the respective
jurisdictions. In accordance with the respective entrust agreements,
these individuals do not have the right to vote or receive dividends
declared or participate in the liquidation of these companies.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company consider the Group
effectively owns 100% equity interests in these companies.

15 REBARINKRE ®)

Proportion of ownership interest

REERLH)

The
Group's
effective
interest
58z
BREL

100%

100%

* K

* KKk

Company

Held
by the

Held by
subsidiaries
B EAR
=5 =5

HAAT

Principal activities

IREH

- 100% Provision of logistic
services to group
companies

ARERRREDRRE

- 100% Design, procurement,
production, sale and
installation of curtain
wall systems

Ret o RE AR BE
REEREES

ZAFRBRPERIOIEBERE -

ZERRRRPERINEREERR -

ZERFRBRPEEIERKINERAF -

AEBIBEBREGRAEEZEAFIM49%K
- MESRS1%BE T RERE RARER A
T ERRXBEREAFE - BRESEEW
o REEMALTEEFLZEARREN
WHBEERKEEHNDEER - FAt - ARFE
ERA ARBEEBR LEHEBZEAFINI100%
fi&AEE o
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B mE T (E)
16 INVENTORIES 16 ®F&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position (a) AHFBRARANTERSRE
comprise:

The Group
REME
2012 2011

20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T

Raw materials B 509,296 473,939
Less: write down of inventories B FEMUR (23,999) (16,741)
485,297 457,198
(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an (b)  REFANER BRI AR PHREER AL
expense and included in the consolidated income statement FRERESBAWMT :

during the year is as follows:

The Group
&S 3
2012 2011

20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARMETTT

Carrying amount of inventories used in AREEERENTEFEER
construction contracts BREE 9,879,499 8,489,607
Write down of inventories FEMUR 7,258 1,381

9,886,757 8,490,988
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BTSRRI ()

17 GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS 17 FEW (EZEFASR TR

FOR CONTRACT WORK
The Group
REEE
2012 2011
20124 201148
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®¥T AREFTT
Contract costs incurred plus recognised WS BRI RE RIFTEER
profits less recognised losses in & R INE R NER
connection with construction contracts in B RE R
progress at the end of the reporting period 27,651,808 19,255,189
Less: progress billings B EE A (23,787,719) (16,288,811)
3,864,089 2,966,378
Gross amount due from customers for EWEF AR ITIZ42%E
contract work (Notes (i) and (i) (BTaE0) i) 4,954,134 3,843,624
Gross amount due to customers for ENEFE&RLIZERE
contract work (Note (iii)) (HTaGi)) (1,090,045) (877,246)
3,864,089 2,966,378
Notes: s

(i) Except for amounts of RMB274.4 million at 31 December 2012
(31 December 2011: RMB168.7 million), all of the remaining gross
amount due from customers for contract work are expected to be
recovered within one year.

(i) Included in the gross amount due from customers for contract work
are amounts of RMB40.0 million at 31 December 2012 (31 December
2011: RMB29.8 million) due from affiliates of the Controlling
Shareholder.

(iii) All of the gross amount due to customers for contract work are
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.

(0]

(iii)

BR2012F12A31BARK 274458 T
(20115128318 : AR¥168.7EE LS
BN HpFTE RN R FAR I RAREEESR

—FRRE -

EWEFARIRETEBRIER2012F12A31
H & fE U B A SR B B A R UE AR 40,08
BT(201145128310 : ARB298FHET) °

BERNEF AR T REFEBEMN —FRNER

RN e
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SR M (E)

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18 EZEURKEWRRERE

The Group
&S 3
2012 2011

20124 20114F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARMETTT

Trade receivables for contract work due from: &R TI2E 5 WK :

— Third parties —%=5 2,492,700 1,854,965
— Affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder — PR RS B B A A 82,050 6,941
2,574,750 1,861,906
Bills receivables for contract work ARIEEKNZE 174,426 128,165
Trade receivables for sale of raw materials HEREMEE 5 UG
due from:
— Third parties = 3,014 1,298
— Affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder — ARG R B A A 1,687 1,514
4,701 2,812
2,753,877 1,992,883
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (Note 18(b)) & : REEE & (H1:E18(b)) (259,398) (175,616)
2,494,479 1,817,267
At 31 December 2012, the amount of retentions receivable from 20129128318 » BIEEE S EKT L ELK
customers included in trade and bills receivables (net of allowance EZEANEKREPRESSE(NB RERE)
for doubtful debts) is RMB407.2 million (31 December 2011: BARKEL072887TQ01MF12A318 : AR
RMB340.7 million). #340.7687T) °
Except for retentions receivable (net of allowance for doubtful BRrA2012F12 A31B AR168.98 &L (2011
debts) of RMB168.9 million at 31 December 2012 (31 December F12A31H : AREE142.7EBTT) By FEWIREE
2011: RMB142.7 million), all of the remaining trade and bills & (IR REREE)IN - EREE S EUE R
receivables are expected to be recovered within one year. In FEWNEZIRIEEAN —FE AU E - BRI —RITHEIE
accordance with general industry practices, credit terms of one to Bl - REWRAE S emMELE T —2MW
two years may be granted to customers for retentions receivable. R -
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SR M ()

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing Analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice date and net
of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

18 EFEWRKEWRERE»
(@) HREADHT
ISR - B 5 RN R R (0
% REERE )RR E A RMER AT -

The Group
REE
2012 2011

20125 20114F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Within 1 month — @A R 613,653 618,410
More than 1 month but less than 3 months B—EABIHR=E 487,245 381,253
More than 3 months but less than 6 months  #&:@=1& A8 7 /<A A 599,692 371,877
More than 6 months BB A 793,889 445,727

2,494,479 1,817,267

Details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note 30(a).

Impairment of Trade and Bills Receivables
Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade and bills
receivables directly (see Note 2(k)(i)).

ARBEEERROFBHNME30E)

(b) EZRWHKRERZEENRE
B 5 UK & R R B A R E B R T E R
BBIRARR - BRIEAREREIEMIREZTIR
SR - BRELBER TREBEER
BB SRR B R & s (R
a2(k))) °
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IR M (8)
18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 18 EZEWARREVERE#)
(b) Impairment of Trade and Bills Receivables (b) EBZEURKREWEENREE)
(continued)

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts account
during the year are as follows:

At 1 January M1A1H
Impairment losses recognised ERERREEE
Uncollectible amounts written off BT 5[] 7R IE A 8
At 31 December M12H318

FARBRBEEEBNT

The Group
AEH
2012 PAONN|

20125 20114F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

175,616 112,656
85,118 64,479
(1,336) (1,519)

259,398 175,616

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s trade and bills receivables
of RMB286.9 million (31 December 2011: RMB220.8 million)
are individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management of the Group assessed
that only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful
debts of RMB259.4 million (31 December 2011: RMB175.6
million) are recognised. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED EXFEZREMRA T

R2012F12A318  AEENE S EW
REEWEEAR®286.98 &t (2011
F12A8318 : AR¥E2208E&E L) EE
RIEEE AIRE o &R E 8 FEYGR T EL
RYBRAENEFEH  MASEEERE
ST A T8 B & AT YR B 3B > 5 Bl FE MR K -
It BRI ERERBARK25948
B (2011128318« AR¥17568
Bin) c AEBEVWERZEEHRTEEM
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
Trade and Bills Receivables that are Not
Impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

(0

18 ESRERUWRREWRERE 2

(@

Neither past due nor impaired I AR 58 B SR A
Less than 1 month past due AEEA R

More than 1 month but less than
3 months past due

More than 3 months but less than
6 months past due

More than 6 months past due

B HER6E A

BHEE1EAEDRIEA

BB E3MEAE L R6(E A

W HIRRE < 8 5 B K EWRE
B
WEERIHA 5 BRBEZ B 5 RYR R
RSB DA

The Group
REEE

2012 2011
201245 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETTT
466,071 402,674
521,434 550,827
439,913 309,039
546,482 327,705
493,042 181,752
2,000,871 1,369,323
2,466,942 1,771,997

Given the nature of the Group’s business, except for
retentions receivable under credit terms granted and
bills receivables not yet matured, all other receivables are
considered past due once billings have been made by the
Group and the customers have not settled the billings within
the credit terms granted, where applicable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to bills receivables from the issuing banks and retentions
receivable from customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

ERAEEEBLE  BRERHBEER
HEMIRE & [ B 7 AR B RO RABSD -
—BFREAAKEELME P L ARRE
RO EEFRR(ER)EEFIR - Qg
HADRE YR TR EL A o

BEARE B TR AR E 2 FE YR B 3R 80 SR 1T RO
BREEREREFRESERH  ZFE
P BB R ACER ©

EaHEYEREZRKKESEREFE
W ZERPEARBEARBERIZE
MRRLER o RIFBELS  ANEREERY
BEARE - ARFERDRE R AIEE
WmEl - BEIEE RS BAN % AR
MERE - AEEYERZSERTEE
[EEERLE
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B mE T (E)

19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 19 & ANREREMERK
RECEIVABLES
(a) The Group (@) A%KHE

2012 2011
20125 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Prepayments for purchase of inventories BEFERNR (M it(@a)

(Note (aa)) 175,309 183,770
Prepayments and deposits for operating leases & &SN MiZE 16,667 42,081
Deposits for construction contracts’ bidding and 54 RIRIZ & B 4% %

performance (Note (bb)) (K15£(bb)) 199,743 208,838
Deposits for purchase of forward BEEREeREe

aluminium contracts 24,589 19,947
Advances to staff Tt 8 T#%K 26,734 32,315
Advances to third parties JBME=FER 23,134 8,870

Derivative financial instruments held as cash ~ #ER @R ELH T ANPTAE
flow hedging instruments — forward foreign € g T B —&HIINEAR

exchange contracts (Note 30(e)) (K1a£30(e)) 13,999 15,699
Amounts due from the Controlling Shareholder & Y32 A% I% 5 & BB/ A A
and his affiliates (Note (cc)) B (K% (cc)) 1,626 1,141
Amounts due from non-controlling interests of f& U7k &= [E 312 Ak i 25 5718
the Group (Note (cc)) (Hiz(cc)) 2,682 2,682
Others HAit 11,099 24,878
495,582 540,221
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (Note 19(a)) & : RERE S (H17519(a)) (2,448) (2,448)
493,134 537,773

Notes: Bt -

(@aa)  Included in the balance are prepayments of RMB24.0 million (aa) ZEHBIEN2012F12A318BARK
at 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: RMB16.0 million) 240BHEL(2011F 128318 « ARE
made to affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder. 16.08 B JT) My M) & A% AR BB 8 8 R 1E

HETERIK -

(bb)  The balance represented deposits placed with customers (bb) ZEBRIEREEREARNARRIZEREY
for contracts bidding and performance of contracts in ARPINNEZES - ZFREHNEH
progress. The deposits will be released to the Group upon the EERERIR(ER) T IEERR
completion of the related bidding and contract work, where £H o
applicable.

(cc)  The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no (c) “EFBEAEEMR 22 EEETEN
fixed terms of repayment. e
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BTSRRI ()

19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@) The Group (continued)
Except for amounts of RMB4.0 million at 31 December 2012
(31 December 2011: RMBNIl), all of the remaining deposits,
prepayments and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

Impairment of Deposits, Prepayments and Other
Receivables

Impairment losses in respect of deposits, prepayments and
other receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against deposits, prepayments and other receivables directly
(see Note 2(k)(i)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts account
during the year are as follows:

At 1 January ®1A1H
Reversal of impairment loss EEEEE
At 31 December MW12A318

19

e BRREMERRZ)

(a) ZA&EE(#E)
BpA2012F 12 A31HWESBARE4L0
BEIL(2011FE12A318 : AREZT)
N HBFTE RS « B E ARG
TEERE A —F IR Bl S iR BRI o

B FBITHREMER ) 5E

7 - BNREEAEYGRHRERED
ERBERAR - FRIFAKEEAREZ
FIRHE S - TRIELERT - BE
EREZRRZS « TR E A YR
#H(RRE2(K))) ©

FRAREREESWT

2012 2011
20125 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
2,448 3,948

- (1,500)

2,448 2,448

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s deposits, prepayments
and other receivables of RMB2.4 million (31 December
2011: RMB2.4 million) are individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired deposits, prepayments
and other receivables related to debtors that were in financial
difficulties. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful
debts of RMB2.4 million (31 December 2011: RMB2.4 million)
are recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

M2012F12 8318 "REEHNKSE -
ERREEMERGIARE245ET
(20114128318 : AR¥24HET)E
BEpEE ARE - ERRENZES « B
3R H At B U SR Y B 35 B IR R R ) (B 7
ABR - Bt DEERBTERERBA
RE24HET(2011F12A8318 : AR
W2 AEETL) - NEBIWERZSEHRTT
BEAEIFR o
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B mE T (E)

19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 19 ®BE - ANRREMERFRE)
RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) The Company (b) 77

2012 2011
201245 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT

Amounts due from a subsidiary (Note (aa)) JEU — R B A mlFkTE

(K7t (aa)) 2,084,053 2,084,480
Prepayments and other receivables TEAT R R H M R 532 1,002
2,084,585 2,085,482
Note: Mt
(aa)  The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no (aa) ZAEAEER 2EHEEETEX
fixed terms of repayment. Hie
All of the prepayments and other receivables are expected to PR TEN R K B At R U FR TR B P — A
be recovered or recognised as expenses within one year. W el iR AR -
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 ReERREEEY
(@) The Group (a) A£H

2012 2011
20125 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand RITEREFRES 2,042,343 1,694,296
Time deposits with banks HRITE TR 90,000 250,174

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated A& HFEIFSARA R RAVIR S K&

statement of financial position ReEED 2,132,343 1,944,470
Less: time deposits with original maturity B REIEAEBA3ME A8
over 3 months TE BITE R - (200,132)
Cash and cash equivalents in the REHRERERNINE R
consolidated cash flow statement REEEY 2,132,343 1,744,338
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B RSaR M e (48)
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 20 RekRELEEW )
(b) The Company (b) AT
2012 2011
20125 201148
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Cash at bank and on hand RIOTEREFRES 10,546 6,838
Time deposits with banks $RITE BATF R 40,000 250,042
50,546 256,880
(c)  The Group's business operations in the PRC are conducted (0 FEENPBREBUARBE - ARE
in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the TINAl B R BmEE  EHTRENESD
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange XA BIETE R INEE HIFTHRR o

restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

21 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 21 BEZEARREMARERE

The Group
M
2012 2011

20125 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREET T

Trade payables for purchase of BETEZE RN :
inventories due to:
— Third parties —E=h 2,271,179 1,905,966
— Affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder — AR AR R BB A A 21,693 9,832
2,292,872 1,915,798
Trade payables due to sub-contractors M2 B ErE SRR 541,452 115,765
Bills payables ENERE 1,062,544 639,570
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost  IZEESEENANEI BRI A E 3,896,868 2,671,133
All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be settled within EBSRNZALEMNZBEERN—FRNEE
one year or are repayable on demand. SBILEKEE -
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AR R M e (48)

21 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 21 ESRERNRERENSEE®
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RREPR - EFRNFRENZERIBA
and bills payables, based on the maturity date, is as follows: RIBRES DATEAT

The Group
REME
2012 2011

20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T

Within 1 month or on demand — @ B Nz E k3R 3,049,499 2,092,453
More than 1 month but less than 3 months HBiE—EAEDR=18A 2 281,454 156,941
More than 3 months BiE =& A 5|28 565,915 421,739
3,896,868 2,671,133
22 RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 22 TEWEE

The Group
FTEH
2012 2011

20125 20114F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT

Receipts in advance for contract work AR ITEEWFIE 136,536 99,734
Receipts in advance represented advances received from customers FEW IR RE AR ARER OB RS
for which the related construction work have not been commenced TREBKEEHZAE -

as of the end of the reporting period.

All of the receipts in advance are expected to be recognised as A TEWFIATERN —ERNERABWA -
revenue within one year.
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SR M ()

23 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 FEstB XN EMENR
(@) The Group @) X£EH

2012 2011
20125 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Payable for staff related costs e B TARRIR A 332,326 351,087
Payable for miscellaneous taxes FETRERY 95,975 83,532
Payable for transportation and JEf B R IR A
insurance expenses 41,800 32,073
Payable for interest expenses FESFI B 3,388 2,639
Payable for construction and purchase of BERBEME BEK
property, plant and equipment BN E N 111,532 72,103
Deposits from sub-contractors DEEZNNEE 32,463 24,093
Others HAth 19,766 13,136
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1ZEE R ANt E SR A & 637,250 578,663
Derivative financial instruments held as REReREH P TAMNITE
cash flow hedging instruments TRT A—RHIINEAS R
— forward foreign exchange contracts (H1:#30())
(Note 30(e)) 4,302 5,157
Other derivatives — forward aluminium contracts EL{th 74 T B — iz #2844 [
(Note 30(e)) (Hiz#30(e) 117 521
641,669 584,341
Except for amounts of RMB1.0 million at 31 December 2012 BRA2012F 12 A31EMARE1.0BETT
(31 December 2011: RMB3.6 million), all of the accrued (20114F12A318 : ARB36BHET)H
expenses and other payables are expected to be settled or BEEIN - PTE FEET R S E M PR SR FE ER
recognised in the consolidated income statement within one R —FRBESRNE fflam R R
year or are repayable on demand. ERIEE -
(b) The Company (b) AT

2012 2011
20125 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Accrued expenses and other payables FERT RS2 R EAth FE SR 138 194
All of the accrued expenses and other payables are expected F A FERT IS R HAD JE T SR TR B I —
to be settled within one year or are repayable on demand. NBESIRERKER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Bz T (8)
24 BANK AND OTHER LOANS 24 RITREMER
(a) The Group’s short-term bank and other loans are analysed as (a) AEEMEHRITEREMEZIRSTOT :
follows:

The Group
rEE
2012 2011

20125 20114F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Bank loans RITER 1,386,990 1,112,640
Loans from other financial institutions REHMSBEBEHNER - 199,822
1,386,990 1,312,462
Add: current portion of long-term bank loans Al : RERIRTITE XK ENEREL 5
(Note 24(b)) (Bt5t24(b)) 415,000 -
1,801,990 1,312,462
At 31 December 2012, the Group's short-term bank and M2012F12 A31H » AEE®REART
other loans (excluding the current portion of long-term bank REMER (T ERARTEROENE
loans) are secured as follows: 2R IR T

The Group
REE
2012 2011

20125 20114F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

Bank loans: RITER -
— secured by property, plant and —UAREERE - BE &
equipment and land use rights of LA B -3 FRRE(E
the Group (Note (i) AR (HTa£0)) 235,000 484,500
— unguaranteed and unsecured — YRR K AR 1,151,990 628,140
1,386,990 1,112,640
Loans from other financial institutions: REEMSEEENER
- unguaranteed and unsecured — IR R R - 199,822
1,386,990 1,312,462
Note: Mzt
(i) At 31 December 2012, the aggregate carrying value of the (i) M20129F12 4310 » BEENARER
secured property, plant and equipment and land use rights of WE « BB MR R L E AR LE
the Group is RMB241.7 million (31 December 2011: RMB386.9 FREERARE241.7887T(2011412
million). A318 : AR¥386.9B&T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B RSaR M e (48)
24 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued) 24 BRITRHEMER 2
(b)  The Group's long-term bank loans are analysed as follows: (b) AEENHRBBITERSTHOT

The Group
£33
2012 2011

20125 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT AREFTT

Bank loans: RITER ¢

— secured by property, plant and —UAREERYE - BB &

equipment and land use rights of AR LA N b {5 FR R 1
the Group (Note (i) AR (H12£0)) 545,000 195,000
— unguaranteed and unsecured — R R 20,000 =
565,000 195,000

Less: current portion of long-term bank loans & : KEIRITE KA ENHEAEE D
(Note 24(a)) (K15E24(a) (415,000) =
150,000 195,000

Note: st -

(i) At 31 December 2012, the aggregate carrying value of the (i)
secured property, plant and equipment and land use rights of
the Group is RMB589.0 million (31 December 2011: RMB219.1
million).

20129128318 » DREHAREE
YE - BE MR A K R 4E
BREEAAREKES89.0HEL(2011F12
A318 : ARK21918ET) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B maR M e (48)
24 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued) 24 RITREMER 2
(b)  The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed as follows: (b) AEENRBBITERSFTOT : (&)
(continued)
The Group's long-term bank loans are repayable as follows: REEMRBPIBITERNERBERAT

The Group

ZS 3L
2012 2011

20125 20114F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIZENR 415,000 -
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFER 150,000 195,000
565,000 195,000
All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried FE SERNERGT BB FI9IR# SHAR AT AR
at amortised cost and are not expected to be settled within W AFEEI TGN —FREE -
one year.
At 31 December 2012, the Group’s banking facilities 2012612 A318 - AEEMRITRBE
amounted to RMB1,070.0 million (31 December 2011: BARE1,070.068T(2011412A31
RMB850.0 million) were utilised to the extent of RMB542.0 H: ARKS50.068T) EBAARE
million (31 December 2011: RMB340.6 million). 542088 7L(2011F12A318 : AR
340.6E&7T)

(c)  None of the Group’s bank and other loans is subject to (o) BEASBEMRITRAMEHERITES
the fulfilment of covenants commonly found in lending BB ME BRI BEANEE
arrangements with financial institutions.

Details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set BERKERRBE AR ERFIEH

out in Note 30(b). FIHAKIFE30(b) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR E ()

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 AR RERANFER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Movements of current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) BHFBRARANBNERBEZ SN T

of financial position are as follows:

The Group
REE
2012 2011

20125 20114F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT

Income tax payable at 1 January W1 A1 BRER TS 210,450 140,222
Provision for income tax on the estimated FREETERBRFERN TSR

taxable profits for the year (Note 7(a)) BE (K1t 7)) 109,633 272,215
Income tax paid during the year FANEER (129,710) (201,987)
Income tax payable at 31 December 12 A31 B8RS HL 190,373 210,450
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B maR M e (48)
25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 SHMBERRARANFAER 2
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EHRELHEEELAE:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities RNE B RERREERIAE E K&
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position BENERED RFRNEEIT

and the movements during the year are as follows:

The Group KEE
Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of the related
depreciation,
and Provision for
government warranties, Remeasurement
grants and Impairment  legal claims of the
related losses  and expected fair value of
depreciation on trade contract derivative
Unused RREE and other losses financial
tax HER Writt  receivables ~ REREE  instruments
losses  FTEEHE down of E) HERE EifitE
Deferred tax arising from: ABA URBFBER  inventories  EftEUEH NRES fTEERIAH Total
BTSIREEENELHE Hags BRIE At HERR AHEE MEE &t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT j ARETT AT ARBTT  ARETRT  ARETR
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1818 4316 37,532 3842 21,758 26,418 (5,082) 94,784
Creditedl(charged) to the consolidated income WA BKRRRETA/ (%)
statement (Note 7(3)) (Hi#7a) 40812 59717 344 14,256 (3842) 1,186 58,733
Credited to reserves (Note 11(b)) WEBTAWEI0) = = = = = 2393 2,393
At 31 December 2011 R2011%12A318 45,128 43,509 4,186 42,014 22,576 (1,503) 155,910

Credited/(charged) to the consolidated income A Gz Zst A/ (114)

statement (Note 7(3)) (W:276) 30,728 (2353) 1814 20,933 6,672 293 58,087
Charged to reserves (Note 11() BB (1) - - - - - (528) (528)
At 31 December 2012 0126128318 75,856 41,156 6,000 62,947 29,248 (1.738) 213,469
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(o)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position:

Deferred tax assets recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position  ¥EIERHIEE B
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RE AR R NFERH
consolidated statement of financial position IRIEF{IAE E

25 SHMBRRRANAER 2

(o)

RE BB R AR

B OB R AREREIERIRE E N
BEMHEE

The Group
REE
2012 2011
20114
RMB’000

ARETTT

2012
RMB’000
ARBTR

214,930 156,931
(1.461) (1,021)
213,469 155,910

(d) Deferred Tax Assets not Recognised

(e)

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(t),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of unused tax losses of RMB306.3 million at 31 December
2012 (31 December 2011: RMB238.9 million), as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity.

Deferred Tax Liabilities not Recognised

At 31 December 2012, temporary differences relating to the
retained profits of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC amounted to RMB2,321.6 million (31 December 2011:
RMB1,666.5 million), of which no deferred tax liabilities in
respect of the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these profits was provided as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that such profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

(d)

(e)

RERELERIBEE

RIEM 20 FTE S FTBER - AKEIL
AFL2012F 12 A31 B A S HFEEE
AR®306.3E8L(20114F12A318 ¢
ARKE238 98 BT ERIELERIBEE -
[REZHE AR ERER R EBRAR R
A 875 FERR B R A AR S5 AT Bh FR A0 IS

18

RERBELEFIBEEE
R2012612A318 » B EAEEH R
BRAAKMRBFENTREEAARE
2,321.6AET(20115F12A318 : AR
#1,666.58 &) HPHERBEBES K
ZEFBREMNHENEERE S L #
# - REZADETEHLSHE AT
BEE  MEABEBEZSMHEITRETER
A RARREDI ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR M ()

26 PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES 26 RISEE

2012 2011
20125 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

At 1 January ®1A1R 107,058 107,569
Additional provisions made ERHEREIMNEE 53,287 49,200
Provisions utilised EBAEE (44,338) (49,711)
At 31 December M®12H31H 116,007 107,058
Less: amounts included under current liabilities & : ¥R%& IR BIEE RSB ERL
at the end of the reporting period k-t (36,856) (27,739)
79,151 79,319
Under the terms of the Group's construction contracts with its REASEBEER P MEESRGR - A
customers, the Group will rectify any defects arising within one to FEHERTHEEPERRR S EEMA
ten years from the date of completion of the construction contracts, REESGRTIMNARR—ETFANELENR
depending on the terms negotiated with each customer. Provision b o Bt BB DR BRERRAI—E+FAT
is therefore made for the best estimate of the expected settlement REVRESRMBBEZSEESRANEHEE
under these construction contracts in respect of construction BRI REGHETMaTR - BESET RAEET
contracts completed within one to ten years prior to the end of the HiW R =L - WENE R EHRRIERRR
reporting period. The amount of provision takes into account the FHR -

Group's recent claim experience and is only made where a warranty
claim is probable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movements in Components of Equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:

At 1 January 2011

Changes in equity for 2011:

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Conversion of redeemable convertible A& o] A A E %R

preference shares

Capitalisation issue

Issuance of shares by initial public
offering and exercise of
over-allotment option

Share issuance expenses

At 31 December 2011

At 1 January 2012

Changes in equity for 2012:

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year (Note 27(b)(ii)

At 31 December 2012

R2011F1818

WNMEERES

ERER
Efb2E e

TERELR

LN RS
RERRHEER

TR RS TR

RHETRX

M2011%E12A318
#2012181A

012FERES

ERER
A2 EE

rEREER

EEEZ LEERE

(Hi#270)0)

M2012%128318

27 EXR - BERRE
RESARIB A NS
AREEMA BHE
R HEREN A BHE
EERBRAD T ERE R AR DS
HBE BRI T

(a)

==&

/=

&R B H3 1) K B
BRT - F

R =

Share Share Capital  Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve
Bx  RODEE  EARE  EXEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTT ARETR ARETE
Note 27(c)  Note 27(d)()  Note 27(d)(ii)  Note 27(d)(v)
o i) '

1 - 30,541 279 (6,254) 24,567

- - - - (35,425) (35,425)

— — = 6,781 = 6,781

- - - 6,781 (35,425) (28,644)

1 332,600 (30,541) - - 302,060

376739 (376,739) - . - _

142,982 2,001,750 - = - 2,144,732

- (100,546) - - - (100,546)

519,722 1,857,065 (30,541) - - 234646

519,723 1,857,065 - 7,060 (41,679) 2,342,169

519,723 1,857,065 - 7,060 (41,679) 2,342,169

- - - - (5,909) (5,909)

- - - 4l - 4

- - - 14| (5,909) (5,838)

- (201,337) - - - (201,337)

519,723 1,655,728 - 7,131 (47,588) 2,134,994
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ISR M ()

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 27 EZX ~ fERRE @)
(b) Dividends (b) RE

()  Dividends Payable to Equity Shareholders of the ()  EBEBERFANENKLGIRERS
Company Attributable to the Year

2012 2011
20125 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Final dividend proposed after the end of R ¥4 HAZR /2 23

the reporting period of HK$0.04 RERE B AT B A%

per ordinary share 0.047%7T(20114F -

(2011: HK$0.04 per ordinary share) TR MAR0.0487T) 201,374 201,337
The final dividend proposed after the end of the R EHAR B B r R B B
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability RIEHRERAAE -

at the end of the reporting period.

(i) Dividends Payable to Equity Shareholders of the (i) EHERE—HEEELENALN A
Company Attributable to the Previous Financial BREIRE + BRFFEZHERIENT

Year, Approved and Paid During the Year

2012 2011
20125 20114F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Final dividend in respect of the previous | —BfE4FE B)REIAL 2
financial year, approved and paid during A% & @A%0.0478 T
the year, of HK$0.04 per ordinary share (20114 : GARE@A%
(2011: HK$Nil per ordinary share) L) BERAEE
O RORAT 201,337 -
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SR M ()

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 27 EZX ~ fERRE @)

(c) Share Capital (0 B’
() Authorised and Issued Share Capital: () EERBFETRA -
2012 2011
201245 20114
No. of shares No. of shares
RHEE ahaE4=
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR FET T FHT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of BREE0NATT
HK$0.1 each EORES TN 12,000,000 1,200,000 12,000,000 1,200,000
2012 2011
20124 20114
No. of shares No. of shares
R{EE RHEE
‘000 RMB’'000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR AR®TR T ARBTT
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
At 1 January ®W1A1H 6,208,734 519,723 10 1
Conversion of redeemable B ] i o)
convertible preference shares A2 H#AE 5 ik - - 1 1
Capitalisation issue B BT - - 4,499,989 376,739
Issuance of shares by initial &KX ARIZEE
public offering and exercise K 1T{FEAZE
of over-allotment option Ao AR fE 21T
fsetn - - 1,708,734 142,982
At 31 December W12A318 6,208,734 519,723 6,208,734 519,723
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and Purpose of Reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share Premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 34 of the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Capital Reserve

The capital reserve at 1 January 2011 comprised the
amount allocated to the unexercised equity component
of the Group’s redeemable convertible preference
shares recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for convertible preference share capital
set out in Note 2(q). Upon the conversion of the
redeemable convertible preference shares into the
Company’s ordinary shares in 2011, the amount was
transferred to share capital and share premium.

Other Reserve

The other reserve represents (i) the aggregate amount
of non-controlling interests acquired by the Group in
excess of the total considerations paid; (i) the surplus/
deficit of the carrying values of the controlling equity
interests in subsidiaries under common control disposed
of over the considerations received; (i) the difference
between the carrying values of the controlling equity
interests in subsidiaries acquired and the considerations
paid under the Group's reorganisation completed in
2010; and (iv) the difference between the carrying
value of the net assets acquired and the consideration
paid for the acquisition of business under common
control (see Note 28).

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED &K EZBRERA A

27 BEX - #ERRE e
(d) REENHEERE®
i) BRORE
PFRRNEERIFASHSARE
$£22F (1961 F B =1BED - 4847
A RIER]) FE3MEEE -

(i)  EXEE

P20 1 A1 BNERNHEE
SEERIEMFE2Q AR AT EiRE
S R AR AR T R AN B & R HBUR FERR A
752 [ 7] B [0 AT S8R B S AR R 1T
DD HEEE - R2011F AT
B EIRE L RER AR DT LB
Bets - R EEE ARG
{go

(i)  EblEeE
HibFERGOAEBATRENIEE
RRESEEDBENARENE
(B REZERESHERR
B AR ARFE A BR E(E B B R E Y
Bk ERL (i) PTIREE I B A A
FIERR AR AR E (E AR B AR B R
2010F FER B M RIR(E 2 &Y
ER R(vATKE T EEREER
Wi 2 AR IS AR E 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and Purpose of Reserves (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

PRC Statutory Reserves

In accordance with the articles of association of the
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC, these
subsidiaries are required to set up certain statutory
reserves, which are non-distributable. The appropriation
to these reserves is at discretion of the directors of
the respective subsidiaries. The PRC statutory reserves
can only be utilised for predetermined means upon
approval by the relevant authority.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations,
with effect on 1 January 2012, a reserve for production
safety is required to be set up and to be appropriated
at a fixed rate on the turnover of the subsidiaries of
the Group established in the PRC. The reserve can be
utilised for expenses or capital expenditures incurred in
connection with production safety.

Exchange Reserve

The exchange reserve comprises foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the presentation
currency. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in Note 2(w).

Hedging Reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
cash flow hedges in Note 2(g).

27 BEX - BERKRE#)
d) fEENHERBENE)
(v) HEEERFR
RIEAEEREMBAFOEHE
RAA ZEHBARBRTET
A5 EESET G o MIRSEE
P BB S KB AR E EBIBR
T o RELET R T A AT A
HRIHLEMTE BT A -

AN - IBRIEE2012F1 B1BREAR
FABRER BUEIR - AEEREINE
NRIERMIRE BN ETE LR
SUHERER c mEEUREIH
BREEREMEANALKER
Fx o

) SNERE
SME R EIRREBINEBH R
RBEVNEEFELMINEERR -
&l IO IR B 2(w) B & 5T
BURBZIE °

(i) 2D
HHRBEEREESTREMZE
20N R MEBE P RMN S
AR ERERD MRS REN
R RSP ALIMTANAR
EBEMNZFHFEHOARLD
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SR M ()

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e)

(f)

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves
(including the Company’s retained profits, if any, and share
premium) available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company is RMB1,655.7 million (31 December 2011:
RMB1,857.1 million). After the end of the reporting period,
the directors of the Company proposed the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2012 (2011: HK$0.04 per ordinary share) (see
Note 27(b)(i)). The dividend has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

Capital Management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for equity
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
equity shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group
defines adjusted net debt as total debt (which includes bank
and other loans, and trade and bills payables) plus unaccrued
proposed dividends, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity other than
amounts recognised in equity relating to cash flow hedges,
less unaccrued proposed dividends.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED &K EZBRERA A

27 BEX - BERKRE#

(e)

()

Al RS
72012412 A318 » A[ED R T ARF]
IR A BB (RIEA QSRR E ()
B)RROREE) BARE1,655.7AET
(2011128318 : AR¥1,857.188
T0) c RIS HIMAE AL - AREESR
FEMBE2012F12A31B I FESR
3 N S R BRI 2.0.04 87T (20114F
FREE@AL0.047%8 L) (RIMFE27(0)()) °
BERETENRERHEEARRAR

18 e

BEXREE
AEEEREANTIREBRAREREER
BEFBECENRE S - BUEEEBEE
A N AR 7% O T B SR B K S — B B IR
BEKARG R E SRR RIRHOHR R
REAMFEEAEREE R -

AEBBEG N ERRN RERRLERE
B NERUEREE KT A RERISHR
=R B REREERRIRHNES R
RIZZ PRS- St ER LA &
HENEHIELAR -

AEEREHEFEHRER LR QRRE
EEHEAREE UM E - ARERE
RRPEFEE RREF(RRERITRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(f)

Capital Management (continued) (f)
During 2012, the Group's strategy was to attempt to maintain

the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio not to significantly differ

from that of the 2011 level. In order to maintain or adjust the

ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

equity shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to equity
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce

debt.

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2012
and 2011 was as follows:

Current liabilities: MENEE

Trade and bills payables B S RENRRENER
Bank and other loans RITREMEFK
Non-current liabilities: JEMBNEE :

Bank loans RITEX

Total debt HRIETS

Add: proposed dividends o BRERE

Less: cash and cash equivalents B ReRBEEERBY
Adjusted net debt RARZFEL

Total equity R

Less: hedging reserve B R

Less: proposed dividends A BRARE
Adjusted capital BERER

Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio RARFEHREAR L=

27 BEX - RERBRE#)

BEREE#E)

20124 AEEMBR AR BEHK
AR FEHHAEAR LK  FEHAENE
20MFRIKFEFBEERER - BHERSEA
BZIALE - AEEATREEAERN T’
RHRESEE « BITHRG  BREERT
BRER - ERFEBRER L EEENRD
&R o

R2012F 20119612 A31 B LA F
BEREHERLENT

The Group
AEH
2012 2011

20125 20114F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT

3,896,868 2,671,133
1,801,990 1,312,462
5,698,858 3,983,595
150,000 195,000
5,848,858 4,178,595
201,374 201,337
(2,132,343) (1,944,470)
3,917,889 2,435,462
4,195,212 4,020,047
(5,148) (4,108)
(201,374) (201,337)
3,988,690 3,814,602
98% 64%
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 27 EZX ~ fERRE @)

162

(f) Capital Management (continued)

f) EBEXEE#®)

The Company

b N

2012 2011

201245 20114F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREETTT

Proposed dividends BURAE S 201,374 201,337
Less: cash and cash equivalents B HERIESEEY (50,546) (256,880)
Adjusted net debt/(assets) KARZER(BE) 150,828 (55,543)
Total equity R 2,134,994 2,342,169
Less: proposed dividends B EURAL S (201,374) (201,337)
Adjusted capital BARER 1,933,620 2,140,832
N/A

Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio BARFEHREALLE 8% TEA

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

28 ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS FROM

AN AFFILIATE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Pursuant to an assets acquisition agreement entered into between
Yuanda Metal, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and
Shenyang Brilliant Elevator Co., Ltd. (“Brilliant Elevator”), Yuanda
Metal acquired the assets and processes related to the metal
coating business from Brilliant Elevator for a consideration of
RMB23.9 million on 29 February 2012 (the “Acquisition Date”).
The assets acquired were machinery and equipment with a pre-
acquisition carrying value of RMB23.3 million. The consideration
was determined by reference to the fair value of the machinery and
equipment valued by an independent valuer.

The assets and processes acquired constitute a business as defined
in IFRS 3, Business combinations, and as the Group and Brilliant
Elevator are both controlled by the Controlling Shareholder, the
above acquisition was accounted for as a business combination
under common control. In accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in Note 2(d), the acquired assets have been accounted for at
historical cost, where the difference between the consideration paid
and the carrying amount of the assets acquired on the Acquisition
Date of RMBO0.6 million has been recognised directly in equity as a
distribution to the Controlling Shareholder.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EAXBHBAIXRS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the material related party transactions entered into by

the Group during the year are set out below.

BRI EM I RR EME D WEANEHIN - A
SENFRFTINEANBB T X850

(a) Transactions with the Controlling Shareholder (a) EEEBRBRRKEHBEARNRKS
and His Affiliates

(i)

(ii)

Acquisition of a Business (1)

As mentioned in Note 28, the Group acquired the
metal coating business from Brilliant Elevator for a
consideration of RMB23.9 million on 29 February 2012.

Other Transactions (i)

Revenue from contract work ARIEKA

Sale of raw materials SHEEKR
Purchase of raw materials BB RME

Rental income from operating leases RETHENFES WA

Disposal of property, plant and equipment B E¥E - BE M & E
Purchase of property, plant and equipment#& & 413 - HE L& E A&

and land use rights T R4
Net increase/(decrease) in non-interest  FE{EJ:E A L&) R5HE 8K
bearing advances granted to #n G ) FaE

related parties

Net decrease in non-interest bearing e A T WERY T B
advances received from related parties OB FERE

Wl —TH T

AP FE28 Bt - NS 2012
F2RAIBBIEMFERWECE
EZER  REAAREK239E8H

JG ©

A5

2012 2011
20125 20114

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

205,765 49,510
1,687 7,455
54,936 158,315
613 1,546

- 120

- 1,971
485 (14,732)
- (15,242)

Annual Report 2012 fFE iR 163



164

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR M ()

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(b) Transactions with Non-Controlling Interests of (b)
the Group

Net decrease in non-interest bearing advances Ta{</BiE A + #5205

29 EXBEEARZ (&)

HEAKBEERERNRS

2012
2012

2011
20114F
RMB’000
ARETTT

RMB’000
AR®TR

granted to related parties A FE - (2,192)
() Key Management Personnel Remuneration © EREEAEHMH

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company as
disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the highest paid employees
of the Group as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

ySEHSEER
RIRFTEISEK

Short-term employee benefits
Retirement scheme contributions

AEEXZ2ERABNFHH - BRERMNE
BB ARNRERRMAIRENARE
BE TR ES AMHFENT

2012 2011
20125 20114F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
4,039 18,636

234 201

4,273 18,837

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 6(b)).

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules Relating to (d)

Connected Transactions

Related party transactions in respect of revenue from contract
work, sale and purchase of raw materials, rental income
from operating leases and non-interest bearing advances
granted to related parties included in Note 29(a) above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
These transactions are disclosed in the Report of the Board
of Directors as required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
except for rental income from operating leases and non-
interest bearing advances granted to related parties which are
exempted from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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SR M ()

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit Risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to gross
amount due from customers for contract work, trade and
other receivables and derivative financial instruments.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of the gross amount due from customers for
contract work and trade and other receivables other than
derivative financial instruments, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The Group
generally requires customers to settle progress billings
in accordance with contracted terms and other debts in
accordance with agreements. Credit terms may be granted
to customers, depending on credit assessment carried out by
management on an individual customer basis. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

Transactions involving derivative financial instruments
are entered into with either banks or recognised futures
exchange in the PRC, and with whom the Group has signed
netting agreements. Given the high credit standing of the
banks and futures exchange in the PRC, the management of
the Group does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet
its obligations.

30

BREBEERAAEE

AEEAXNATEBRBRETELENEE R
BES NEREEREE

NI ER A SR A ) % 5 L Ko A S [ s
LAE TR 5% % b 1 B 75 e\ e i IR R R I 1B D)

(@)

FERRE
AEEHERERREEREEIESA R
TRGE RS REMBIHEATE R R
TE - EREETARERSE WS
EAEEREEEAR -

RENEF AR TIZRBANE S M EM
YRR (PTESBTARINME - B5IE
EHEDEABEPET - ZEHEET
RE P B HFIR B E D8k IR Y
NHEEN - LEBBABEF METPEZ
ELEREEHRNTEEN - ARE—
RERETPREA RGN ELEZREA
RiREHRBERMER - RTERER
@R =P EEETHEENEME - A%
B gEgRELETEES - — KM=
AEEIEEEFPERGEMS -

FRITE SR T AN 5 THEETRBEMR
TRERATNHER SR - MAKE
DHEARETFEAEE D Z - ENTEAER
TEMERZMNEEEENE - A%E
EEERRTSEEARSETHEET
REELE -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(a)

Credit Risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At 31 December 2012, 2.0% (31 December
2011: 2.6%) and 6.1% (31 December 2011: 9.7%) of the
total gross amount due from customers for contract work
and trade and other receivables (excluding the amounts due
from the Controlling Shareholder and his affiliates) were due
from the Group's largest debtor and five largest debtors,
respectively.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as
set out in Note 32(a), the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company
to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from gross amount due from
customers for contract work and trade and other receivables
are set out in Notes 17, 18 and 19.

Liquidity Risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for the short term investment of their own cash surpluses,
where the raising of financings are centrally managed by the
head office of the Group to cover expected cash demands.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30
VALUES (continued)

(b)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
and of the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:

The Group

Within
1 year or
on demand
—FRH
RER
RMB’'000
ARMF T
Trade and bills payables B H RN
ANEEE S 3,896,868
Accrued expenses and other LEERANET 2/
payables measured at PSR = R E At
amortised cost FERISR 637,250
Bank and other loans RITREME R 1,869,064

BREREERAANERZ)

(b)

REBEES R (F)
TRAMRAEERARRBTESRE
BERITEERAENREHHEE BN
TERZIEE - HERAFZERRER
E(BRERARMEHENNEFANL
(T B X)) RS HREHREE AR
IR ) RAEE RARBFERNRNK
SR

2012
20125
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BEAMREESRH
More than Carrying

1 year but amount
less than at 31
2 years December
iR —F Total A12H31H
BORME #st IREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AR®TRT AR®BTR

- 3,896,868 3,896,868

- 637,250 637,250
153,790 2,022,854 1,951,990

6,403,182

153,790 6,556,972 6,486,108
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity Risk (continued)
The Group (continued)

Derivatives settled gross: BHEETETR
4REE

Forward foreign exchange REReRE
contracts held as cash flow Hm T ArRA
hedging instruments HNES ()
(Note 30(d)(i)): (K1EE30(A)0))
— outflow — e
— inflow —mA

Other forward foreign exchange Efth iz ERSNE S A
contracts (Note 30(d)(ii): (HTaE30(d)(ii))
— outflow — i
— inflow —mA

30

(b)

2012
20124

BREREERAANERZ)

REETRMEE)
FEE(E)

Contractual undiscounted cash

(outflow)/inflow

SRABERSRE) T

Within

1 year or

on demand
—FR
HIRER
RMB’000
ARET T

(766,525) (353,368)
769,993 355,852
(320,636) (35,785)
323,849 35,868

More than
1 year but
less than
PACETH
HiB—F
BLRMF
RMB’'000
AR¥T T

More than
2 years but
less than

5 years
BT
BLREF
RMB’'000
AR¥T T

Total

st
RMB’000
ARET T

(95,506) (1,215,399)
95,955 1,221,800
- (356,421)
- 359,717
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity Risk (continued)
The Group (continued)

Trade and bills payables

Accrued expenses and other
payables measured at
amortised cost

Bank and other loans

BHRNTRR
NS

REHRAA ST B R
FERT RIS R A
FEHR

RITREMERK

30 IEREERAAEBEE)

(b) REBEZREMEE)

FEE ()

2011
20114

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ARIAREIRR 7
More than
Within 1 year but

1 year or less than

on demand 2 years
—F Ak iR —F
®RER  BELRmE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARMTTE  ARETRE

Carrying

amount

at 31

December

M12A318

IREE

RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBFRE  ARBT

2,671,133 2,671,133

578,663 578,663
1,575,020 1,507,462

2,671,133 =

578,663 =
1,372,059 202,961
4,621,855 202,961

4,824,816 4,757,258
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 MBEREERAAEBE®

VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity Risk (continued) (b) RBELRMREE)
The Group (continued) AEEF(E)

2011
20114
Contractual undiscounted cash
(outflow)/inflow

SRABERESORE) WA

More than More than

Within 1yearbut 2 years but

1 year or less than less than

on demand 2 years 5 years
—FR A —F TR A R A Total
FIREKR  BIRWE  BIRAF #Et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARBTT AREBTE

Derivatives settled gross: BEEETETA
FEE
Forward foreign exchange HERERE
contracts held as cash flow T B RE
hedging instruments HNE A [
(Note 30(d)(i)): (H1aE30(d)0))
— outflow — R (748,440) (129,798) (12,710) (890,948)
— inflow — i 756,818 126,846 12,078 895,742
Other forward foreign exchange Hfth iz ERSNE &S [F)
contracts (Note 30(d)(ii): (HiaE30(d)i)) :
— outflow — i (401,984) - - (401,984)
— inflow —mA 407,732 = = 407,732
The Company AR 7]

2012 2011
2012% 201146
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash flow cash flow
within 1 year within 1 year

or on demand Carrying  oron demand Carrying
EREHR amount at SEFERE amount at
BHERE  31December HE&H8 31 December
—FR R12A318 —FR R12A318
RRER REE FRER BREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R AR®T T ARETT ARETT

Accrued expenses and other payables B B E {7 138 138 194 194
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 BIEKREERAAEBE S
VALUES (continued)

(@

Interest Rate Risk (c)
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest

bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and

at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk

and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

(i) Interest Rate Profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings at the end
of the reporting period:

2012

RZ= @

REENFEXRBREZREAE

FENF R R EFE R R HNEE

E.EK%EE\, mENERR LA
|§uu °

s

f&

L
gl
nE

o
A
~<

(=R

H

() FFEEE
TRALAEBERARREERR
SEMAE B ARIR R

The Group
AEH

2011

20125 20114

Effective
interest rate
BRA=

%

Fixed rate borrowings: BEENEREE

Effective
interest rate
EL T\j:lj
RMB’000 % RMB'000
AR%T T ARETTT

Bank and other loans SR1T R E M E K 6.00% 315,000 6.27% 619,322
Variable rate borrowings: FEF|IREE :
Bank and other loans BITREMER 5.74% 1,636,990 6.52% 888,140
Total borrowings BEEHEHE 1,951,990 1,507,462
Fixed rate borrowings as ERZREE

a percentage of HEEHRE

total borrowings Bkt 16% 41%
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(@

Interest Rate Risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity Analysis
At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group'’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately RMB13.9 million
(2011: RMB7.3 million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit after tax
and retained profits assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to remeasure those non-
derivative financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
at the end of the reporting period. The impact on the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expenses of such
a change in interest rates. The sensitivity analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2011.

(d) Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
revenue from and costs incurred for contract work, and
purchases of imported materials which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily USD, Euro, SGD, AUD, GBP, CHF, KWD,
Bahraini Dinar (“BHD"), Canadian Dollar (“CAD"), RMB, HK$,
Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR") and JPY.

A significant portion of the Group’s business is overseas
construction contracts, and these contracts are generally
settled in currencies other than RMB. The Group uses forward
foreign exchange contracts to minimise its exposure to
currency risk arising therefrom. The Group’s management
believes that RMB will appreciate against most foreign
currencies in the foreseeable future, and accordingly, the
Group will continue to increase the use of forward foreign
exchange contracts to hedge its foreign currency exposure.

(i) Forecast Transactions
The Group hedges portion of its estimated foreign
currency exposure in respect of highly probable forecast
revenue from overseas construction contracts.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency Risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Forecast Transactions (continued)

The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts
to hedge its currency risk and classifies these as cash
flow hedges. At 31 December 2012, RMB770.0 million
(31 December 2011: RMB756.8 million) of the forward
foreign exchange contracts have maturities of less
than one year after the end of the reporting period,
and RMB451.8 million (31 December 2011: RMB138.9
million) of the forward foreign exchange contracts have
maturities of more than one year after the end of the
reporting period.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had forward foreign
exchange contracts hedging forecast transactions with
a net fair value of RMB6.4 million (31 December 2011:
RMB4.8 million) recognised as derivative financial
instruments.

Recognised Assets and Liabilities

Change in the fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts that economically hedge monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies is
recognised in the consolidated income statement (see
Note 6(a)). At 31 December 2012, the net fair value of
forward foreign exchange contracts used by the Group
as economic hedges of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies was RMB3.3 million
(31 December 2011: RMB5.7 million) recognised as
derivative financial instruments.

In respect of the remaining receivables and payables
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate, the
Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

Exposure to Currency Risk

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the spot
rates at the year end date. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.

30

BEEREERAAEBE®)

(d)

B mERE)
() FEHRZ(E)

(ii)

(i)

AEEFERRPINESREPHE
BRI DEEARSTEL F -
20124128318 - ARK770.0
HET(201ME12A318 : AR
756.8B B L) KERHINES R A
FEBARESHELEALRIR
—F  MABHBMARK4ISI8EET
(2011412 A318 : AR¥1389
BET)RRIINESRMDEE
AREHEEERRBGE—F -

M2012F 128318 » KEEZF R
A EBEAAREAAEITL(2011F
128318 : ARB4A8HE L)
SRIERIRZ 5 R R BiSNE S R B FER
BITESmMTA -

ERREEREE

B EH R LINESHER B E
ENBBENRBINESRNALE
BEEFHTIRAFRERAER(R
MizE6(a)) » B2012412 8318 -
NEBERIEUIINESERNEBE
ENEBENEES RNRINES
BAEFAAEBEAARKEIZIES
7T(2011512A318 : AR¥S5.7H
B NERATESRTEA -

AT BRI B E M AN
B AT EME BRI RS KM
T AEBBRBEEEERIREE
EEE N EINE LR IB R BT
BN - BRFRR T EF A
MK o

RZH R

TRAMAEEEARR BN HREH
REHEAAXRERERNDER
BUINEBFHENDEREERE
BEENEERR - L27/ME -
HREBNTETIAARETIR
EANFRE ARREEXRBE -
W BRI E BN ES NI TR
RASENZYEREELNER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M (E)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency Risk (continued)
(i) Exposure to Currency Risk (continued)
The Group

usb Euro SGD AUD GBP

ST T T R TR
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABE  ARE  ABRE  AR®  ARM
oo# T R

(Gross amount due from EYEFARTRES

30

CHF
gy
RMB'000
A%
i#0

BREREERAANERZ)

(d)

2012
2125
Kwp
NEs
£
RMB'000
AR%
Tr

EEIEEAE D)
(i) ALHEEER (E)

BHD
B
£
RMB000
N
i

EE

CAD RMB
BEXT  ARR
RMB'000  RMB'000

ABB  ARM

o

HKS
AR
RMB'000
ARH
T

DR
HRE
RMB000
ARH
r

Y
A7
RMB000
ARR
n

customers for contract work 119795 14559 37342 2 - - 32769 10692 - - - 48N -
Trade and bills receivables BN RENZE 848,030 11259 67,129 182,882 213931 m3 1224 317 31,608 - 147125 - 192710
Deposits, prepaymentsand %%+ BRFUREMELZ

other receivables - - - - 2540 160,531 - - - - - - -
Cashand cashequivalents ~ BERBLSED 34,198 161 15240 81455 468 - - - 134 4943 - - 2198
Trade and bill payables EIRNGRENSE  (61357) - - - - (3508) - - - - (1) - (a61)
Accrued expenses and ERRRABERR

other payables (22,085) @) - - - - - - - - 1) - -
Gross exposure arisng from 2 AE R AR

recognised assets and liabiities & 4% 918581 127,294 119711 264357 216939 157246 33993 11,009 32932 49434 74692 348712 16851
Notional amounts of forward ~ BfESES B4 EISNE

foreign exchange contracts ~ AF%E4E

used as economic hedges (296,827)  (24,994) - (637) - (2499) - - (8651) - - - -
Netexposurearisng from ~ BEBEERABELH

recognised assets and el

fiabilities 621,75 102,300 119711 263720 216939 132,256 33993 11,009 24281 49434 74692 34872 16,851
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 MBEREERAABE®

VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency Risk (continued) (d) E¥EbEE)
(i) Exposure to Currency Risk (continued) (i)  AZETEE R (E)
The Group (continued) REE(E)

Euro GBP BB RMB HKS DR
BT HI R 28 HDAD MeAT AR AL HERE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RM RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
N ) ARE  ARE ; ARE  ARK ARE
o T T I 5y T o
Gross amount due from EYEPARTRER
customers for contract work 76,027 19036 2539% 2,165 - - - 10522 658 - - 9,534
Trade and bils receivables BHRNT RS 795847 96,414 5 212619 3704 59706 8637 182 9411 - )54 T
Deposits, prepayments and e - B RAMRY
other receivables - - - - 2428 112517 - - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEN 52,175 991 - 630 138 = = = B 250520 - =
Trade and bills payables BRI RENEE (60,086)  (44,062) @37) - - (339 - = - - )] -
Accrued expenses and other payables  FEsHRIS R E A EE (25,140) (22) = = = = = = = = = =
(Gross exposure arising from BRAEERABELN
recognised assets and liabilities Bk 838843 72357 2538 221183 39610 168884 8637 10704 10092 25050 2533 12,308
Notional amounts of forward R RS REDINERR
foreign exchange contracts 2548
Used as economic hedges (359,897) - - - - (40728) - - (591) - - -
Net exposure arising from BRTEERABELN
recognised assets and liabilities ERFE 478946 72357 25382 221183 39610 12815 8637 10704 9501 25050 2533 12,308
The Company ViN/NS)|

RMB

ARY
2012 2011

201245 20114F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARMETTT

Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFEY 49,287 250,373
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M (E)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 MEEBEERAAEBE®
VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency Risk (continued) (d) E¥mEbsE)
(iv)  Sensitivity Analysis (iv)  EEESHT
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TEBRYAEENRE BN

in the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period had changed at that date, assuming
all other risk variables remained constant.

RS E AR NS E R % B
BAREY  BRAEEMTEE
REERHTE - REEHHET
HRIRBFIRI BN 2T -

2012
20124

2011
20114

usb
Euro
SGD
AUD
GBP
CHF
KWD
BHD
CAD
RMB
HKS
IDR

JPY

%5
BT
s
o

g
el
MRS S0
EHEHE

Elfef&

Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign

exchange
rates
SMNEEEE =
EF ()

5%
(5%)
10%
(10%)
5%
(5%)
10%
(10%)
5%
(5%)
10%
(10%)
5%
(5%)
5%
(5%)
5%
(5%)
5%
(5%)
5%
(5%)
10%
(10%)
15%
(15%)

Increase/
(decrease) in
profit after
tax and
retained
profits
HEFBER
REFE
#n,Cr2)
RMB’000
AR¥T T

26,545
(26,545)
8,828
(8,828)
5,088
(5,088)
22,416
(22,416)
9,220
(9,220)
11,242
(11,242)
1,445
(1,445)
468
(468)
1,032
(1,032)
2,472
(2,472)
3,174
(3,174)
2,964
(2,964)
2,149
(2,149)

Increase/
(decrease)

in foreign
exchange
rates
SN
EF TR

5%
(5%)
15%
(15%)
10%
(10%)
15%
(15%)
10%
(10%)
30%
(30%)
5%
(5%)
5%
(5%)
15%
(15%)
5%
(5%)
5%
(5%)
5%
(5%)

Increase/
(decrease) in
profit after
tax and
retained
profits

T i& AE &
REBAE
i, Crd)
RMB’000
ARETTT

19,666
(19,666)
8,999
(8,999)
2,077
(2,077)
27,144
(27,144)
3,241
(3,241)
31,455
(31,455)
353
(353)
438
(438)
1,165
(1,165)
12,525
(12,525)
104
(104)
503
(503)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency Risk (continued)

(iv)

Sensitivity Analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and
retained profits measured in their respective functional
currencies, translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to remeasure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency. The
sensitivity analysis is performed on the same basis for
2011.

30

EEREERAAEBER

(d)

B Ekg(E)
(iv) SRR (E)

EREFNDITEREGHELE
EEEASANDERRTENR
BAERREMNBONSEE - T)
BREPRERT BERANEXRGE
BARYE - H25IM% -

BURE NIRRT ERINEE =
BHUEHFTEAREREMS A
SENIRE PRAER BAZIMNER
SNEMTE  BEAEFRASE
RARINEEE B IAIM BB EHEN
REB QR BN RN ERK - 7
WA BEBBESIINEHON R
RRASEMEINEEMELNZE
# o BRE DT TR E2011 5648
R EAEHETT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR M ()

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair Values

(i) Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy defined in IFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
in active markets for similar financial instruments,
or using valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant
input is not based on observable market data.

The Group’s financial instruments carried at fair value
at the end of the reporting period are all measured
under Level 1.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED EXFEZEREMR AT

30

EEREERAAEBEZ)

(e)

D REE
()  EAAEE R TA

TREVRREHHEEBRER
BEf RSB TReM T A
BEMATNARBERBZAR
BEAENSHTANEDE ™
EeMIANOABEDTE2ER
HZARBEMENEBERNE
RELBASESLE - ZSERA
FEMWT

o FEERE): ERERE
BT ARERETISMMER
CREAB)FENRAEE -

o H2E:ERBAUERTAN
BTG RERRERE
MBERBARBERX
REERAUBEMSBES
HHEERTDHEAREE -

o H3B(HERE) : EREMEM
EXRBABBERYIFERNATE
KRMSEBEHNEERD
SHEMAAEE-

RBEHEMEER - ARERAR
BEENSBIAESE 1 ET
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI ()

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 MBEBEERAABE®

VALUES (continued)
(e) Fair Values (continued) (e) AAREEGE)
() Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value () HRAREES RN TAGE)
(continued)

The Group
REE
Level 1
F1E

2012 2011
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREETFTT

Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments: PTHEERIA
— Forward foreign exchange contracts —mHBINE A4
(Note 19(a)) (Hia£19()) 13,999 15,699
Liabilities aE
Derivative financial instruments: PTHESmIA :
— Forward foreign exchange contracts — iR HASNES 4
(Note 23(a)) (BfiE23(a)) 4,302 5,157
— Forward aluminium contracts —RHARES A
(Note 23(a)) (Ht:£23(a)) 117 521
4,419 5,678
(i) Fair Values of Financial Instruments Carried at other (i) LIRS IBESIARS % T AR
than Fair Value AN}
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial R2012F K2011F12A31H + &
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are =[BRS S A AN B BR A
not materially different from their fair values at 31 TEEmERAQNABAELESEA
December 2012 and 2011. EHo
(i) Estimation of Fair Values (i) B IEEGE
The fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts RENES A REHREEROA
and forward aluminium contracts are determined based AEEDREARSHREERN
on market prices at the end of the reporting period. MEETE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR M ()

31 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital Commitments
At 31 December 2012, the outstanding capital commitments
of the Group not provided for in the consolidated financial

statements were as follows:

31 &iE
(a) BEAEIE
MR2012F12 A318H  RAHFBHRERT
W R 2 AEBAREEEAFRENT ¢

The Group
REME
2012 PAONN
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETTT
Commitments in respect of land and I RETF - UAREER
buildings, and machinery and equipment R ERIE
— Contracted for —BET4 19,434 44,308
— Authorised but not contracted for —EEEERETL 64,161 67,111
83,595 111,419
(b) Operating Lease Commitments (b) KEHERE

At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease
payments of the Group under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

R2012F12A318H » KEEREATHE
HEEHEREMNORRFKERS BTN
—F:

The Group
rEE

2012 2011

20125 20114F

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBTFT ARBFIT

Within 1 year —FR 13,922 16,543

After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFRN 2,078 2,562

After 5 years hFE 3,721 3,834

19,721 22,939
The Group leases certain land, plant and buildings, motor REFERBELLHEMEES T LM - B
vehicles and other equipment under operating leases. Except BREF - REREMBZE - BRAHS0
for the lease of land for a period of 50 years, the remaining FOTMAEIN - ARHE—RY)LRE
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 10 years, with 12105 - W BBEELENERME
an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. BRESEEHE - HiEEEREAE

None of the leases includes contingent lease rentals.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI R ()
32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32 HAEE
(@) Guarantees Issued (a) EEBHER
At 31 December 2012, the Group has issued the following 2012412 A318 - AEBEEZEE T
guarantees: (R :
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
20125 201148
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT
Guarantees for construction contracts’ BRESREE - BAK
bidding, performance and retentions RE &K ER 2,378,699 2,162,281
As of the end of the reporting period, the directors of the RMEBRR - AREEERBRBEEME
Company do not consider it probable that a claim in excess REAREBIR L BB EBMRHEARE
of the provision for warranties provided by the Group will be BEOBRRGTAELEE - XEERRS
made against the Group under any of the guarantees. The HRBERE B HEROSERETA LA
maximum liability of the Group as of the end of the reporting HENERE -
period under the guarantees issued is the amount disclosed
above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

TSR M ()

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contingent Liabilities in Respect of Legal Claims

(i)

(ii)

In December 2009, Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda
India, both wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group,
jointly received a notice that they are being sued by a
former sub-contractor in India in respect of Shenyang
Yuanda’'s and Yuanda India’s non-performance of
the terms as stipulated in the sub-contract agreement
entered into between Shenyang Yuanda and this
former sub-contractor. Shenyang Yuanda has made
a counterclaim against this sub-contractor for non-
performance of the sub-contract agreement. As at
the date of these financial statements, the above
lawsuit is under reviewed before the Arbitral
Tribunal of New Delhi in India. If Shenyang Yuanda
and Yuanda India are found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount to
approximately INR1,410.8 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB159.3 million) plus accrued interest.
Both Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda India continue to
deny any liability in respect of the non-performance of
the terms of the sub-contract agreement and, based
on legal advice, the directors of the Company do not
believe it is probable that the arbitration tribunal will
find against Shenyang Yuanda and/or Yuanda India.
No provision has therefore been made in respect of this
claim.

In April 2009, Shenyang Yuanda received a notice
that it is being sued by a construction agent in Kuwait
in respect of damages arose from the termination
of the agency agreement entered into between
Shenyang Yuanda and this former agent. As at the
date of these financial statements, the above lawsuit
is under reviewed before the Court of First Instance in
Kuwait. If Shenyang Yuanda is found to be liable, the
total expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately KWD11.2 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB250.2 million). Shenyang Yuanda
continues to deny any liability in respect of the claim
and, based on legal advice, the directors of the
Company do not believe it is probable that the court
will find against Shenyang Yuanda. No provision has
therefore been made in respect of this claim.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED &K EZBRERA A

32 HABE®)
BEEERRNRAEE

(b)

(@)

(ii)

2009F 128+ AEERREE
B R RIES R A REERKER
HEBA - BEEWHNENNSE
RBBESERARINERATEBITE
ey Nl =R N VA= bR 2A 7]
HETRTRR IS FUR AR ER - BIBE K
MERLD B EABRITY B
HERERPR - REZEMBHREA
B EERAAERENE B hE
FEEEIE - BB RAREE R
HrEae &AM EHcEEER
A AL E1,4108 B BEEE L
(HRERHARE1593BE L) M
JEEHFIE - BB ERARHE iR A
BELTRBEBETRIDBEHEER
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AREFWTREFHESHTE
PR K, SRENEEABGER «
ETL B R R

20094 B - BiGE KEER®
M EEEREENREREREA
B R KB AT R IBE] LR IE
EERIEMEEANEERERL S
o RZEVHHMEBE - LAk
MERBBSRIVEERIE o W&
fRAWETEEE LEE  BHS
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Contingent Liabilities in Respect of Legal Claims
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

In June 2010, Yuanda Germany, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, filed a lawsuit against a
customer in respect of its non-payment of Euro2.0
million in respect of the work carried out on this
customer by Yuanda Germany. In September 2010,
this customer filed a counterclaim against Yuanda
Germany for non-performance of the construction
contract. On 29 February 2012, a first instance court
judgement has been rendered in favour of Yuanda
Germany. In March 2012, this customer filed an
appeal against the above judgement. As at the date of
these financial statements, the above appeal is under
reviewed before the Higher Regional Court Frankfurt
in Germany. If Yuanda Germany is found to be liable,
the total expected monetary compensation may
amount to approximately Euro6.1 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB50.7 million). Yuanda Germany
continues to deny any liability in respect of the non-
performance of the construction contract and, based
on legal advice, the directors of the Company do not
believe it is probable that the court will find against
Yuanda Germany. No provision has therefore been
made in this respect.

In addition to the lawsuits mentioned in Notes 32(b)(i)
to 32(b)(iii), certain subsidiaries of the Group are named
defendants on other lawsuits or arbitrations in respect
of construction work carried out by them. The directors
of the Company consider the amounts involved in
these lawsuits and arbitrations are insignificant to the
Group, both individually and in aggregate. As at the
date of these financial statements, the above lawsuits
and arbitrations are under reviewed before courts
or arbitrators. If these subsidiaries are found to be
liable, the total expected monetary compensation may
amount to approximately RMB16.2 million. Based on
legal advices, the directors of the Company do not
believe it is probable that the courts or arbitrators will
find against these subsidiaries of the Group on these
lawsuits and arbitrations. No provision has therefore
been made in this respect.

32 HAEBE»®
EELEHRNHREE (2

(b)

(iii)

20106 A - AEEZEWE A
RERRAR —ZEFPABRER
BAABHETHNIREIMN208E
BT MR PR FFFA o 722010
FOR  ZEBEFPREEERATET
BESARERHER - N2012F
2A298 © RINAEDHERIRK
B5EF o M20124E3 78 - i BP YL
MESREE FAF o RZSMBHRE
A - bl ERIEREEAR AR
& S AP IR © WERR AW
HrEEe BT BHeEmER
A f)Ee 1 B BEUT(HERY
ARKS0788T) - EEERAE
BOREETEITRELEARNEM
B MBREEEER  ARAE
EWTEEEESH T RERANR
0 BRI AESR UL AR R o

B BT 53 32(b)(1) Z 32(b)(ii) AT 3t &9 7
W REEBETHEBRRHER
BRARPTEITRRETZME MR
REMPEEEA - RRRIEER
R ERARPEY R R IE R
REXGHAREMELTERX -
RZEMBHRAY - LlsFRR
REVE AR S PE B T|IB - 5%
SWBARKEEAA LEE - B
HEeRmERBTENEARY
162BETT - RIBEZAZER - AR
AERL TREZTERITEE
SRFARFERFRANEENZE
WIS A R ERER - S LUt AR R
# o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M (E)

33

34

35

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(a) Establishment of an Associate

On 24 August 2010, Shenyang Yuanda has entered into a
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with a third
party in the establishment of a glass manufacturing company.
Pursuant to the MOU, which is subject to further negotiation
between Shenyang Yuanda and this third party and the
finalisation of the related agreement, Shenyang Yuanda will
obtain 49% equity interests in this new glass manufacturing
company.

As at the date of these financial statements, the above
transaction has yet to be completed.

(b) Proposed Final Dividends
On 27 March 2013, the directors of the Company have
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in
Note 27(b)(i).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate and ultimate
holding company of the Company as at 31 December 2012 to be
Best Outlook Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. This entity does not produce financial statements available
for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2012

As at the date of these financial statements, the IASB has issued
a number of new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2012 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED EXFEZREMRA T
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BERUENTF] o RIBBE R (HESSE
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EEAHAEE)  EBBEANBIS LK
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RZEHBHRERAE A ERFHHART
B o

(b) EFEARERE
M2013F3A27H » AR RESFEZFIRN
REARR B o #E— BB R EE27(b) () #
E@ °

FNRRAERAT

RAREFERE * ARRR20126F12A3182
FNRERERABBEREERAT  HOR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M ()

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

DECEMBER 2012 (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

IAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)

Amendments to IFRS 1, First-time adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards —
Government loans

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated financial
statements, IFRS 11, Joint arrangements,
and IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other
entities — Transition guidance

Effective for
accounting

periods
beginning on

or after

1 July 2012

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

35 HZE2012F12A31BLEECHE
R RERNFHETER ~ ZAE
AIRREURERNTE 7

FALLT B Hi
2%
BRIV E ST
IR £

Bl @ ERIE 15RAERT 201247818
BEHRFZES — Z5E M
PEYERIER

SRS 2ERISE 1095 20131818
FER=Npy £

BEIRIREERE 125K 201361818
B E it em s &

BIBR B IS YE R 551357 20131818
DA IBERZ

Ba R E275E VA 20131 418
#HF(20114)

BIBR B A 3R S ZERISE 157 A 20131818
CHEREES I+ v
ER—BFE

R RIS ERIE TR 2013F1R1H
1BE2 G T A - #E—
wE - EER
TEEE

BIRRBA TSR EXERISF 1058 201351818

BRI A B

BIPR B TS R 2R RSB 1158
HA s E BRI RS
ENFE12RR AN E Rz
ZRE— BRI/
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

SR M (E)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 35

BZ2012F12831BLEECHE

186

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2012 (continued)

Effective for
accounting

periods
beginning on
or after

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle 1 January 2013

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27,
Investment entities

1 January 2014

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial instruments: 1 January 2014
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

IFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2015

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements except for the following:

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to IAS 1 require entities to present separately the
items of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified
to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from
those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The Group’s
presentation of other comprehensive income will be modified
accordingly when the amendments are adopted for the first time.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2012 (continued)

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 replaces the requirements in IAS 27, Consolidated and
separate financial statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and SIC-12, Consolidation —
Special purpose entities. It introduces a single control model to
determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by focusing
on whether the entity has power over the investee, exposure to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and the
ability to use its power to affect the amount of those returns.

The application of IFRS 10 is not expected to change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013. However,
it may in the future result in investees being consolidated which
would not have been consolidated under the Group’s existing
policies or vice versa.

IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
The disclosures required in IFRS 12 are generally more extensive
than those required in the current standards. The Group may have
to make additional disclosures about its interests in other entities
when the standard is adopted for the first time in 2013.

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual IFRSs with a single
source of fair value measurement guidance. IFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value measurements
for both financial instruments and non-financial instruments. IFRS
13 is effective as from 1 January 2013, but retrospective adoption
is not required. The Group estimates that the adoption of IFRS 13
will not have any significant impact on the fair value measurements
of its assets and liabilities, but additional disclosures may need to be
made in the 2013 financial statements.
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Five Year Financial Summary

T F B 54 &

Results
Turnover

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current assets

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

ES: |
eSS

gaNE

BERA

BATAE
FRiSH

FAHE

AN AL
ARARR

ISR 5
FAME

EERAE
FRBEE

MEBEE
REBRE

nBBE/(RE)FE

BEERRPAR
FRBEE

FEE

EERRE

BeA

B
ARERREEER LR
ElFE g 5o

s

2012
20124

RMB’000
AR®T R

2011
20114
RMB’000
AREFIT

2010
20104
RMB'000
ARETT

2009
20094
RMB’000
ARETIT

2008
20084
RMB’000
ARETIT

11,844,578 10,797,007 9,260,912 7,062,004 5,911,266
560,999 1,195,863 1,086,162 871,429 491,888
(131,543) (156,779) (84,805) (41,889) (112,941)
429,456 1,039,084 1,001,357 829,540 378,947
(51,546) (213,482) (214,140) (181,709) (54,287)
377,910 825,602 787,217 647,831 324,660
438,491 850,324 806,132 660,546 327,841
(60,581) (24,722) (18,915) (12,715) (3,181)
377,910 825,602 787,217 647,831 324,660
1,660,774 1,478,160 1,484,633 1,158,849 1,041,909
10,559,387 8,600,332 5,384,543 4,324,730 4,026,138
(7,794,337)  (5,783,105)  (5,652,710)  (4,377,850)  (3,546,918)
2,765,050 2,817,227 (268,167) (53,120) 479,220
4,425,824 4,295,387 1,216,466 1,105,729 1,521,129
(230,612) (275,340) (349,788) (88,018) (327,5898)
4,195,212 4,020,047 866,678 1,017,711 1,193,541
519,723 519,723 1 517,431 517,431
3,790,962 3,553,562 898,148 510,386 672,956
4,310,685 4,073,285 898,149 1,027,817 1,190,387
(115,473) (53,238) (31,471) (10,106) 3,154
4,195,212 4,020,047 866,678 1,017,711 1,193,541
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